Consent Agenda



52-21 44-52

July 20, 2021

MET IN REGULAR SESSION
The Board of Supervisors met in regular session at 10:00 A.M. all members, except Supervisor Shea
present. Chairman Belt presiding.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
1. CONSENT AGENDA

After discussion was held by the Board, a Motion was made by Wichman, and second by Schultz to
approve:

July 19, 2021, Minutes as read.

Auditor — Employment of Thea Harrison as Account Clerk II.

Communications — Employment of Julie Stober as Telecommunicator.

Human Resources — Employment Agreement with HR Director Jana Lemrick.

Renewal of Class E Liquor License (LE), granting privileges of Class B Wine Permit / Class
C Beer Permit (Carryout Beer) / Class E Liquor License (LE) / Sunday Sales for Casey’s
Marketing Company d/b/a Casey’s General Store #3204, Minden.

Renewal of Class E Liquor License (LE), granting privileges of Class B Wine Permit / Class
C Beer Permit (Carryout Beer) / Class E Liquor License (LE) / Sunday Sales for Casey’s
Marketing Company d/b/a Casey’s General Store #3205, Council Bluffs

moOOw>

e

UNANIMOUS VOTE. Motion Carried.

2. SCHEDULED SESSIONS

Motion made by Wichman, second by Schultz, to approve and authorize Chairman to sign CO #002 AIA
Change Order — Steel Price Increase. UNANIMOUS VOTE. Motion Carried.

Motion made by Wichman, second by Schultz, to approve and authorize Board to sign Resolution No.
71-2021 entitled: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS TO SIGN AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF
POTTAWATTAMIE AND CITY OF COUNCIL BLUFFS WITH RESPECT TO THE 2021 BYRNE
JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM AWARD.

RESOLUTION NO. 71-2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS TO SIGN AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY
OF POTTAWATTAMIE AND CITY OF COUNCIL BLUFFS WITH RESPECT TO THE
2021 BYRNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM AWARD.

WHEREAS, the Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program has funds available to award the County
and City; and

WHEREAS, the heads of both law enforcement agencies have determined the best way to utilize
said funds and agree that the proposed use is in the best interest of the public.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Pottawattamie County,
Iowa, that the Chairman of the Board is hereby authorized and directed to sign the Interlocal
Agreement between the County and City for use of the 2021 JAG funds.

Dated this 20th Day of July, 2021.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT

O O O (e}
Scott A. Belt, Chairman

O O O O
Tim Wichman

O O O O
Lynn Grobe

o) o) o) o)
Justin Schultz

o) o) o) o)

Brian Shea



53-21 44-53

ATTEST:

Melvyn Houser, County Auditor

Roll Call Vote: AYES: Belt, Wichman, Grobe, Schultz. Motion Carried.

Motion made by Schultz, second by Wichman, to approve payment of $141,815.50 to the City of Council
Bluffs for costs related to the Southwest lowa 100-Yard Shooting Range Addition. UNANIMOUS VOTE.
Motion Carried.

Motion made by Wichman, second by Schultz, to set Public Hearing to receive comment on plans;
specifications; form of contract; and estimated cost for the Roads Operations Center Grading project on
Eastern Hills Drive for July 27" at 10:00 A.M. UNANIMOUS VOTE. Motion Carried.

Motion made by Wichman, second by Schultz, to approve Letter of Support to the State of [owa OCIO to
support the Empower Rural lowa Broadband Grant Request to expand broadband access in rural
Pottawattamie County made by Western Iowa Networks. UNANIMOUS VOTE. Motion Carried.

Motion made by Schultz, second by Grobe, to approve funding request for the Workforce Development
Program for $50,000 to be paid from gaming, pending the signing of contract. UNANIMOUS VOTE.
Motion Carried.

Mayor Allan Hadfield/City of Treynor and Michael Holton/Treynor City Administrator appeared before
the Board for a on the City of Treynor’s request for ARPA County funding for road infrastructure in
Treynor for future growth. Discussion only. No action taken.

3. OTHER BUSINESS

Motion made by Wichman, second by Schultz, to funding appropriation for support of MAPA for FY
21/22 First Half in the amount of $22,824. UNANIMOUS VOTE. Motion Carried.

Motion made by Schultz, second by Grobe, to approve ISACS Supervisors’ Dues for FY 21/22 in the
amount of $375.00. UNANIMOUS VOTE. Motion Carried.

4. RECEIVED/FILED

A. Salary Actions

1) Roads — Payroll Status Change of Brady DeYeager, Lisa Nelsen

2) Communications — Payroll Status Change of Rachelle Holt, Colleen Sylvis, Matthew
Spitznagle, Joshua Derrington, Joy Watcher

3) Board of Health — Payroll Status Change for Jane Husz

4) Veteran Affairs Commission — Employment Agreement with Veteran Affairs Director
Nicholas Jedlicka

5) Human Resources — Payroll Status Change of Garfield Coleman

5. ADJOURN
Motion by Wichman, second by Schultz, to adjourn meeting. UNANIMOUS VOTE. Motion Carried.

THE BOARD ADJOURNED SUBJECT TO CALL AT 12:38 P.M.

Scott A. Belt, Chairman

ATTEST:

Melvyn Houser, Pottawattamie County Auditor

APPROVED: July 27, 2021
PUBLISH: X



Scheduled
Sessions



Matt Wilber/County Attorney

Public hearing on disposal of county-owned

property under Iowa Code Section 331.361,

legally described as: Lot 2 and the South 2

feet of Lot 1, Block 12 of Jacksons Addition,

all located in Council Bluffs, Pottawattamie

County, Iowa (commonly referred to as 706
South 379 Street);

discussion and decision to approve and
authorize Board to sign Resolution No. 72-
2021, for disposal of said real property.



RESOLUTION NO. 72-2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DISPOSAL OF AN INTEREST IN
COUNTY-OWNED PROPERTY AS PROVIDED UNDER IOWA CODE
SECTION 331.361

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has provided legal notice of and set a public
hearing for the disposal of an interest in county-owned property described below; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors believes it to be in the best interests of
Pottawattamie County to dispose of certain county-owned property and to allow the property to
be transferred; and

WHEREAS, on March 18, 2021, Pottawattamie County, lowa acquired the property by
tax sale deed; and

WHEREAS, the Pottawattamie County Development Corporation d/b/a The 712
Initiative has expressed interest in obtaining title and ownership of said property from
Pottawattamie County, lowa, for rehabilitation of the property and creation of owner-occupied
housing; and

WHEREAS, the assessed value of said property in 2019 was found to be $46,829 and
the 712 Initiative is willing to purchase said property for that sum with a forgivable promissory
note.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of
Pottawattamie County, lowa, that the Board of Supervisors does hereby authorize the disposal of
Pottawattamie County, Iowa’s interest in the property commonly referred to as 706 South 3™
Street, and legally described as follows:

Lot 2 and the South 2 feet of Lot 1, Block 12 of Jacksons Addition, all located in Council Bluffs,
Pottawattamie County, lowa.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Auditor be and is hereby authorized,
empowered and directed to cause a Quit Claim Deed to be prepared, duly executed, and recorded
along with this Resolution and the Proof of Publication of the “Notice of Public Hearing”.

Dated this 27th Day of July, 2021.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT

O O @] @)
Scott A. Belt, Chairman

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Tim Wichman

O O @] @)
Lynn Grobe

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Justin Schultz

O O @] @)
Brian Shea
ATTEST:

Melvyn Houser, County Auditor



Matt Wilber/County Attorney

Public hearing on disposal of county-owned
property under Iowa Code Section 331.361,
legally described as: Lot 7 and the East 13
1/3’ of Lot 8, Block 5 of Squires Addition, all
located in Council Bluffs, Pottawattamie
County, Iowa (commonly referred to as 2117
5th Avenue);

discussion and decision to approve and
authorize Board to sign Resolution No. 73-
2021, for disposal of said real property



RESOLUTION NO. 73-2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DISPOSAL OF AN INTEREST IN
COUNTY-OWNED PROPERTY AS PROVIDED UNDER IOWA CODE
SECTION 331.361

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has provided legal notice of and set a public
hearing for the disposal of an interest in county-owned property described below; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors believes it to be in the best interests of
Pottawattamie County to dispose of certain county-owned property and to allow the property to
be transferred; and

WHEREAS, on March 18, 2021, Pottawattamie County, lowa acquired the property by
tax sale deed; and

WHEREAS, the Pottawattamie County Development Corporation d/b/a The 712
Initiative has expressed interest in obtaining title and ownership of said property from
Pottawattamie County, lowa, for rehabilitation of the property and creation of owner-occupied
housing; and

WHEREAS, the assessed value of said property in 2019 was found to be $23,200 and
the 712 Initiative is willing to purchase said property for that sum with a forgivable promissory
note.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of
Pottawattamie County, lowa, that the Board of Supervisors does hereby authorize the disposal of
Pottawattamie County, Iowa’s interest in the property commonly referred to as 2117 5" Avenue,
and legally described as follows:

Lot 7 and the East 13 1/3” of Lot 8, Block 5 of Squires Addition, all located in Council Bluffs,
Pottawattamie County, lowa.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Auditor be and is hereby authorized,
empowered and directed to cause a Quit Claim Deed to be prepared, duly executed, and recorded
along with this Resolution and the Proof of Publication of the “Notice of Public Hearing”.

Dated this 27th Day of July, 2021.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT

O O O O
Scott A. Belt, Chairman

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Tim Wichman

O O O O
Lynn Grobe

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Justin Schultz

O O O O
Brian Shea
ATTEST:

Melvyn Houser, County Auditor



John Rasmussen/County Engineer

Public Hearing on plans; specifications; form
of contract; and estimated cost for the Roads
Operations Center Grading project on Eastern
Hills Drive; and discussion and/or decision to
approve plans; specifications; form of
contract; and estimated cost for the Roads
Operations Center and to set bid opening for
August 10" at 10:00 A.M.;

Discussion and/or decision to approve and
authorize Board to sign Resolution No. 75-
2021 adopting said plans.



RESOLUTION NO. 75-2021

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, FORM OF CONTRACT AND
ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE COST FOR THE POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY
SECONDARY ROADS OPERATIONS CENTER PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECT.

WHEREAS, on the 20th day of July, 2021, plans, specifications, form of contract and estimate of
cost were provided by the County Engineer for the construction of the public improvements
described in general as the Pottawattamie County Secondary Roads Operations Center public
improvement; and

WHEREAS, notice of hearing on plans, specifications, form of contract and estimate of cost for
the public improvements was published as required by law.

WHEREAS, the project shall be let for construction at a public bid opening with bids to be
opened at 10:00 A.M. on August 10, 2021 in the Pottawattamie County Board of Supervisor’s
Hearing Room.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS, STATE OF IOWA: That the plans, specifications, form of contract and
estimate of probable cost are hereby approved for the Pottawattamie County Secondary Roads
Operations Center public improvement project.

Dated this 27th Day of July, 2021.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Scott A. Belt, Chairman

O O @] @)
Tim Wichman

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Lynn Grobe

@) O O @)
Justin Schultz

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Brian Shea
ATTEST:

Melvyn Houser, County Auditor

RECOMMEND:
John Rasmussen, County Engineer




John Rasmussen/County Engineer

Discussion on transportation projects
and updating the County Five Year Plan.



Pottawattamie County Secondary Roads
223 South 6™ Street
Council Bluffs, Iowa, 51501

Tel: 712.328.5608
Fax: 712.328.4751

Date: July 22, 2021

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Rasmussen, County Engineer
RE: Transportation Projects Agenda Item

Pioneer Trail Subdivision Projects

I would like to update the County Five Year Plan to reflect the intended construction on 240™ and Dumfries Road.
Currently, I have 240" programmed and surveyed for paving but believe that is no longer the intent. 1'd like to
revisit the July 1, 2021 memo to assure the projects brought for construction meet the objectives of the Board and
to identify the funding source for project development and construction costs.

Programming changes

We are programmed to reconstruct the G30 Mosquito Creek Bridge and a portion of G30 over the Interstate. This
project is more complicated than anticipated and requires more time in design. We would like to push it back a
year and move G30 from the Nishnabotna River Bridge to Hwy 59 (Hancock) up a year. It just isn’t handling the
truck traffic from the elevator and needs reconstructed.

After discussion of these items I will bring a resolution to make the appropriate changes in the County Five Year
Plan in a later Board meeting.

Pottawattamie County in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of
Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of
the Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, hereby notifies all bidders or consultants that it will affirmatively insure that in any
contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, minority business enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit bids and proposals as
appropriate in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an
award.




Kevin Skinner/CFO, Western Iowa
Networks

Discussion and/or decision to pledge
$10,000 in ARPA funds towards Western
Iowa Networks’ broadband expansion
project, contingent upon their submitting
an application for the Empower Rural
Iowa Broadband Grant program and
receiving an award.



Pottawattamie County Board of Supervisors

227 South Sixth Street
Second Floor

Scott A. Belt, Chairman
Tim Wichman, Chairman Pro Tem

Council Bluffs, Iowa 51501 Lynn Grobe

Phone:  712-328-5644 Justin Schultz

Fax: 712-328-5770 Brian Shea

Regular sessions held weekly, each Tuesday Andrew Moats, Executive Assistant

July 23, 2021

State of Iowa

Office of the Chief Information Officer

Attn: Annette Dunn, Chief Information Officer
200 E. Grand Ave.

Des Moines, IA 50309

Dear Ms. Dunn:

The Pottawattamie County Board of Supervisors is lending its support for the lowa broadband
grant application submitted by Western lowa Networks under NOFA #006 of the Empower
Rural Iowa Broadband Grant Program. Pottawattamie County is also pledging $10,000 to help
fund construction of a fiber-to-the-premise network in Pottawattamie County, contingent upon
Western lowa Networks receiving a grant award under this NOFA and proceeding with a
construction project. The County understands many of its residents and businesses live and work
in areas where adequate broadband is simply not available. This is especially true in rural areas.
Western lowa Networks is proposing to build a future-proof, fiber optics-based network to serve
many of these areas in Pottawattamie County. Such a network will fill a critical need for
residents of our County. As such, please give this application your full consideration.

Sincerely,

Scott A. Belt
Chairman
Pottawattamie County Board of Supervisors



Grant Anderson/MAPA

Discussion and/or decision to approve
and authorize Chairman to sigh CDBG
contract extension letter addressed to
the Iowa Economic Development
Authority.



July 28, 2021

lowa Economic Development Authority
Attn: Ed Basch, Project Manager

1963 Bell Ave, Suite 200

Des Moines, IA 50315

RE: Request to Extend CDBG Contract End Date — Project Contract Number: 18-DTR-004
Dear Mr. Basch,

At the wish of the Cities of Carson and Macedonia, Pottawattamie County is requesting a contract end
date extension for the above referenced CDBG project. The project was planned originally to go out to
bid in April 2019, but delays in finalizing the contract for architectural services shifted the procurement
target date. Also, progress on the project was hindered by complications related to the COVID-19
pandemic last year; supply chain issues prevented the construction contractor from staring
rehabilitation earlier.

Per the executed construction contract, substantial completion on work shall be completed no later
than Two Hundred Seventy (270) calendar days from the date of commencement of work; construction
began on May 5, 2021. Therefore, the project sub recipients desire to extend the CDBG award from July
31, 2021, to February 28, 2022. This extended period should also allow for the completion of
administrative closeout.

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please contact Grant Anderson, MAPA, at (402)
444-6866 ext. 3222 or at ganderson@mapacog.org.

Sincerely,

Scott Belt, Chair
Pottawattamie County Board of Supervisors



City of Carson
Carson City Hall
316 South Commercial St.
PO Box 128

Carson, TA 51525

Ph. 712-484-3636
WWWw.Carsongov.coim

Date: July 22,2021

To: Pottawattamie County Board of Supervisors
Grant Anderson, MAPA — DTR Project Grant Administration

From: Brianne Duede, City Administrator Clerk

RE: Request Extension for Downtown Revitalization Project - CDBG Grant & IWF CITIES Grant

The purpose of this letter is to request an extension for our Downtown Revitalization Facade Project from July 31,
2021 to February 28, 2022. As you may be aware construction kicked off in May, 2021. One of the participating
structures, our historic Masonic Lodge Building, is undergoing structural engineering evaluations with plans for fagade
reconstruction in motion. The other structures participating in Carson’s downtown fagade revitalization have mason
and tuckpoint work complete with the contractor scheduled to begin window and door replacement on August 2, 2021.

The community is rallying around this project and have been excited to see the progress that has been made as new
life is beginning to buzz again in our downtown as a result of this project. We invite you to visit downtown Carson and
admire the ongoing work while you stop by to catch a movie at our historic Dreamland Theatre or grab a bite to eat at
the Bar'n & Grill. You can also follow our community’s progress on our Facebook page “City of Carson, lowa" or on
our website www.carsongov.com.

Thank you for your consideration of our request and partnering with us on this exciting project.
Sincerely,
Brianne Duede

City Administrator Clerk

Cc: Mayor Tim Todd
Amy Spiering, Carson Downtown Resource Coordinator



Q, City of Carson, lowa

Jbout Photos Videos Events Posts Services Groups Offers Job

2. City of Carson, lowa

May 7 - @

Carson's Downtown Facade Project has officially entered the construction
phase!

Owning a brick and mortar structure can be a continual challenge to
preserve what, in many cases, is a historic building. This project is a resuilt
of collaboration between Property Owners, the City's of Carson and our
neighboring community of Macedonia, Pottawattamie County, the State of
lowa Department of Economic Development, the lowa West Foundation
CITIES Grant program, and Metro Area Planning Agency (MAPA). Plans
were developed with the assistance of Franks Design Architect Group.
Seven buildings on Broadway will undergo facade improvements included
tuckpoint masonry work, new windows and doors, and asbestos removal.
Individuals visiting downtown may need to navigate their way around
construction work zones this summer through the fall, while watching
these seven historic structures undergo a transformation.

If you have any questions regarding Carson’s Downtown Revitalization
efforts please contact Amy Spiering, Carson’s Downtown Resource
Coordinator at cityofcarsonmsc@gmail.com or call Brianne Duede at City
Hall 712-484-3636.

The City of Macedonia has partnered with Carson through a joint CDBG
Grant with the State and County and will also be working on their facade
projects in tandem with us.

https://www.carsongov.com/index.asp?
SEC=D68BDC92-2260-4B75-9E8A-17179D8ABBFF&DE=74481759-7142
-4421-A6E7-92FCCE72D5A4&Type=B_PR




(10}
=
o
a
(@)
w
§ ==
©
(8]
(Vi
(@]
>
et
O
of

Photos Videos Events Posts Services Groups Offers Job

\bout

Y H

iy

Py

o

HH
i

H H |

it

-

14 Shares

9 Comments

QO 105

(J Comment A Share

Y Like

5

=)



7/22/2021 Metropolitan Area Planning Agency Mail - Request to Extend CDBG Contract End Date — Project Contract

MAP’% Grant Anderson <ganderson@mapacog.org>

Request to Extend CDBG Contract End Date — Project Contract

1 message

City of Macedonia <macedoniacityhall@gmail.com> Thu, Jul 22, 2021 at 11:38 AM
To: Grant Anderson <ganderson@mapacog.org>

RE: Request to Extend CDBG Contract End Date — Project Contract Number: 18-DTR-004

The Cities of Macedonia and Carson, Pottawattamie County is requesting a contract end date extension for the above
referenced CDBG project. Delays in finalizing the contract for architectural services changed the procurement date.
The project progress was delayed by difficulties related to the pandemic last year; supply chain issues prevented the
construction contractor from starting earlier, as well as currently waiting for materials to arrive.

Please contact Grant Anderson, MAPA, at (402) 444-6866 ext. 3222 or at ganderson@mapacog.org with any
questions.

Thank you,

Suzann Duede

City Clerk

City of Macedonia

PO Box 33

Macedonia, 1A 51549
712-486-2323
712-486-2501 Fax
www.macedoniaiowa.com

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=8adbe8e392&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1706003725357557584%7Cmsg-f%3A1706003725357... 1/1



Patricia and Blair Higgins; and Lea Voss /
Treasurer

Discussion and/or decision to approve
tax suspension pursuant to Iowa Code

Section 427.9, for property located at
2809 Summner Dr, Council Bluffs, Iowa.



7/21/2021 744410332023

Find Property Res Sales Comm/Ind Sales

7444 10 332 023

--- Permanent Property Address --- = ------- Mailing Address -------

HIGGINS, BLAIR P-PATRICIA A HIGGINS, BLAIR P-PATRICIA A

2809 SUMMNER DR 2809 SUMMNER DR

COUNCIL BLUFFS, TIA 51581 COUNCIL BLUFFS, IA 51501

District: @82 CO BLUFFS CITY/LC SCHOOL

============================ REAL ESTATE TAXES ON TREASURER'S WEBPAGE ============================
Go to: https://www.municipalonlinepayments.com/pottawattamiecoia/tax/search/detail/744410332023

) TAX DESCRIPTION* =SS S=S==S========S======EE

* Not to be used on legal documents

* Class is for Assessment purposes only — Not Zoning
land dwelling land building total ag acres year class*
$24,500 $87,500 %0 %0 $112,000 2020 R
$27,300 $97,300 $e $0 $124,600 2021 R
s s EEEEEEEEss S S ss=========== EXEMPTIONS/PROGRAMS oSS EEsssSSSSSSS=SSS=S=S=sSEEs==s=E=E=E=====
* Credit information is no longer available online

* Book/Page LINKS TO RECORDER'S WEBPAGE
1 D HIGGINS, BLAIR P-PATRICIA A book/page: 91/993 D

Sale Date Amount Code Book/Page
06/26/1990 51500 De49 ©091/00993
12/085/1988 18 De49 0089/13861
PDF: 5 MAP: 24
Date Reviewed: ©7/29/20 KK
LAND......... 7182 sqFt .17 acres
Lot 1: Frontage Rear Side-1 Side-2 Rear-Lot
57 57 126 126
Residence 1 of 1 -- Single-Family
BUILDING..... Split Foyer Frame 4/@ Rooms Above/Below 2/@ Bedrooms Above/Below 1@3@ SF Base AC
Built:1970 Normal Bsmt: Full Bsmt Finish: None Attic Finish: None
FINISH....... Foundation: Conc Exterior: Wd Lap Roof: Asph / Hip
Interior: Drwl Flooring: Tile
PLUMBING..... 1 Full Bath 1 Water Closet 1 Sink

BUILT INS....1 Dishwasher
DECK/PATIOS. .10@ SF Wood Deck-Med
GARAGES(1)...1 Detached
Garage 1: 44@ SF Det Frame  20x22 Built: 1977

www.pottco.org/cgifcard?map=on&parcel=744410332023 1/3



7/21/2021 744410332023

a7

SPLIT FOYER

13BFR
[1030]

28 28

15 ] ]

2809 SUMMNER DR, HIGGINS, BLAIR P-PATRICIA A

2809 SUMMNER DR, HIGGINS, BLAIR P-PATRICIA A, 1 09/16/2020

www.pottco.org/cgi/card?map=on&parcel=744410332023 2/3



7/21/2021 744410332023

308

| A "‘-ﬂlﬂ
AL AE e

6001t x 6001t
Click any parcel to go to its web page
See more maps at the County GIS Department.

Asoft OnWeb v

Find Property Res Sales Comm/Ind Sales

www.pottco.org/cgi/card?map=on&parcel=744410332023 313



lowa Department of Human Services Notice of Decision — Please review both sides of the notice
1630 FIRST AVE. NE

CEDAR RAPIDS IOWA 52402

57 PEC1 BLAIR HIGGINS Worker Name CRSA PACE ONGOING
T Case Number ~ E12105-01-0-8
COUNCIL BLUFFS IA 51501 Worker Phone 319-892-6795

1-888-338-6067
Please review the entire notice. If you have
guestions, call your worker.

You are approved for the Su881ement for Medicare and Medicaid Eligibles program effective
04/01/21. You will get $1. for_each_month that you are eligible. Checks are mailed
at the beg1nn1ng of January, April, Ju1¥ and october for_the three month period that
just ended. Payments will continue as long as you are eligible for Medicaid. This
program saves Iowa money, By paying you a cash benefit, Iowa can receive federal money
to help pay for your_Medicare premiums. K . b
. EM 6-B Supplement for Medicare_ and Medicaid E11g1b1es;

441 Iowa Admin. Code 50.2 (249), 51.10, 52.1 (249)

You get SSI, State Supplementary Assistance or you live in a facility in which the
Department of Human Services is paying some or all of the cost. You may not have to pay
property taxes at this time. Take -this notice to your county Board of Supervisors to
--discuss” having your property taxes delayed. ]

EM 8-A" Property Tax Relief; 441 Iowa Admin. Code 427.9

04/02/21

164 DALY
2307

You may look at the Employees’ Manual (EM) at the Department's county office. 470-0485 (Rev. 4/20) HO485A

v

Sheet

1

of

57P



1630 FIRST AVE. NE
CEDAR RAPIDS [OWA 52402

BLAIR HIGGINS

PATRICIA HIGGINS

2809 SUMMNER DR

COUNCIL BLUFFS 1A 51501

You Have the Right to Appeal

What is an appeal?‘ An appeal is asking for a hearing because you do not fike a decision the Department of
Human Services (DHS) makes. You have the right to file an appeal if you disagree with a decision. You do not
have to pay to file an appeal. [441 lowa Administrative Code Chapter 7).

How do | appeai?? You:can appeal in person, by telephone, or in writing for Food Assistance, Child Care
Assistance, Family Investment Program or Medicaid. You must appeal in writing for all other programs by doing
one of the following:
~ e Complete an appeal electronically at https://dhs.iowa.gov/node/966, or

» Write a letter telling us why you think a decision is wrong, or

» Fill out an Appeal and Request for Hearing form. You can get this form at your county DHS office.
Send or take your appeal to the DHS, Appeals Section, 5th Floor, 1305 E Walnut Street, Des Moines, lowa
50319-0114. If you need help filing an appeal, ask your county DHS office.

How long do I have to appeal? For Food Assistance or Medicaid, you have 90 calendar days to file an appeal
from the date of a decision. For all other programs, you must file an appeal within 30 calendar days of the date of a
decision or before the date a decision goes into effect.

if you file an appeal more than 30 but less than 90 calendar days from the date of a decision, you must tell us why
your appeal is late. If you have a good reason for filing your appeal late, we will decide if you can get a hearing. If
you file an appeal 90 days after the date of a decision, we cannot give you a hearing.

Can | continue to get benefits when my appeal is pending? You may keep your benefits until an appeal is final
or through the end of your certification period if you file an appeal within 10 calendar days of the date the notice is
received. A notice is considered to be received 5 calendar days after the date on the notice. For the Family
Investment Program, Child Care Assistance, and Medicaid, benefits can also continue if you file an appeal before
the date a decision goes into effect. Any benefits you get while your appeal is being decided may have to be paid
back if the DHS’s action is correct.

How will | know if | get a hearing? You will get a hearing notice that tells you the date and time a telephone
hearing is scheduled. You will get a letter telling you if you do not get a hearing. It will also explain what you can do
if you disagree with the decision to not give you a hearing.

Can | have someone else help me in the hearing? You or someone else, such as a friend or relative, can tell
why you disagree with the DHS’s decision. You may also have a lawyer help you, but DHS will not pay for one.
Your county DHS office can give you information about legal services. The cost of legal setvices will be based on
your income. You may also call lowa Legal Aid at 1-800-532-1275. In you live in Polk County, call 243-1193.

Policy Regarding Discrimination, Harassment, Affirmative Action and Equal Employment Opportunity

Itis the policy of the lowa DHS to provide equal treatment in employment and provision of services to applicants,
employees and clients without regard to race, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion,
age, disability, political belief or veteran status.

If you feel DHS has discriminated against or harassed you, please send a letter detailing your complaint to: lowa
DHS, Hoover Building, Sth Floor— Policy Bureau, 1305 E Walnut, Des Moines, |IA 50319-0114 or via email
contactdhs@dhs.state.la.us.

In accordance with federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights regulations and
policies, the USDA, its agencies, offices, employees, and institutions participating in or administering USDA
programs are prohibited from discriminating based on race, color, national origin, sex, religious creed, disability,
age, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program or activity conducted or
funded by USDA.

Persons with disabiliies who require alternative means of communication for program information {(e.g., Braille,
large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.), should contact the agency (state or local) where they applied
for benefits. Individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing or have speech disabilities may contact USDA through the
Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages
other than English.

To file a program complaint of discrimination, compiete theUSDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form,
(AD-3027) found oniine at: How to File a Complaint, and at any USDA office, or write a letter addressed to USDA
and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of the complaint form, call
(868) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by:

Mail: U.S. Department of Agricutture Fax: (202) 690-7442; or
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

This institution is an equal opportunity provider.
470-0485 (Rev. 4/20) H0485B

Email: program.intake@usda.gov




Bible Reading Marathon Use of
County Grounds Application



qpmfw"?!“""
—-‘ik"‘ o

-0

APPLICATION FOR USE OF "o ;-:-'-:
POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY GROUNDS

(o

After you have completed this form, please return it to: Board of Supervisors, 227 South 6
Street, 2™ Floor, Council Bluffs, lowa or by fax at (712) 328-5770. For questions concerning this
application, please contact the Board of Supervisors at (712) 328-5644. All applications should

be submitted at least three weeks in advance of your event.

This form must be accompanied by a cover letter describing event, Any changes to the event or
Responsible Party after the Application has been approved must be reported to the Board of
Supervisors at (712) 328-5644. Applications must be resubmitted on an annual basis.

All County grounds and buildings are Smoke-Free and Weapons-Free.

Requesting Use of: [0 Courthouse [ Veteran’s Building (Only available for use by approved

Veteran’s Organizations) U2 o) counhomme grounls mean SAU....‘M.L(L @-%L.%JL
Date(s) of use: ‘%?wﬂ &,@W G-\ , 202

Time of use (start and end times): Qe AM 4o 5:00 PM

Group/Individual Requesting Use: _Bible Reading ™M anctbon

Name of Contact Person: Qm&garu Bav wisew
)

Contact Address: 1aY4  Seved (Qaks St. ’(c-:umc".l B\u.f-%/, Towa S(503

Telephone Number: 518 -4S0- a3Y9Fax Number: (2 - 32§-83206

Contact E-mail Address: Sgbm\f‘m‘rs es [ Swith petergon. Com

Name of Event: _ Gmrusel Viaalle Reodl.u&% Monathon,
Type of Event/Use: __@eaafe uAtt Yo qneasd: Adlimg on Qo ¢ howng

a3

S

Specific areas of Courthouse grounds you request to use: _QLodn, oneew rmesd o S?wvw.Q
Is the event open to the general public? & Yes [J No

Revised 9/26/2016 Page3of6



Number of participants expected: MMQ'U’@ b~ % people dnd SomBimas foat

What equipment will be used on the grounds? (e.g.: chairs, tables, electrical equipment,
restroom facilities) cthdang

When will equipment be set up? Chams  one Lnong bk .lr% Qm?m prshortlay cian-e

Is food and/or beverage to be served? [Yes [X] No (NOTE: NO alcohol beverages are allowed.)
If yes, describe: el ameyc &m.j el Lrtiles

Has this group used Courthouse grounds for other events? & Yes [J No

If so, please list functions and dates: U Bowe. e Nuweass S0 Soure Lusent for
_Agareaoll 'a,g_.,u_;” o e

A a¥a -
cl

Does this group have liability insurance to cover this event? [ Yes (I No [X] N/A

AR R R AR RERRRERERERRRERRERENRENRIERERERERTERERENREREREENENERENENDERRENRNRRRERENERREERENNERRERNRRIRERRTNT]

I have read the Rules For Use of Pottawattamie County Courthouse Grounds. | understand that
Courthouse grounds will be left in a clean and neat condition after use. | am liable for all
damages, expenses and loss caused by any person who attends or participates in this scheduled
event. By signing this application, | agree to defend and hold the County (including its governing
bodies, individual departments, employees, and agents) free and harmless from any damage,
loss, liability, cost or expense that may arise during or be caused in any way by this scheduled
event and any activities related to it.

Sragpny A Do 119 -2

Signature of Responsible Party Date

Revised 9/26/2016 Page 4 of 6



*¥* FOR COUNTY USE ONLY ***

Certificate of Insurance Received: |:| Yes Date Received: [JNo
Buildings and Grounds: |:] N/A %Approved |:| Denied
Sheriff/Courthouse Security ] N/AMApproved [] penied

* ¥k

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DECISION

Board Meeting Date:

Board Decision: [ ] Approved [ _]Denied
Reason(s) for Denial:

Waived

Board of Supervisors, Chairman or Designee

VETERANS COMMISSION DECISION (Veteran’s Building Only)
Commission Meeting Date:

Commission Decision: |:| Approved |:| Denied
Reason(s) for Denial:

Veteran’s Commission, Chairman or Designee

Revised 9/26/2016

Page5of 6



Chief Deputy Jeff Theulen,
Lt. Rob Ambrose

Discussion and/or decision to approve
Sheriff’'s Office Expansion Project
COR-001, Change from Trusses to

Beams.



| Change Request I

7735 Irvington Road
Omaha, NE 68134
Ph : (402) 572-7350

To: Stephen Burgess Number: 1
DLR Group Date: 7/12/21
6457 Frances Street, Suite 200 Job: 9573 Pott Co Sheriff's Addition
Omaha, NE 68106-2280 Phone:

Ph: 402-393-4100

Description: COR 001 PR-001 Change from Trusses to Beams

Reason: Owner Requested
Source: Proposal Request

We are pleased to offer the following specifications and pricing to make the following changes:

Per discussion and attached PR-001 attached is the pricing to switch from Trusses to Beams.

Description Labor Material Equipment Subcontract Burden Price
Drywall - Sub $1,609.00 $1,609.00
Painting - Sub $500.00 $500.00
Electrical - Sub $1,184.05 $1,184.05
Misc Steel Materials $23,329.85 $23,329.85
Subtotal: $26,622.90

OH&P $26,622.90 5.00% $1,331.15

Total: $27,954.05

If you have any questions, please contact me at .

Submitted by: Cole Kratochvil Approved by:

DRA Revenue Carryforwards Date:

Page 1 of 1




Change Proposal Request #

Description of Change

Johnson Drywall Company, Inc.

301 East First Street - Papillion, NE 68046
Ph (402) 592-0079 Fax (402) 592-3820

PR-01

Project Name: Pott Country Sheriffs office

Project Address

: 1400 Big Lake Road

Date: 6/29/2021

Submitted To: Dranderson

Attn: Cole Kratochvil

Fax Number:

: Build bulkhead in room #101 per cut 16/A10.02.

Add ceiling wall mold to both sides of bulkhead and cut ceiling tile borders

Material:

Labor:

Subcontractor:

Equipment:

1) 3 5/8 Track 90
2) 3 5/8 Stud 224
3) 5/8" Drywall 192
4) Drywall Mud 2
5) Drywall Tape 1
6) Cornerbead 90
7) 15/16" Ceiling Wall Mold 84
Material Subtotal
1) Carpenter 16
2) Finisher 8
3) Laborer 1
4) 0
Labor Subtotal
1) 0
2) 0
Subcontractor Subtotal
1) 0
2) 0
Equipment Subtotal

Markups:
Sales Tax on Material

Sales Tax on Equipment

Burden on Labor

LF @
LF @
SF @
Box @
Roll @
LF @
LF @

Hours @
Hours @
Hours @
Hours @

Lump Sum @
Lump Sum @

Lump Sum @
Lump Sum @

Overhead & Profit (Material)

Overhead & Profit (Labor)

Overhead & Profit (Subcontractor)
Overhead & Profit (Equipment)

Bond

$0.68
$0.68
$0.44
$11.00
$3.85
$0.30
$0.43

$30.00
$30.00
$30.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

0.00%
7.00%
35.00%

15.00%
15.00%
10.00%
15.00%

0.00%

$61.20
$152.32
$84.48
$22.00
$3.85
$27.00
$36.12

$386.97
$480.00
$240.00
$30.00
$0.00
$750.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$386.97
$750.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$262.50

$1,399.47 $1,399.47

$58.05

$151.88

$0.00

$0.00

$1,609.39

$0.00

$1,609



June 30, 2021

D R Anderson Constructors Co.

7735 Irvington Rd.

Omaha, NE 68122

Attention: Cole Kratochvil

RE: PR-001 (Pottawattamie Co. Sheriff’s Office.)

Sir,

Please find enclosed our proposal for the above mentioned project.
This Proposal includes the following:

1: Delete (4) Type R 41 8’ fixtures.

2: Add (8) Type R 41 4’ fixtures.

3: Additional circuiting as needed.

Please Note: This proposal EXCLUDES the following:
1: Any work not listed above.
2: Sales Tax.

Proposal Price: $1,184.00
(One Thousand One Hundred Eighty Four Dollars.)

Please call if you have any questions concerning this proposal.
As always thank you for allowing ABC to quote your electrical projects.
Thank you,

Jeff Mohr, Estimator



Estimate Report

Estimate: PR-01 06/30/21 12:01:37 PM
Estimated by: Jeff Mohr
File: PR-01.bhs Page 3

Worksheet Location: PG 1(Sheet 1)

DB f Ph. Description Quantity Mat. Cost U Tot. Mat. Lab. Hrs. U Tot. Hrs.

0 COST'S FOR PR-001

0 DATED 6/28/21

0 DELETE 4 TYPE R41 B' FIXTURES

0 TYEE R 41 8'F

0 A-LIGHT, ARCHE LIGHTING WORKS, AXIS, FINELITE, LUMENWERX

0 4" WIDE LED RECESSED FIXTURE BY 8' LONG
B 0 TYPE R 41 8'F -4.00 562.09 E -2248.34 2.87 E ~11.50
I 8562 1 WH-3/8-2-14-6FT SNAP CON -4.00 17.25 E -69.00 0.07 E =0, 28

0 ADD B TYPE R 41 4' FIXTURES

0 TYPE R 41 4'F

0 A-LIGHT, ARCH LIGHTING WORKS, AXIS, FINELITE, LUMENWERX

0 4" WIDE LED RECESSED FIXTURE BY 4' LONG
F 0 TYPE R 41 4'F 8.00 281.05 E 2248.39 9 iy 13.80
I 8562 1 WH-3/8-2-14-6FT SNAP CON 8.00 17,25 B 138.00 0.07 E Q.55

0 ADDED CIRCUITING
I 5540 1 OT-45Q 2 1/8D COM KO 4.00 1.36 E 5.43 0.22 E 0.87
I 5618 1 OT-4S8Q COVER BLANK 1/2KO 4.00 122.19 C 4.89 0.07 E 0.28
I 3680 20 GD-GROUND SCREW/TAIL 4.00 0.80 E 3. 22 J. 150€ 0.23
I 1844 1 EM-3/4 EMT-CONDUIT 70.00 33,68 & 93.58 Bt FE 3.62
I 1982 1 EM-3/4 SET SCREW COUP 6.00 2.07 E 12.42 0.00 C 0.00
I 2002 1 EM-3/4 SET SCREW CONN 8.00 1.33 E 10.67 B.05 C 0.64
I 3868 1 HA-3/4 MINERALLAC 14.00 55:22 C Tk 6.90 C 0.97
I 8188 3 WC-THHN-STRA #12 240.00 271.09 M 65.06 6.04 M 1.45

Regular Worksheet Page
Page Multiplier = 1

Material Multiplier = 1 .
Labor Multiplier = 1
Phase = 0 : Phase Multiplier = 1

Page is Active.

Raw Material Total = $272.05
Raw Labor Hcurs = 10.64 Hours

ABC Electric Inc.
Printout from BHSestimator (c) - BHS, Inc., Bolivar, Missouri, USA



Estimate: PR-01

Estimated by: Jeff Mohr

File: PR-01.bhs

Estimate Report

06/30/21 12:01:37 PM

Page 2

Summary Page

Raw Material Cost 220205

Material Tax 0.0000% $0.00

Material Markup 0.0000% $0.00

Material Total 2272.05

Labor Cost $753.10

Labor Tax 0.0000% 50.00

Labor Markup 0.0000% $0.00

Labor Total $753.10

Job Expense $0.00

Job Cost §1,;025.15
Overhead: 10.0000% 510Z.52

SubTotall: 81,127.67
Profit: 5.0000% $56.38

SubTotal2: $1,184.05
Markup Category Percent Dollars
Special Insurance 0.00 50.00
Performance Bond 0.00 $0.00
Taxes 0.00 $0.00
Adjustments 0.00 $0.00
Summary Markups Total: z $0.00
Quotes/Subcontract Total $0.00
Active Linked Estimates

Estimate Total: $1,184.05
Figure Used: $1,184.05

Labor/Material Ratio

= 73:

27

Square Footage Calculations Not Performed

2222

Lck

ABC Electric Inc.

Printout from BHSestimator (c) - BHS, Inc., Bolivar, Missouri, USA



CENTRAL WESTERN FABRICATORS, INC.-REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

DR Anderson Constructors

Pott CO Sheriff's Office Exp
Council Bluffs, IA

PR 01
SENT  7/7/2021

Change from Roof Joist to WF Beams

MATERIAL
Deduction of Original
Addition of New

SHOP LABOR
Deduction of Original
Addition of New

SHOP/COORDINATION DRAWINGS

FREIGHT
Deduction of Original
Addition of New

PAINT/GALVANIZE
Deduction of Original
Addition of New

SUB TOTAL

PROFIT/ADMINISTRATION 15.00%

ERECTION (Outsource)
Labor
Equipment
Sub Total
Profit/Administration 15.00%
Sub Total
CWF Mark-Up 5.00%

SUBTOTAL
TAX
GRAND TOTAL-ADD (DEDUCT)

REMARKS:

33,882 Ibs

150 hrs

24 hrs

0.00%

$ -
$ 27,109.00

7,500.00

4 AP

$ 1,800.00

500.00

4 AP

630.00

4 AP

$ 37,539.00

$ 5,630.85

43,169.85

$ 43,169.8

© P ©h P PP PP
1

Deck delivery would be December 20-24. Will need to re-schedule ASAP.

APPROVER INFORMATION:

COMPANY

NAME

DATE

(The work described above will not be performed until this form is signed and returned to CWF)



NUCOR Change Order Request

VULCRAFT/VERCD GROUP Date Issued: 7/6/2021
Better Fartners. Better Products
Better Qutcomes
Change Order Number: 1
1601 West Omaha Avenue
Norfolk, NE 68701 Vulcraft File: 056-21-0327

Phone: 402-644-8500

Project Name: POTTAWATTAMIE CO SHERIFF'S OFF

Project Location: Council Bluffs, lowa

Customer Name: CENTRAL WESTERN FABRICATORS IN Attention: Jessica

Description of Changes:
Deleted Joist.

Previous Contract Amount: $101,200.00

Add: $0.00

Deduct: $19,840.00

New Contract Amount: $81,360.00

Acknowledgement of Agreement to above changes:

Please sign and send back to zkrienert@vulcraft-ne.com
NOTE : This Change Order must be signed and returned in order to proceed with production.

This Change Order is only valid for 30 days from the date noted above.
Pricing will need to be reviewed for this Change Order beyond 30 days.



\\'!1"//

AIA Document G709 - 2018

Proposal Request

PROJECT: (name and address) CONTRACT INFORMATION: Architect’s Project Number:
11-20109-00

Pottawattamie County Sheriff's Office Contract For: General Construction Proposal Request Number: 001

Expansion

1400 Big Lake Road Date: November 26, 2019 Proposal Request Date: June 28, 2021

Council Bluffs, A 51501

OWNER: (name and address) ARCHITECT: (name and address) CONTRACTOR: (name and address)

Pottawattamie County Board of DLR Group, Inc. (an Iowa Coporation) D.R. Anderson Constructors Co.

Supervisors

227 South 6th Street 1430 Locust Street, Suite 200 7735 Irvington Rd

Council Bluffs, 1A 51501 Des Moines, 1A 50309 Omaha, NE 68122

The Owner requests an itemized proposal for changes to the Contract Sum and Contract Time for proposed modifications to
the Contract Documents described herein. The Contractor shall submit this proposal within Fourteen (14) days or notify the
Architect in writing of the anticipated date of submission.

(Insert a detailed description of the proposed modifications to the Contract Documents and, if applicable, attach or reference
specific exhibits.)

DESCRIPTION: Replace steel joist with steel beams in the addition as shown in the attachments. Modify Ceilings, ductwork and lighting
as shown in the attachments.

DRAWINGS:
ITEM NO. 1. DRAWING A3.01 - REFLECTED CEILING PLAN, LEVEL 1

A. Delete Drawing A3.01 in its entirety and substitute new Drawing as shown on Attachment No. A3.01.
ITEM NO. 2. DRAWING A10.02 - GENERAL BUILDING DETAILS

A.  Delete Drawing A10.02 in its entirety and substitute new Drawing as shown on Attachment No. A10.02.
ITEM NO. 3. DRAWING S0.1 - STRUCTURAL NOTES

A.  Delete Drawing S.01 in its entirety and substitute new Drawing as shown on Attachment No. S0.1.
ITEM NO. 4. DRAWING S0.2 - STRUCTURAL NOTES

A.  Delete Drawing S0.2 in its entirety and substitute new Drawing as shown on Attachment No. S0.2.
ITEM NO. 5. DRAWING S2.2 - ROOF FRAMING PLAN

A. Delete Drawing S2.2 in its entirety and substitute new Drawing as shown on Attachment No. S2.2.
ITEM NO. 6. DRAWING S4.2 - FLOOR FRAMING SECTIONS

A.  Delete Drawing S4.2 in its entirety and substitute new Drawing as shown on Attachment No. S4.2.
ITEM NO. 7. DRAWING S4.3 - MASONRY TYPICAL DETAILS

A.  Delete Drawing S4.3 in its entirety and substitute new Drawing as shown on Attachment No. S4.3.
ITEM NO. 8. DRAWING S5.1 — ROOF FRAMING TYPICAL DETAILS

A.  Delete Drawing S5.1 in its entirety and substitute new Drawing as shown on Attachment No. S5.1.

AIA Document G709™ — 2018. Copyright © 1993, 2001 and 2018 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of

Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was 1
produced by AIA software at 13:12:09 ET on 06/28/2021 under Order No.1199539277 which expires on 03/09/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes: (3BO9ADAG4)



ITEM NO. 9. DRAWING M1.1 - MECHANICAL FLOOR PLAN, LEVEL 1

A.  Delete Drawing M1.1 in its entirety and substitute new Drawing as shown on Attachment No. M1.1.

ITEM NO. 10. DRAWING M6.1 - MECHANICAL SCHEDULES

A. Delete Drawing M6.1 in its entirety and substitute new Drawing as shown on Attachment No. M6.1.

ITEM NO. 11. DRAWING E1.1 - LIGHTING PLAN, LEVEL 1

A.  Delete Drawing E1.1 in its entirety and substitute new Drawing as shown on Attachment No. E1.1.

THIS IS NOT A CHANGE ORDER, A CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVE, OR A DIRECTION TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK

DESCRIBED IN THE PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS.

REQUESTED BY THE ARCHITECT:
0 _
/{Z‘i{/ 57\"» »_|'|l !'f\jx-curf'fﬂf ’

Steve Burgess i i i

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

AIA Document G709™ — 2018. Copyright © 1993, 2001 and 2018 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of
Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was

produced by AIA software at 13:12:09 ET on 06/28/2021 under Order No.1199539277 which expires on 03/09/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use

only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.

User Notes:

(3B9ADAB4)

2



REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
GENERAL NOTES

R A REFLECTED CEILNG PLAN GENERAL NOTES APPLY TOALL

GELING HEIGHTS ARE NOTED ON THE REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
LE t
AL ELECTRICAL FICTURES, SPEAKERS, SHOKE AND THERMAL
DETECTORS, MECHANICAL GRLLES, SPRRKLER HEADS, ETC.
SHALLBE CENTERED BETWEEN CEILING GROS UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE SPRINKLER HEADS SHALL BE WITHIVA 3 RADIUS
CENTERED BETWEEN CELING

INACOUSTICAL CELING PANELS WITH SCORE IN THE CENTER,
‘CENTER DEVICES REFERENCED INNOTE D N ONE HALF OF THE
TILE. DO NOT LOCATE ON THE SCORE, FORAPC WITH MULTIPLE

SCORED PATTERNS, COORDINATE LOCATION WITH THE.
ARGHITECT.
PROVIDE SUSPENSION SYSTEM AROUND ELECTRICAL FIXTURES,

DLR Group

N
NN

T MEGHANIGAL GRILLES, DIFFUSERS, ETC. AT AGOUSTICAL PANEL.
CELNGS,
ALL DIVENSIONS ON REFLECTED CELING PLANS ARE ACTUAL

el el ? »ae ﬁ 'AND ARE TO THE FOLLOWNIG UNLESS NOTED OTHERIISE:
= . FACE OF FNSHED WALL
e T b FACE OF FINSHED BULKHEADS

4 o
INAREAS W
EXACT LOCATIONS OF MECHANICAL GRILLES, OF
DUGTIVORK AND ELEGTRICAL FIXTURES WITH EA
REPRESENTATIVE SUBI
ALLWALLS EXTEND TO UNDERSIOE OF DECK EXCEPT THOSE
SHOWN SHADED I WHCH G

EXTENDS M & ABOVE FINSHED CEILING. ALL WETAL STUDS
EXTEND 70 UNDERSIDE OF FLOOR OR ROOF.

2
o == ] oS =
U (G

ITH EXPOSED STRUCTURE CELINGS, COORDINATE
m S, DIFUSERS,
o

ALL GYP BOARD GELINGS AND BULKHEADS TO BE PANTED -1
UNO.

A
= e
=1t
—— REFLECTED CEILING PLAN LEGEND
EANE
i H @. [ -
i
()
L I 1] [5] o orswsomoonensmn
%ﬁ
T | APC 1
1 — 1 9.0 g |
B —_ =
=T 1 17 1
ERENi T e N
5 L
= ] =
T B I
N G
‘ D> [ -]
DD || BEE T
D) 1 — 1 J e %
i
‘ i HEE;
I I N O O B ™
T T T T T T T T T T T T O [APC-1
1 3 ] 2
, \ il i
i = ] | | o
4 I ‘ =+ T =
mm B &in || r
1 N [ [] il s
4 210 ‘ LT 1)
i 0 e = E
‘ L = ol | [HH P4
i I [ m! - MS2ME Z
i —— i N omy o)
- 1 ] pu| - v 5 oZ
o wo
5 = L%
zZ
L<
[ 8 —— T — Fa
— — == £
- : = <
shIIne =
4 A i e < o &
N ] < e CE>' B '_ O §%
H o b e '— [TH %ﬁ
Lo ol L0 O S8 Pulsfaciepg Ei S m—) Q8 ¢
= = B S % = o H
T, Ry |
[ oo . . RO Sl 12| o
5. )| (= I i
- = e | iz )
[T1%] [
: ;swxs —— i BID SET
~l e T i I et
1 e
= : : = i L J -
: A Ipri
i |
B I
g L]
g r
H 11 T
i H
< : f 2 aotosan
@ ~ A7.01 7.0
<§ REFLECTED
£ CEILING PLAN,
k] LEVEL 1

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN, LEVEL 1

o A3.01

BIM 3601/11-2010-00 Potia
612812021 10:29:44 AM




SUPPORT ANGLES. BACKERROD AND
SEESTRUCT CONTINUOUS SEALANT
EAGHSIDE

MASONRY WAL

MASONRY WALL
SEE PLAN FOR WALL TYPE

'

SUPPORT ANGLES, SEE STRUCT

VERTICAL RENFORCING
WHERE OCCURS, SEE WALL
TYPE ANDIOR AS INDICATED ON
STRUCTURAL DRAWNGS

u s SEALANT, EACH SIDE FLUSH i
AT SUPPORT ANGLES MASONRY OR PRECAST CONC WALL OPTION A WITH HORTAR JONT
SEEPLANFORWALTYPEAND 26 ®BF""— STOP HORZONTAL JONT RENFORCING EACH IO OF JONT < ,
=" MASONRY WALL GROUT CELLS FULL AS REQD
AT U AT SUPPORT ANGLES / SEE PLANFOR WALL TYPE
BACKER ROD AND Rk BOTTOM OF ROOF STRUCT FisH CELNG
coNTIUOUS ~— X v REES—¢ s
SEALANT EACH PARTITIONTOR AGHOR u OGCURS SEE WAL TIPE A ]2
SoE BOTTONOF ROOF STRUCT z ANDIOR A NDICATED ON [y H
oor—Y cs D g
X s
1 R, BAGKER ROD AND SEALANT EAGH SOF OtE soE A 354 0GR VETAL STUD BRAGIG
1 o, ONT RAKED BACK 34" [——  awoc
. CONTINUOUS BACKER SEE STRUCTURALFOR {  — -
EE PLANFOR WAL TYPE @ OPTIONB RODAND SEALANT, EACH  MASONRY CONTROL JONTS 35 XZCAMETALSTUDS @ 1
\r gt S0E
MASONRY OR PRECAST CONG WL o | ——wow
EE PLAN FOR WALL TPE AND SZE
BETWEEN SUPPORT ANGLES SEEPLANFO ° 1 USE SECURITY SEALANT WHERE ONT IS EOSED N NIATE 0CCUPED AREAS i -
PROVIOE SEGURTY SEALANT T0 10-° APF. WITHTYPICAL SEALANT ABOVE 110" AFF.

TOP OF MASONRY WALL DETAILS AT METAL ROOF DECK

(Gog/soue Tiz=re

FASTENERS AT 36" 0 MAX

BOTTON OF METAL R

£/, / RS
N

SOUND ATTENUATION

. BETWEEN SUPPORT ANGLES

TOP OF WALL DETAIL - NON-RATED CMU WALL TO
2\ ROOF STRUCTURE

USE FIRE-RATED JOIT SEALANT SYSTEN AT FIRE.RATED WALLS,
EITHER OPTION A.0R 8 MAY BE USED AT NONFRE RATED WALLS.
PTION AWILL NOT PROVIDE

REQURED.
JONT.

Ar

003/ SCALE: 117 =1

BOTTON OF METAL ROOF

DEFLECTION TRACK
NOCONNECTION BETWEEN
ANDMETAL STUD

SCALE: 117

F

ASONRY WALL CONTROL JOINT DETAILS

DEFLECTIONTRACK.
NO CONNECTION BETWEEN

BOTTOM OF METAL RODF DECK
ORFLODRCEILNG SLi8

DECKORFLOORCEILING 5148 s BLWKETSATSOUND WAL MINERALWOOL RACK. STABILIZE STUDS AT TOP WITH
N CONNECTION T STUDS | F DEFLECTION TRACK
e B e

SCRIBE TOCONFORNTO

stz supe AT P T s ee

Ry e — R CuaE D VETA STUDUALFRA LN

e DRI e cnouss e BT JRECAIIC =,
DGE CLIP AT EACH STUD 'SEE PLAN FOR TYPE AND SIZE

[P —

SEERrOR NP MO S2E SSEMAITE g srmuronnETs SBSEMAIE g e s s

‘SOUND ATTENUATION BLANKETS NUVBER OF LAYE
(SOUND BATT INSULATION)
WHERE OCCURS, SEE WALL TYPE

O TOP OF WALL SLIP CONNECTION - OPTION A

RS (SOUND BATT INSULATION)
WHERE OCCURS, SEE WALL TYPE

NUMEER OF LAYERS

® TOP OF WALL SLIP CONNECTION - OPTION B

L JOIST AND METAL ROOF DECK

‘SEE ROOMFINH SCHEDULE. OWB, SEE WALLTYPE

TAL STUD WALL TOP OF WALL DETAILS AT STEE
Gos/ scae 510

MU, SEE PLANFOR
TYPE (T¥P)

WALLTYPE

(GWB.- SEE WALL TYPES ON PLANS
FORNUMBER OF LAYERS

s
7

FINSH CELING
S SCHEDULED

b

EXSTNG METALSTUD
WALL JACK STUD AND.

GROUTFLL IETAL STUDS - SEE WALL TYPES. REQURED
Jo——— [ somencr ONPLANS FOR S2E MD OAUGE
WALL SEE FLOO STRIP ON ONE SIDE 'SOUND ATTENUATION BLAN METAL TRIM PIECE TYP
PLAN FOR WALL TYPE CONTINUOUS ACOUSTICAL SEALANT
eyl
SN gt | e,
e or { . . ELECTROA DEvees e
Pl > wsowr e (i SEAL AL ELECTRICAL KVOGKOUTS
Fre exmuousen 1~ sroe orz son casio e mo anaersTUD
Sl vy REeATER0n oSt FURRED WAL NOTE: NOBACKTOBACK DEVEES
RSRorEs v S5 cowtrol ety ERE s see
SEMI-RECESSED CABINET FOR WAL TYPE BASE AS SCHEDULED.
S 'CASING BEAD AND CONT
S
S
ores L socennon SEmir SEAT AT R L CONTNUOUS ACOUSTEA ST
PR PR RATED CHBINETS AT SEMRECESSE0 CABNETS RoSEacan o TheRt bocirs ek
THERLOCHED WA PRE FATED WL NotoRTY
2 VR DUENSONS D AL SUPPORTRECUREAENTS 4 1S5k sucruen g renorn ox1
e REaURENENTS Eoumo.onr NOTE USEFRE RATED I SEALAT AT FE ANDORSHOKERATED ALLS
3 T0P GF CABNETS T 5. AP, UNLESSNOTED OTHERSE hici

=\ CAVITY WALL CONTROL JOINT (CJ)

TYP. CONTROL JOINT AT METAL STUD WALL

SOUND WALL DETAIL

TYP FIRE CABINET DETAILS
SCHE 112 =13

002

CONTROL JOINT LOGATIONS

TOPTRACK

CRIPPLE STUDS ABOVE HEADER
TOP TRACK - SEE NOTE BELOW.

—
T HEADER - SEE STRUCTURAL

STIFFENER STUDS - SEE
" STRUCTURAL

TYPICAL METAL | BEARING STUD - SEE STRUCTURAL

STUDS AND STIFFENER STUDS
oR

BOTH SDE
OPENNGS

f00) SCALE: 1127 197

GWBMETAL STUD WALL -
SEE PLAN FOR WALLTYPE

DOOR FRAME BELOW
CONTROL JONT

——
L

FIRST LAYER AND CONTROL JONT

@TYP METAL STUD FRAMING AT DOOR OPENING

+\ TYP METAL STUD FRAMING AT DOOR OPENING

OTYP GWB CONTROL JOINT ABOVE

00z SCE. 117+

INTERSECTION TO MASONRY/PRECAST WALL B

03/ SCALE | S0z,

SCHLE 112710

=5\ EVIDENCE LOCKER OPENING JAMB
1003/ SCALE: 11

GWB BULKHEAD
&

woe 2

SOTTOM TRAGK 22

/ [P — STFFENER STUDS - 58 STRUCTURAL i
2N CLEAR SPAGE BETWEEN s

crere LAYER GB LOCATINS gs

MAINTAI 112 CLEAR SPACE AT 38

0
[T
w
o
L
I
2}
>
—
P4
2
Q
&)
u
2
[
<
z
[
—
O
o

z
o
@
4
<
o
x
i
m
o
[T
L
o]

i s

112010800

GENERAL
BUILDING
DETAILS

2010800 Pottawattanie Co Sherifs/11-20109-00_PCSO_AR 2020,

A10.02

[p2812021 10:33:08 AM

B 3601/




BIM 360:/11-20109.00 Potawatiamie Co Shers/11-20108.00_PCSO_ST_2020.vt

612812021 90724 AM

STRUCTURAL NOTES
GENERALNOTES

cooe:

INTERNATIONAL BULDING CODE, 015 EDTION

=
1. THE DRAWNGS REPRESENT THE FINISHED STRUCTURE, NOT THE METHOD OF
CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL WEASUR v

ST B0 i ARCATECT ENGNEER WAL NOT MOLUE REVEN OF TESE TEUS.

2 CONTRACTOR 5 TO ESTABLISH AND VERFFY OPENINGS AND NSERTS FOR ITENS TO BE.
INSTALLED 8y OTHER TRADES PRIOR TO SUBMITTAL OF SHOP DRAWINGS AND
CONSTRUCTION.

3. CONSTRUCTION ATERAL AND EQUIPMENT PLACED ON FRAVED CONSTRUCTIONS
‘SHALL BE SUCH THAT THE LORD DOES NOT EXCEED THE DESIGN LVE LOAD OF THE
CONSTRUCTION. PROVIDE SHORING OF CONSTRUCTIONS WHERE NEGESSARY FOR LOADS.

DETALS THAT ARE NOTED AS "TYP. ON DETAL TITLES ARE TO BE APPLED TO THE
PROJECT CONSTRUCTION AS GENERAL CONSTRUCTION HETHODS UNLESS NOTED
(OTHERWISE, THESE DETALS ARE NOT CUT AT ALL LOCATIONS THEY OCCUR AND MAY NOT BE
CUT AT ALL WHERE NO SPECIFIC DETALS ARE SHOWN CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO.
SIILAR CONDITIONS ELSE WHERE ON THE PROJECT.

5. DONOT SCALE DRAWNGS

THESE NOTES SHALL SUPPLEMENT THE PROJECT SPECFICATIONS. WHICH SHALL BE
RerERRED O FORADOIIONAL REGURENENTS.

SPECFICATIONS 1 MOST STANGENT REGUREUENTS SHALL GOVERI, UVLESS VERIED
(OTHERIISE BY THE ARCHITECT AND ENGINEER IN WRITIG.

5 THESE DOGUMENTS SHALL NOT BE GONSTRUED AS STAND-ALONE DOCUVENTS,
CONTRAGTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH AL OTHER CONSULTANTS WORK.

9. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED FOR USE OF SHOP
DRAWINGS SUBMITTALS OR ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT BY DLR

0 ToTHESE
DRAWINGS, THESE DRAWINGS ARE INTENDED FOR PRELIINARY PURPOSES ONLY AND.
SHALL NOT BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION.

DESIGN DEAD LOADS:
ROOF: 25PSF

DESIGN LVE LoADS:
ROGE 2075 REDUCBLE N ACCOROMCE T 15112

CONCRETE REINFORCEMENT:
1, FENFGRGNS STEELSHAL B AST 615, GRADE 6. RENFORGNG STEELTOSEWELDED
SHALL B ASTH A7

2 CONCRETE 1
UNLESS OTHERIISE NOTED ON DETALS:
2. CONCRETE CAST AGANST AND PERMANENTLY EXPOSEDTOEARTH:
b FORMED CONCRETE EXPOSED TO EARTH OR WEATHER:
B RGER r
5 BARS AND SUALLER: Tz

1485, WALLS, AND JOISTS
#14AND #16 BARS: 11
A

PRUARY REINFORCEVENT: 7
TEES, STIRRUPS, SPRALS: s

3., FENORCING AR SPLCES SHAL 6 NACCORDANCE WITH THE REQURBUENTS O 1
318-14 AND THE RENFORGING SPLICE LENGTH TABLE SHOWN ON THE DRAWNGS. PROVIDE.
has's U St

4, ALL RENFORCING SHALL BE PROPERLY CHAIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR, SECURE ALL
REFOCENENT MPUACE PR 10 CONCHETE FOLR PR SFECFIGATONS. BONOT T
STICK REINFOCEMENT OR ENBEDED ITEMS INTO CONCRETE.

‘CONCRETE MASONRY UNITS (CU}:
1. THE MINIUI 26 DAY COVPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF THE CONCRETE MASONRY UNTS
SHAL 8 2E00PSION T T AREA PHOVGNG ASTRLCTLRALDESION COPRESSIVE
NGTH OF 2,000 PS|PER THE INTERNATIONAL BULDING CODE. SECTION 2105 1

SPEGFICATIONS FOR NASONRY STRUCTURSS (145 S2AC1550 TASCE 6 ABLE 2

HE MM 5081 CONPREGEE STREUGTHOF THE LAY ASOWRYLNTS SHAL 8-
5350751 O\ THE NET AREA PROVDNG A STRUGTURAL DESIGN CONPRESVE STREN
OF 1500 PSI PER THE oo secton 2051 SPECFIOATONS FoR
MASONRY STRUCTURES (TWS 802/ACI 530.1ASCE § TABLE 1

MORTAR SHALLBETYPE § I ACCORDRNGE T T INTESNATIONALBULONG CODE.

sTaucr
HAaRCATOR & nuwmmws ACUMIPED FASRATOR AT PARTGRATES I T
A\sc SUATTYSERTCATON MAND IS ANAISC CERTIFED PLANT,
oM oV e T G SEcTin
JAND APPROVED BY THE LOCAL BUILDING DEPARTWENT AISC.
cEknﬂ:chsHALLBEsHW ARy O\ T SHOP DRANAIGS TOAVOD S0P
DRAWNGS BEING REJECTEL

2_ALL COMPLETE JONT PENETRATION WELDS SHALL BE ULTRASONIC TESTED BY THE
INSPECTION AGENCY.

3 STRUGTURAL STEEL SHALL MEET ASTW AJS UNLESS NOTED OTHERVWISE STRUCTURAL
el MEET

SECTION 21032, HORTAR PROPORTIONS, USING CEM
(HASONRY CEVENT IS NOT ACCEPTABLE)

& INIUM 25DY COPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF GROUT SHALL BE THE GREATER OF 2000
o OR THE COUPRESS e STRENGTH O THE VASOIRY TS TESTEDPER ASTIC 1073
S OF 24 o0

RANME
(GROUT AL AVEA

INGHES, AS DETERVINED BY ASTM 1611, NS HAS A VISUAL STABLITY INDEX (VS) LESS

THAN OR EQUAL TO 1. AS DETERMINED N ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C1611, APPENDX X .

4. STEEL TUBE SHALL MEET AST ASO0 GRADE 8.
5. STEEL PIPE SHALL MEET ASTM AS3 TYPE E OR'S.

BOLTS AT STEEL TOSTEEL COWECTONS SHAL S NCH OMUETER ST 25
DEFIED Y NSO UNLESS OTERISE

OLTENED T T VM PRETENSON FOR FULY T-TENED BOLTS B ONE F THE

5 HALL BE ASTM AG15, GRADE 60 i
BE WELDED SHALL BE ASTM AT, GRADE 0.

5_HORZONTAL JONT
AR TP, GALVANEED AT 1ACHES NCENTER LNLESS THERWIE OTED O

5 LPAL LEAST ONE FULL PLAN, INFORCI NON-CAVITY MULTIWYTHE
L Tose
6 MECHANCAL o A Muﬁrmzmsmumnsnun
SR GACH RoMIDUA CONGRET X TO AVE THEFOLLOIING PROPERTES 1, MU SONDEAN SENFORONG SULL B 2 1S D IDESCND SIS 0
(2)# N 12" WIDE BOND BEAMS. BOND BEAM REINFORCING SHALL BE CONTINUOUS THROUGH
s oo montre e WG caco IONTS BLGEPT AONTED O LA MASENRY WAL CPENNG DAL
5 corteronsrenoeoc " somr o e
: e LENGTHS FOR HASONRY RENFORCEUENTSHALBE 72 TWES THE
¢ muswooows  Coiomey om0 o REEONEAG S DAVETER LGS VOTES STHERGE
¢ oumpEscassow)  lowes WToo0E © & FROVIDE 801D BEAVSATTOP D BOTTO OF ALLWALLS, ATROOFS STRLCTURAL
) 00K MG AL SO O DRATNGS
TR S wr oom o

(ORUALWEGHT CONCRETE UNT HEGHT = 1570F)
IGHT WEIGHT CONCRETE (UNIT W al

1 1 AR ENTRANED CONCRETEAT AL EXTEROR CONDITONS NCLUONG SHALLOMW

FOUNDATIONS.

10, REINFORCING SHALL BE HELD N PLACE PRIOR TO GROUTING WITH WIRE POSITIONERS
PLACED AT INTERVALS NOT EXCEEDNG 192 BAR DIETERS NOR 10 FEET. PROVIDE
POSIONERS AT RENFORCIG SPLICES.

11, VERTEAL B AsFoLL THE

2
EXCEEDNG * PRIOR TO ADDING ADMIXTURE AND NOT EXCEEDNG & AT PLACENENT

5 THE LUNP SHALL NOT 8E
PERVITTED

4. SUBSTITUTION OF FLYASH FOR PORTLAND CEMENT N SLABS ON GRADE AND STRUCTURAL
SLABS SHALL NOT BE PERMITED.

WITH EXCEPTION OF DRILLED PIERS AND COLUMNS, ALL CONCRETE SHALLBE

pnovumum FOR AMAXIUM ALLOWABLE UNIT SHRINKAGE OF 0.04% WEASURED AT 28
R CURING NLIUE WATER 5 DETERMNED Y ASTI 16T USING AR STORAGE

LOADS IN ACCORDANCE WITH INTERNATION
HCLIONG A CHUPTER T OFASGE T KCLIONG DRFT sNaw LOADS,
- Py

T MEGHEALROONS)

R cATEoRvin
BASC WD SPEE, - 120K

SEISMIC LOAD:
SEISMIC DESIGN 1S N ACCORDANGE WITH IBC, RISK CATEGORY PER TABLE 16045 15
CATEGORYI,

044

5010050
DESIGN CATEGORY

R=40.00225 CA=40 WTERVEDATE RENFORCED MASONRY SHEAR WALLS
LATERAL LOAD RESISTANCE SYSTEA

A Lonb SYeTEMCOnTS . FLOORROOF DAPHRAGHS TRAKSFERRNG
LATERAL LOADS TO MASONRY SHEAR

THESTESL FrANG FLOCRRCOF DAHRAGIS AND SHEAR AL, CONTRACTD
PROVIE TEVPO! NECESEARY 0 PROVR SUPPORT OF FANNG NTL
ALATTACHMENTS AKE COUPLETE ICLIONG STRUCTURA STEE STRUCTORAL STEELTO
DIAPHRAGMSHEAR WALLS, AND DIAPHRAGH TO SHEAR WALLSBRACED FRAVES.

Foun
1 FuuNnmoN DESGNIS BASED N GEOTECHUAL WVESTINTIONPERFORUEDBY
TeR {TED APRIL 15, 2120 A COPY OF THE G

FRESTIATON BEFORT & MCLUDED I T PROJECT SECCI GATIONS. BASED OV THE
(GEOTECHNICAL REPORT, THE FOLLOWNG HAS BEEN ASSUMED:

MINMUM FROST DEPTH 35"
/ABLE END SOIL BEARING PRESSURE 0'T0 5.6°= opsF

© ALOMELE D SOL BEANGPRESSURE TS TO 0 NeSiecT

-+ ALoWBLE D SoLsEARG RS 1500p5F

© aLowsa smsmmemssuwz:wvom, 3500955 6,500 ¥

(NCREASES NARL i o
© ALLONALSLE SN FRCTION NCOWPRESSION T TO = 0757
+ ALV SKNFRCTONNCOUPRESSNGTO38 10 150 Jmpsr
: IPRESSION 15.0°T0 3

T LOMALBLE SN FRETON N COMPRESSON 8.0 T0 80
(NGREASES LNEARLY T OEPTH)

0PsF
BOPSF - G50 PSE

2 SUBSRADE SHALLSEPREPAGED I ACCORDACE I THEPROIET SPECICATONS
e FAURARZE HUSELE T THE GEGTECHNCAL REFORT.
PR To SPECICATONS SECTON 12000 EARTAHOUN

3. ALLFOUNDATION WALLS ARE DESIGNED TO BE RESTRARED I THE COMPLETED
STRUGTURE, UNLESS OTHER WISE NOTED. CONNECTING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE

R ROOF DIAPHRAG AND THER
ATTAGHNENTS, PRIOR TO BACKFILLING WALL

DRILLED PIERS
P RLLED PERS SHALL EXTEND NTO SUTABLE NATERIAL CAPABLE WEETIVG GEOTECHNIGAL
REQUIREMENTS AND AS NOTED ON THE DRANINGS. HEAVY DUTY DRLL BTS MAY BE NEEDED
TOSTAL PERS T0 FHAL BEARIG ELEVATION D SOULD BE ANTIPATED N THE
CONTRAGT PRICE. SEE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT FOR BORINGS

HoLES 12HOURS OF HoLEs
WILLNEED T0 BE CLEANED, REBAR CAGE NSTALLED, AND NSPECTED PRIOR T0 PLACNG.
ETE.

3 HOLES SHALL B2 DRILLED TO A PLUMBNESS TOLERANGE OF 2 INANY 10-0" LENGTH
TOLERANCE FOR PLAN LOGATION SHALL BE A MAXNUM OF § PERCENT OF THE PIER DIAVETER,

4. DRILED PIERS SHALL BEAR ON MACHINE CLEANED, NSPECTED SOL STRATA

5_THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER TESTING LABORATORY SHALL VERIFY SHAFT DIAVETER,
DEPTH, BEARING STRATA, AND PROPER CLEANNG OF INSTALLATION.

5 REBAR CAGE POSITION N CENTER OF SHAFT SHALL BE HELD IN PLACE BY MEANS OF
WAGON WHEEL" REBAR POSTIONERS OR EQUVALENT,

ONCRETE SHALL BE PLACED IN SHAFT USING A CONTINUOUS TREMIE PIPE TO AVOIl
STRKING REBAR CAGE AND SHAFT SIDES DURING PLACEMENT. MAXINUM HEIGHT OF FREE-FALL
SHALL B 10-0°. THE TOP 5-0° OF DRILLED PIERS SHALL BE NECHANICALLY VIERATED.

‘CONTRAGTOR SHOULD DETERMINE THE NEED FOR RENOVABLE STEEL GASNGS TO
MANTAN DRLLED PIER SHAPE N UNSTABLE SO STRATAAND INCLUDE COST NTHE
TPRICE SEE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT FOR BORNG LOGS.

GRADE :

RADE BEAN RENFORGING SHALL B SPLICED ONLY AT MIDSPAN AND BOTTOM GRADE

BEAM REINFORCING SHALL BE SPLICED ONLY AT SUPPORTS, SIDE BARS VAY BE SPLICED.
REVER CONVENIENT.

2. TOP GRADE BEAM REINFORCING SHALL TERMINATE AT TEE AND CORNER INTERSECTIONS
Hmi STANDARD SDEGREE HOOK AL RENFORCING AT NTERSECTIONS SHALL XTEN0TO
THE FAR FAGE OF THE INTERSECTING GRADE |

3 THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER
PRORTOCONSTRUGTION AIB YPCALY STALLOCCUR TN THECENTER 480 0F The

ONSTRUCTION JOINT SURFACES SHALL BE ROUGHENED AND TREATED TO
IPROVESOND N ACCOROMNGE W THE SPECFICATIONS

. PLANE

5. SIDES OF GRADE BEAMS SHALL BE FORMED. IF EXCAVATIONS ARE MADE NEATLY AND.
'GRADE BEAM WIDTHS ARE INCREASED A MNIUM OF TWO NCHES, SDES AY BE CAST
AGAINST THE EARTH CUT. THE ADDITIONAL WIDTH IS NECESSARY TO PROVIDE THE PROPER.
RENFORCNG COVER FOR THS CONSTRUGTION

ON GRADE AND ELEVATED SLABS:
1. SUBGRADE SHALL BE PREPARED N ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJE CT SPECIFICATIONS.

IALL READ AND FAMILARIZE HISELF WITH THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.
REFER TO SPECFICATIONS SECTION 312000 EARTH OVING.

L SLABS SHOWN ON STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS REQUIRE RENFORCING, UNLESS
TERNISE CALLED OUT ON DRAVNS. RENFORCE SLABS W 648 W3 12| WELDED WIRE
RENFORCING.

3 SHALLNoT ROUTE ALL PPING AND

5 ARE NOT DESIGNED TO WITHSTAND TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION LOADS,
Kolloe o ANDSESHI. CONTRACTORS ENGNEER I RESPONSILE R OESGNOF
TEVPORARY SHOR!

BACKFLLING AGANST FOUNDATION WALLS WHERE GRADE 1S PRESENT ON BOTH SIDES
IALL BE PERFORED SUCH THAT THE DIFFERENCE IN SOIL HEIGHT ON EACH SDE DOES
NOT EXCEED 2 FEET.

6
FOUNDATIONS.
B EXCAVATIONS

_NEVW FOOTINGS LOCATED INWEDIATELY ADJACENT TO EXISTING FOOTINGS SHALL BE
FOUNDED AT THE SANE ELEVATIONS AS THE EXSTING FOUNDATIONS UNLESS OTHERVISE
NOTED. UNDER NO CRCUMSTANCE SHALL THE EXISTNG FOOTINGS BE UNDERMINED BY
NEW CONSTRUCTION.

CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION:
1. CONCRETE WORK SHALL
ACI3tE

ROVDE NTAL AND VERTICAL
PO EDGES S CEPT CONCRETE TORPNG SLABS. ROV MATERSTOPE FOAALL
CONSTRUCTION JONTS BELOW WATER TABLE AND WHERE INTERIOR SLAB-ON-GRADE IS
BELOW EXTERIOR GRADE.

3

4 CONTROL (CONTRACTION OR CONSTRUCTION) JONTS SHALL BOUND ALL CONGRETE
‘SLABS ON GRADE A5 SHOWN ON THE DRAWNGS

& CONC. BLOCK. (i#s@zeroc
12, PROVIDE BOND BEAVS AT 4570C (MAXIMUM) VERTICALLY WHERE STACK BOND CHMU
WALLS OCCUR.(REFER TO ARCHTECTURAL DRAWINGS)

13, PROVIDE VERTICAL REIFORCING AT JAME QPENNIGS, ENDS AND CORNERS OF ALL
LS MO EACH SO OF CONTROLONTS. SPECAL AU RENFORCHG, HERE
REQUIRED, IS CALLED OUT ON THE P

14, VERTICAL RENFORCNG REQURED BY THESE NOTES OR SHOWN ON THE FOUNDATION
PLANS SHALL EXTEND FROM FOUNDATION TO TOP OF WALL UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

{5 ELECTRIALPANELS CONDUTS P, FRE EXINGUSHER CABNETS, 10, ARE Tose
OGATED 5O AS NOT T0 INTERFERE WITH RENFORCED ANDIOR GROUTED CELLS.
DU BASSING HORZONTALLY TROLGH WALLS SALL B SIEEVED, UMM SPACNG
OF SLEEVES SHALL BE THREE DIAVETERS,

5 AL ADIACENT!

17, GROUT SHALL BE MECHANICALLY CONSOLIDATED IN AMANNER TO FLL THE GROUT
SPAGE AND RECONSOLIDATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS FOR MASONRY
BULDINGS ACI 530 1ASCE T S50, SECTION 3 5€.

18, PROVIDE GROUT AND MASONRY UNIT TESTING PRIOR TO AND DURING CONSTRUCTION N,
'ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE.

15, TESTGLASORATORY, NACCOROACE WITHBC EQUEEMENTS SHALL NSPECT
RENFORCENENT PLACEMENT, GROUT SPAGES AND GROUTING OPERATION.HORTAR FINAL
FROUECTION NI T GROUT SAACE SHALL NOT SXCeeD 12 i

20, WHERE STONE IS VENEERED TO MASONRY, PROVIDE TRUSS TYPE (GALV,) JONT
RENFORCNG AT 16 NCHES ON CENTER WITH "EYES".

EXCEEDS 24-U". REGARDLESS OF JONT LAYOUT SHOWN ON ARCHITECTURAL DRANINGS,
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT PLACE CONTROL JONTS ABOVE /BELOW OPENNGS OR
WITHIN SCHEDULED JAM EXTENTS. CONTROL JOINTS SHALLNOT JOG HORZONTALLY.,
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

22 SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS WITH PLANS AND ELEVATIONS CLEARLY NDICATING REBAR
$2€ SPACNG Ui LEIGIIS LNTELS JAUBS CONTROLLONTLOCATONS FOOTIG, S48
AADROOFELEVATNS, WAL PEETRATONS VI DNENSNS B0 B L

10 FOR REVEW D APPROVAL N ADOIIONTO Y OTHER REGURBMENTS USTED
INSPECIFICATIONS.

'REFER T0 ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS FOR ALL NON-LOAD BEARING CU WALLS AND.
szmms»s FOLLOWS ULESS OTHERWSE HOTED
(8@
hagees
L CMU WALL OPENINGS REQUIRE LINTELS AS DEFIVED IN THE “TYPICAL MASONRY
LINTEL DETALI SCHEDULE "
REFER TO TYPICAL DETALS FOR MASONRY DETALS AND REQUREMENTS NOT
SHOWN INSECTIONS OR PLANS
CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND REPLACE WALL AT HIS COST I WALL IS FOUND TO
o CONSTRUCTED WITHOLT REBAR POSTIONERS.

26, ALLCU LOAD BEARNG WALLS REQUIRE LEVEL B SPECIAL NSPECTION PER [C
SECTON 054, D SHAL F EGIAL ISPECTED FOR RENFORCIG PACENENT, S22
POSITIONERS, AND LAP LENGTHS PRIOR TO POURA

7._ANCHOR BOLTS IN CONCRETE OR MASONRY SHALL BE 34NCH DIAMETER ASTH F1554
(GRADE 55, WELDABLE, LNLESS NOTED OTHERIISE.

&_FIELD BOLTING INSTALLATION SHALL BE INSPEGTED IN ACCORDANGE WITH THE BULDING
CODE AND THE AISC MANUAL

ALL WELDING SHALL CONFORM TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE AMERICAN WELDING.
SOGETY GODE AWS DL.1. ELECTRODES SHALL MATCH BASE METALS AS SPECFIED I EC.
ALLWELDING OF ASTH AT0G REINFORCING STEEL TO STRUGTURAL STEEL SHALL BE N
AGCORDANGE WITH AVWS D1 4 USING E70 ELEGTRODES,

10, THE TESTING LABORATORY SHALL VISUALLY INSPECT ALL FIELD WELDING ALL
COMPLETE PENETRATION WELDS SHALL BE TESTED AND CERTIFED BY AN INDEPENDENT
TESTING LABORATORY.

1. ALBoL NCHOR
ETC) SHALLBE INSTALLED WITH STEEL WASHERS,

12, ALL WELDS SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS SHALL BE SHOP WELDS UNLESS NOTED
OTUERYSE CONTRACTOR AY SUSSTIUTEFELDWELDS FOR 0P HELDSATH
DISCRETION SHOP DRAWINGS SHALL CLEARLY NOTE SHOP AND FIELD WEL

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RETAIN AN PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER LICENSED IN THE STATE

WHCH THE PROJECT IS LOCATED T DESIGN ALL STEEL CONNECTIONS NOT FULLY DETAILED

N THE DRAWINGS. CONNECTION DESIGN CALCULATIONS BEARING THE SEAL AND

SIGNATURE OF THE ENGINEER RESPONSIELE FOR THEIR PREPARATION SHALL BE SUBNITTED
HE SHOP DRAWNG SUBNITTAL

14. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE STABLITY OF THE BULDING SYSTEM AT ALL
TIES DURING THE ERECTION PROCESS. CONTRAGTOR SHALL CONSIDER EFFECTS FROM
WIND, SEISMIC, AND OTHER LOADING DURNG CONSTRUCTION.

5 usTAN

NOTED,WHERENO REACTION ASEEEN PROVDED, THE CONECTONCAPACIY SHALLNOT
N ONE HALF THE MAXIVUIM FACTORED UNIFORMLOAD LISTED IN THE AISC-

CONSTRUCTIN MANALFOR THE GVEN SPat

16 AL
BOLTS.
17, CONNEC
PURPOSES ONLY.

15 COOROIATE T AL OTHER TRAOES WHCH STEEL NTERUCTS, TS NCLUDES 80T 'S
NOTLATEDTO COORONATNG WITH WASORY PRECAST CONCRETE CAST At PLACE

O VETAL OECK SUPPLERS. WHERE MSRLGWIENT O SEEL
CONNECTIONSDUE MPROPER CODRDIATION GCCURS, THE CONTRACTOR
ERONEER UICERSED N THE STATE WHOHTUE PROJECT 5 OCATED 0 PRODLCE AREPAR
AND SUBMIT THE RePAR DETA W CALCUATONS TOTHE ENGNEEROF RECORDFOR

RIORTO NSTALLA
COMPOSITE BEAN SHEAR CONECTOR STu0S:
s HALL BE JU-NCH DIANETER X LENGTH SHOWN ON PLANS, WITH A FIVAL

STUDS S &

ENGTHNOT LESS T DEPTH OF DECK PLUS 15 COUFORING To WS D1 1 PROVDE
S STUDS AT 20 O HAHOM POR BEAVS AL BEWLS SUPPORAS SLAB HTHOUTA
DESIGNATED STUD QUANTTY.

2 HERE
FORABEAN IS INDICATED ON THE PLAN BY ONE NUMBER, STUDS SHALL BE PLACED
SYMMETRICALLY WITH RESPECT T0 THE BEAM CENTER LINE WITH 112 OF THE STUDS ON
EACH HALF OF THE BEAW, WHERE NUVBER OF STUDS 1S NDICATED BY MORE THAN ONE
NUMBER, PLACE THE NUMBER OF STUDS INDICATED 8Y EAGH NUVBER UNFORVLY IN THAT
PORTION OF THE BEAN.

3. STUD PLACENENT WHEN DECK VALLEYS ARE PERPENDICULAR TO BEAM:

. PLAGE ONE STUD N DECK VALLEYS, LNIFORVLY ALONG THE BEAW OR PORTION OF
BEAUNDEATED CENTERED O(ER THE SEAM VD I THE REQURED NUMBER O STDS 5.
R O DECK VALLEYS ADD STUDS AS REQUIRED 70 PROVIDE A
UM STUD SEACG O 2. I 1 RECURED NOMBER O 1% EXCEEDS THE
NBER OF ECK VALLEVS, S FOLLOWNGNOTE

MENTHE REQURED NMBER O STUDS EXCEE0S THE NBER oFOECKVALLEYS,
CKUALEYS UNFORULY ALONS THEBEAl ORPORTION 0F Sl
NEIATED N THE REGURED NSER O STUDS S AEACHED
JRED N A EGK VALLEY, PLACE T STUDS | 12 £ACH S8 OF T BERWES

4. STUD PLACEMENT WHEN DECK VALLEYS ARE PARALLEL TO BEAM

GENTER THE STUDS OVER THE WEB AND PROVIDE AAXMUN SPACING OF 20 ANDA
MUV SPACIG OF 12 F THE REQUIRED NUMBER OF STUDS EXCEEDS THE NUMBER OF
STUDS PLACED AT ASPACIG OF 4 11, SEE FOLLOWING NOTE.

5. JHENTHE REQURED KUNGER OF STUDS EXCEEDS AT AN SE PLACEDAT 17
PLACE ASECK ARTING AT THE PONT NEAREST THE END OF
THESEAN ONTI T REGUREDNUMBER OF STUDS 15 REACHED WHEN WO STUSS ARE

REQUIRED, PLACE STUDS 1 12" EACH SIDE OF THE BEAM WEB CENTERLINE

5 THUS (+1)
CAVBER OF 1 NCH

STEEL DECK:
1. STEEL DECK AND ACCESSOCRES SHALL B FROM STEEL CONFORMIG TO ASTH AT008
OR ASTM 4653 ALL METAL DECKING SHALLBE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STEEL DECK
INSTITUTE SPECIFICATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

2. ROOF DECK SHALL HAVE A MNINUI YEELD STRENGTH FY

ksl
5. COMPOSITE DECK SHALL HAVE A MU YIELD STRENGTH,FY = 0KS!

4L STEELDECKALL KAVE ONE CONT O MAMUFACTURERS STANDARDPRMER PANT
UNLESS OTHERWISE 01

HRCHTEGTURAL ORANINGS THAT EQUIE SFA APPLED FREPROOFING 108 ADHERED
O THE METAL DECK. AT SUCH LOCATIONS, HOT DIP GALVANLZE DECK IN ACCORDANCE WITH
ASTM ABS3 WITH LINMIUI COATING OF G30, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5 COMPOSITE DECK SHALL BE 20 GAGE MINIMUI AS FABRICATED BY UNTTED STEEL DECK
OR APPROVED EQUAL UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. REFER TO DRAWINGS FOR OTHER.
REQURENENTS.

6. DECK WELDING SHALL COMPLY WITH THE BULDING CODE AND AW D1.3 USING ETOXX
ELECTRODES.

7, 00" DECK AL BE TIACHED O SUPPORTIG STRUCTURALENGERS ToRESIT

S5 o ITTACH DECK AT
SERMETER 1O EET O EXCEED T MNMUM FACTORY WUTOAL REQUIRLHENTS
DESIGNATED BY THE ARCHITECT WHERE APPLICABLE.

. CONPOSTE DECK SHAL B ATTAGHED TO SUPPORTING STRUCTUSAL HEVGERS By 55
PUDDLE WELDS PLACE DECK RB OR 12 INCHES ON CENTER WAX, DEPENDING O
T DECK ORINTATION RELATVE T0 THE SUCPORTNGHENERS

POST-NSTALLED ANCHORS:
1. POSTNST: THE DRAMING

2_CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAI APPROVAL FROM ENGINEER OF RECORD PRIOR T0 USING
POST. INSTALLED ANCHORS FOR MISSING OR MISPLAGED GAST-N -PLACE ANGHORS.

3. CARE SHALL BE GIVEN

ANGHORS SHALL BE INSTALLED PER THE MANUFACTURER' PRINTED INSTALLATION.
STRUCTONS P ADIcE EVALUATON REPORTS CORRESPONDIG T0 Tl AVHOR
STALLANCHORS ATKOT LE65 THAN MU EDGE OSTANGES RIDIOR SPACHGS
INOICATED I THE MANUFACTURER'S LITERA

5. SUBSTITUTION REQUESTS, FOR PRODLCTS OTHER THAN THOSE LISTED BELOW. SHALL BE

BY THE BULDING CODE. PRODUCT ICC-ES CODE REPORTS SHALL BE INCLUDED WITH
SUBMITTAL PACKAGE.

5. CONTNUOUS SPECIAL INSPECTION SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR ALL ADHESIVE
ANGHORS. PERIODIC SPECIAL INSPECTION SHALL BE PERFORMED FOR MECHANGAL
ANGHORS.

ANCHORS SHALL HAVE EMBEDVENT NOTED ON THE DRAWINGS OR EMBEDENT AS.
RECOMUENDED BY MAWLFACTURER WHERE NO ENGEDUENT S SHOWM, NSTALL N
ACCORDANGE WITHMANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

OMTTED N RIBS THAT HAVE SHEAR STUD CONNECTORS. SIDE LAPS BETWEEN ADJACENT
UNITS ARE TO BE ATTACHED WITH $10 TEK SCREWS AT 3 NCHES MAXAUM (WNMUM 2
SGREWS PER SPAN)

5, PROVIDE 2INCHES MINIUM BEARING AT DECK SUPFORTS,

12,24 DECKSHAL B CONTHUOUS OVER SIS LESS OTHERWSE NOTED. Wik,
PANCOIDION.ECK GAGE

e s
P THE DL SURPUED WEETS OR EXCEEDS THE REGUIRED CLEAR SRS FOR T
N LE

T AND SHALL POST THE ALL
ONTHE SHOP DTAVINGS FLOCATONS EXSTON HE PROJCT T

LLOWABLE CONSTRUCTION CLEAF JER SHALL INCREASE THE DECK
THICONESS ASNECESSARY TO ACCOUODATE ACTUALSPAN CONGITON

11, COMPOSITE DECK DESIGN S INTENDED TO BE UNSHORED UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
TS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBLITY T0 CHECK ALL DECKIG CONDITIONS T0
DETERMIE IF THE DECKNG HAS SUFFICIENT STRENGTH AND STIFFNESS FOR
CONSTRUCTION LOADING.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ARRANGE AN ANCHOR ANUFACTURER'S REPRESENTATIVE TO

CONFRUATION THAT ALL OF THE CONTRACTORS PERSONNEL WHO INSTALL ANCHORS ARE
SRANED PROR T0 1 COUMENCEMENT OF MSTALLNG MCHORS

10, INSTALLATION OF ADHESIVE ANGHORS IN HORZONTAL TO VERTICALLY OVERHEAD
ORENTATON AL 5 DONE B ACENTIED ADESVE ALCHOR NSTALLES () 5
ERTIFED THROUGH ACI AND IN ACCORDANGE WITH ACI 315 PROOF

CERTIHCATION 1L BE CUBMITTED 10 4 ENGNEER FOR APPROUAL FRIOR T0
COMMENCEMENT OF NSTALLATION.

1 JDIESE MCHOTS NSTALLED I HORZONTAL OR UPHAOLY NOLNED ORENTATNS TO
ESSTSUSTANED TS FALBE CONTMUOLSLY NSPECTED
STALLATION B A NSPECTOR SPECALLY APROVED FOR TTAT PURPOSE BY THE BULONG
etamy

12. PROVIDE SPECIAL INSPECTION FOR ALL MECHANICAL AND ADHESIVE ANCHORS PER THE
APPLICABLE BUILDING CODE AND PER THE GURRENT ICC.ES REPORT FOR THE ANCHOR

2 R
STRENGTH PRIOR T0 SUPPORTING TOPPING SLABS ANDIOR HASONRY WALLS OR OTHER
HEAVY LOADS.

13 LOHDS EXCEEDNG S0L8S SHALL NOT 8 PEFUITTED To 5 HUNG FROMMETAL
DECKING. HANGERS FORD K. PPN, ELECTRIAL CONDUITS, TG SHALL BE HUNG
DT FROM STRUCTURAL STEEL O ANCHORS EMBEDOED N CONGRETE SUET
HANGING LOAD LAYOUT FOR REVIEW.

14, CONCRETE TOPPING SLABS AND THICKNESSES SHOWN ON PLANS AND DETALS ARE.
NOMNAL THEHNESSES, ACTUAL THCIOESSES WL VARY DUE TOBEAN SAUBEFS AlD
EOTOACHEIEALEIEL

FesoR .
ON PLANS HNUS 14"

COLD.FORMED STEEL FRaun
1. FABRICATE AND ERECT COLD-FORMED STEEL STRUCTURAL MEMBERS PER THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE LATEST EDITION OF THE SPECIFICATION FOR THE DESIGN OF COLD.

WHERE REQURED, THE SEISIC DESIGN OF COLD FORMED STEEL STRUCTURAL NEVBERS
SHALL B IN ACCORDANGE WITH THE ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS OF SECTION 2211 OF THE G,

2. MINIMUM YIELD STRENTH FOR 43 AND 33 MILS STUDS, JOISTS, STRAPS, BRIDGING, ETC.
SHALLEE 3300075 MO VLD STRENGTHFOR .63 MO WL DS, 0SS

ETC. SHALL BE 5000051 MINMUM, AL MENERS SHALL B2
ity

3 VED METAL FRAMI i
MANUFACTURED BY MEMBERS OF THE STEEL STUD MANUFACTURER'S ASSOCIATION (SSVA
COMPLYING WITH CBO REPORT 4943P AND THE INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE.

4 WELDING LIGHT HALL PERFORM ALL WELDING.

1 60 BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWNG:

. SPSON STRONGTIE WEDGE-ALL (ESR.1306)
b HLTI KWK BOLT 3 MASONRY ANCHORS (ESR1385)

14, SCREW ANGHORS I MASONRY SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

SIPSON STRONG.TEE TITEN H SCREW ANCHORS (ESR 1056)
b, HLTIKHEZ SCREW ANCHOR (ESR.4056)

15, ADHESIVE ANGHORS IN MASONRY SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

& SIPSON STRONGTIE SET-I? ADHESIVE ANCHORNG SYSTEM (ER 265)
b HLTIHY.210FAST CURE ADHESIVE ANCHORS (ESR-2682)

16, EXPANSION BOLTS I CONGRETE. ANCHORS SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING

. SINPSON STRONGTIE STRONG-BOLT 2 (£S5 307)
b HLTIKWK BOLT T2 CONCRETE ANCHORS (ESR-1917)

17. SCREW ANGHORS IN CONGRETE SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

. SMPSON STRONGTIE TITEN HD SCREW ANCHORS (ESR-2113)
b HLTIKHEZ SOREW ANCHOR (ESR.3027)

16, ADHESIVE ANCHORS IN CONCRETE SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

. SMPSON STRONS TE AT ADHESNE NCHOTH SYSTEM (259
IE ANCHORS (ESR3187)
& 1AT) RE 50 50 A0V ESVE ANCHORS (88 292,

16, ANCHORS ARE NOT TO BE NSTALLED UNTIL CONCRETE OR GROUT HAS REACHED TS,
DESIGN STRENGTH, ADHESIVE ANCHORS SHALL BE NSTALLED N CONGRETE HAVING A
MU AGE OF 21 DAYS,

FIRE RATINGS:
1.” FOR FRE; DRAWNG:

EXISTING CONDITIONS:
'CONTRACTOR 1S TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING GONDITIONS PRIOR TO BIDDING ALL WORK AND.
MATERIALS NECESSARY TO INSTALL NEW WORK N EXISTNG BULDING SHALL BE INCLUDED.

2, AOTEYARCHTECTIENGNEER MNEDITELY I EXSTNG CONOITIONS ONOT AT OR
SEEM INCONFLICT WITH, INFORMATION SHOWN ON DRAW

VERFY ALL

5
AND SHALL GONTACT
PROCEEDING.

4. EVERY EFFORT SHALL BE MADE TO MNIMZE DISRUPTION TO THE OWNER'S OPERATION
'ANDTO PROVIDE PATRON, FAGILTY STAFF AND WORKERS SAFETY.

5 EXCESSVENOISE. B PrE e
OWNER'S REPRESENTATIE.

5 PROVIDE? TOREAN

'GEMOLITION OR CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS PERFORMED UNDER THIS CONTRACT.

1 SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTIONSHAL € THE RESPONSIBLIY THE CONTRACTOR AND
BRACING.AND OTHER

RESRT AL LOKDS TO WHCH THE STCTRE WA EE

SUBJECTED, NGLUDNG LOADS ERECTION EQUIPMENT AND ERECTION OPERATIONS, AN

R ST FORGES COUPARRBLE M NTENITY FOR WHICH 11 STRUCTURE AS DEGGNED.

5. ALL ERECTION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF ALL
APPLICABLE CODES AND ORDIANCES,

o AL T
SHOP DRAIING PRODUCTION AND FABRICATION.

mow:
1. DEHOLITION OF EXISTING STRUCTURE TO BE REHOVED SHALL BE PERFORMED BY THE
CONTRACTOR USING MEANS NECESSARY TO PREVENT DAMAGE T0 THE EXSTING STRUCTURE
TOREMAN, DAMAGE TO THE EXSTING STRUCTURE TO REMAI SHALL BE REPAIRED AT THE
CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE USING METHODS REVIEWED BY THE STRUGTURAL ENGINEER -
EXISTING CONDITIONS DIFFER FROM THOSE SHOWN IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS CONTACT
THE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH WORK.

SUBMTIALS GENERAL
CTOR SHALL DEVELOP AND SUBMIT A SUBMITTAL SCHEDULE CLEARLY
wmcmne T RUMBER OF STEEL 8105 DRANIGS CONCRETE RENFORCING RAWIGS.
OTHER SHOP DRAWINGS TO BE SUBMITTED EACH WEEK OVER THE DURATION OF THE
JECT.

2, THE SUBHTIAL SCHEDULE PROVOED 31 THE CONTRACTOR S NECESSARY 10 A0V
REASONABLE TIVE TO STAFF APPROPRIATELY FOR THE SCHEDULED SUBIATTALS. T+
SUSMTTAL IGNEERS REVEN SCHEDULE S SUECT STRTLY T0 e g
SCHEDULE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTC

5
WITH THE INTENT OF THE DRAWINGS, REVIEW DOES NOT WPLY OR STATE THAT THE
FABRICATOR HAS CORRECTLY NTERPRETTED THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS.

4__CONTRAGTOR SHALL SUBMT CALCULATIONS WITH THE SHOP DRAWNGS DESIGNATED AS
DEFERRED SUBMITTALS. SIGNED AND SEALED BY THE ENGINEER, LIGENSED NTHE STATE

\TED, RESPONSIBLE FOR THEIR PREPARATION WHEN REQURED IN
THE SPECIFICATIONS (SEE ALSO DEFERRED SUBMITTALS).

5_COPIES OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE SUBNITTED AS SHOP DRAWNGS.
CONTRACTDRAVIGS SHOW Y GENERALDESGN NTENT FRAL S0P DRAVTG
SECTIONS SHALL PR T, EXACT DINENSIONS, ELEVATIONS, GRADES OF
TATERALS 10, PECRG To EACH LOGATION

0P DRAINS SHAL € REVENEDAND STAWPED 01 T GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR
r

RUGTION MANAGER PRIOR T0 SUBM LR GROUF
RORMATIONFOR TS SUC AS OVERALLBUIDLNG GEONETRY,ELEVATIOS, T
i 2 D BY THE CONTRACTOR. IF
(GEOVETRY CANNOT BE DETERMINED FROM THE ORAW TOR SHALL SUBMIT
AN RFLAND COORDINATE THE RESPONSE WITH ALL AFFECTED TRADES PRIOR TO FABRICATION.
DEFERRED SUBMITTALS:
1. THE FOLLOWNG ARE DEFERRED SUBMITTAL TENS:
CONGRETE MXTURE
~ GROUTIXTURE DESI
° sTEEL 0TS
STRUCTURAL STEEL CONNECTIONS
COLD FORMED METAL FRAMING

2_DEFERRED SUBMITTAL CALCULATIONS ANDIOR SHOP DRAWNGS SHALL BE SIGNED AND

SEALED Y THE ENGIEE FEGPONSBLEFOR THERPREPAWATON AD SHAL BE SUBITED

O THE ENGIN FEV T T SHoP DRAVING

cow rmmks A L ONG BEFARTENT FORARPROVAL FAERCATION
RINSS 1O DErERRED SUBITAL TEUS SHAL HOF GCEUR IR APPROVA

M SULDNG DEPARTHENT S REGENED,

5 REFER TO SPECIFCATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREENTS,

I}
s

POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY SHERIFF'S
OFFICE EXPANSION

1400 Big Lake Ro

Gouncil Bufs, 1A 51501

PRt v

11-2010900

STRUCTURAL
NOTES

S0.1




BIM 360:/11-20109.00 Potiawatiamie Co Shers/11-20108-00_PCSO_ST_2020.t

612812021 90749 AM

SPECIAL STRUCTURAL INSPECTIONS: AgBREVATIONS:
3 NACCORDANCE WITH . SECTION 1704 AS NOTED BELOW, TESTNG AND SPECTION BBREVATIONS ARE AS SHONN N THE CONTRACT DOCUNENTS WITH THE FOLLOWNG:
T — ‘SHALLBE BY AN INDEPENDENT TESTINGINSPECTION FIRN UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF A ExcePTONS: e R KON Q.
e | CENSED ENGNEER ENPLOVED oY AT P, THS ENGNEER SHAL OE D YNBOLS MO NOTATY
UERFCATON VD OMTINIOUS | PERODIC | REFERENCED STANDARD | C REFERENCE CESICIATED E\CIIEER OF RECORD FOR SPECALNPECTONS PERFORIED 31 Hi P @ AT
npen kg T e o CONSULTANTS. NSPECTORS SHALL BE IG30 CERTIFED AND APPROVED BY TE. i o e SR SHEAR (ALY
e SOLDNG OFFIGAL AR incioreon owexT commecion JOUENT 1) HOMENT i) )
epd WASONRY: THS 401 AR TASGE . 400N~ ADDITION OR ADDITONAL Py

T b oy s T 2 THE DESGNATED ENGIVEER OF RECORD FOR SPECAL INSPECTIONS SHALLBE WU ARMANDLNG ONT

5 e Aa3s2 ST se RESPOVSPLE FORDEFING THE ACTITIES 0 ToE INSPECTORS,FOR CERTIFYNG THE hoDL - DDITONAL SR | =
sy Mmmmmm_ VS seveio P URLPCATIONS OF THE NSPEGTOFS WITHTHE BULDING OFFCAL 4D TOATTEND HE G ANGHOR oesu seuice —

e iy T = e i Sl i 5515300 Inspocion Tsks Pir o Boing a ) PRECONSTRUCTION WEETING 10 DEPIE THER SCOPE OF SERVICES AND THE TESTIG OR APPROK - APPONNATE i
filwdeicr oo B plrienbroeipe ° o TEST PROCEDURES THAT ARE REQUIRED AS OLTLNED IN THE INTERNATIONAL BUILDING ARGH - ARGHITECTURAL
e o vihSpechaton e T Cone ab6  -aUDNG — SIEAR 0)/AXAL K SHEAR (AL K

s gt " " BE B (TENSION OR COMPRESSION. 10 N WHERE
e o > B 3 sPECILNSPECTON o 50 somoior 10T [a%4
g e [ o L nspection Task ey Refersncefor Crteria R, 51T LOCK, DEPARTHENT OF BULDING SAFEIY MO SHAL NOTBE CONSTRUEDTO. 80T 80TTOM o
Neee s L RELEVE THE OWNER OR HS AUTH GROG -BRDGNG o cenTes Lne 3
Jiipar i e o “ Fe, e H
istedomitug e Sorls i T SS— ° ° 4_CONCRETE: PER SECTION 17053 WITH EXCEPTIONS. THE FOLLOWING ITENS REQURE g Ciasnel ow woron B w W22 i
o i et i v e TTEE o A EONCRETE X P S A O arate SENAG 1 Gor e H
T crote X ACI318:59.510 following are in complance: Conmactng stemests, inchacing he poruprists feyhg aufece o DRIVEWAYS. ALL SLABS REQUIRE TESTING FOR FLOOR FLATNESS AND LEVELNESS PER cP CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE NUMBER OF SHEAR CONNECTORS
2. Proportions o st preared morar X Az fspeced. mael appicabe N PROLEGT SPECHCATIONS o GONSTRUCTIONICONTROL JONT FOR UNIFORM SPAGING CANBER
oot pcke or o wos. Tonsof Mo prepared m requremerts Cp COMPLETE JOINT PENETRATION o — o RGHTEND
[y s _Consirctonof morar X o 335 5. STEEL CONSTRUCTION: SPECIAL INSPECTIONS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE a CENTERLINE o wieas 18 o1 2 VERr
T on for maienance of x ACTEETIT e L o \QUALITY ASSURANCE INSPECTION REQUIREMENTS OF AISC 360. SPECIAL INSPECTION FOR oMU - CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT REACTION REACTION
Siwiorr e © o e e e * R a cimene ot sl ané e e 3 ° SEISMIC RESISTANGE SHAL BE INACCORDANCE WITH ASC 4TAND SHALL CONPLY WITH BC oo o couPosITESE W; © P\ A P
ey N0 — Sl SECTION 170512 PROVIDE SPECTION PER SC SECTION 170425 OR STRUCTURAL LOAD. Cone - concrere hmor saconctS
[ . e s ST —— s e e T 02t R ST T, Eae L
vl | stossnganons ] conponsts’ 0 ° SHOP. THESE INSPECTIONS _ SHALL B AT THE CONTRACTORS EXPENSE F THE oSt - CONSTRUCTION
& P i
" oo e e e DL E— === T FAGRCATOR SNOT AN APPROVED FAGRICATOR PER BG SECTION 170425 1 N e - o e
bt ey & WELDING: WELDING INSPECTION SHALLBE N COMPLIANCE WITW AWS D11 THE BASIS DBA - DEFORMED BARANCHOR CONCRETE

0 Erdor et e B [y T b e FOR WELDING INSPECTOR QUALIFCATIONS SHALLBE AVS .1, PROVIDE SPECIAL DT DETAL
et canglence b INSPECTION IN ACCORDANGE WITH AISC TABLE NS 4-1 THROUGH TABLE N5 43 o DINETER secno

teri e & Goulpann T DA -BEFORIED WRE RicHOR

g prir o sressig ofendor * penez 7. HIGH STRENGTH BOLTING: INSTALLATION OF HIGH STRENGTH BOLTS SHALL BE DWL (8) EL (S)

oo i ' G o 2 s of eloranert s moes ASCMTIBLENSSZ FERODCALY NSFECTED Y ACCOROMNCE W ARG SPECFOATION PROVGR SPEc Bss BaAmGIs) T suore
et s o s g i X |smie |wzess necion ngSaing NE WITH ASC SPECFICATIONS oWGE) - oRAY 1

vﬁnmhmuzv;h;w anchoragee. EE EXTENDED END N

: rarsimn x st T |ATIZE % Inspection Tasks During Boling L] o 8 INSP ELEMENT: TO CONCRETE & EXPANSION JONT FLOOR STEP IN ELEVATION Z‘;777 % 28
coern neirtorg et and rostecsng e ond nchrages 384 PLACEMENT SHALL BE PER AISC TABLE N6 B ELEVATION

B Pt of o aprsd g s % G s sl st condton e o . . PV - oo
e ot et 1 St s st ot bt o 2 P o By -mEAe o
b & Corsiudlon o marr ot LX) ot ot b e s gt condion oo ety o B 170522 AND 3 FOR OPEN-WEB STEEL JOSTS AND. ENGR

= . T ———
P e — x st ey ISTGROERS fos Eceorsus [ — -
or ko he conmetat o he ek 5Ty, 525, sTocaTon o e, T 10 STRUCTURAL ONSTRUGTION SHALL BE | B3 DECK SPAN DIRECTION.
¢ st anchor 1171 Fa::nev “component nat tumed by the wrench prevented from ° ° IN_ ACCORDANCE WITH TMS 402/ACI S30/ASCE 5 AND TMS 602/ACI 530.1/ASCE 6 AS FOLLOWS: EQUIP EQUIPMENT
masonny o sectalmemers, e, roaing EQUV - EQUVALENT B Bz
orohercmncion ” (GNEERED MASONRY I RSK CATEGORY |, ORI STRUCTLRES: THE MWLM 2 adne precsst concree secron 7 o A

VERIFIGATION AND WSPECTION TASK CONTINUOUS DURIG TASK LISTED PERIODICALLY DURNG TASK ¢ TR * S, i prsing e rom e o 3 o iéiﬁé‘:,l"c?’?i“"" ROGHAFOR MASONRY SHALL COUPLY WIHLEVEL BQUALIY S B,

LISTED L EXPANSION | GROUT SECTION

R R N . Prepaatio, constuction, andprotecion x . e 11, PILING, DRILLED PIERS AND CAISSONS: PER SECTION 17057, 7058 AND TABLES 17051, Ext EXTEROR
contsons a ko st - n A
he s bearng cepay Dew A0 (44°C) o st BB FABRIGATE ook secTion

e e M engersure sbone S (322°0) 12 GRADING, EXCAVATION AND FILING: PER SECTION 17056, SEE CIVL DRANINGS AND Fe DAY CONCrETESTRENGTH _
peopedeth an v reached & o R IS SPECIFICATION DVISION 2. o HooR o TOP OF STEEL ELEVATION FROMNOTED T0S. “21Z>OR <217
srope el pesmsangoce AR o

3 Prfom dassifaton and esng of  lacement X 35360 Inspection Taks After ol 1 DRAWING N FRiSn ey

= grout for bonded tendons s in compliance FOR ALL FIREPROOFING METHODS AND REQUIREMENTS. L | WELDED WIRE REINFORCEMENT

. Verly use of proper mate ‘o Placement of AAC masoney s and Xoj[ Xl [At 3388 Inspection Tasks After Bolting ac L) Fs FAR SIDE
denstes and it ‘"‘“’"5‘5 “""“7 consiruction of tin-bed morar oits 14. FIRE RESISTANT PENETRATIONS AND JOINTS: PER SECTION 170517 16 FOOTING /_@
pacener and ompacion o X - ‘ ’ ‘ v R REDVEREY emore e
‘“”‘“""‘ il ‘mortar specimens, andior prisms. 148203, 15, FY -YELD STENGTH

oo e corpaae 876 WITH EXCEPTIONS GV GAVANZED
s s vy s 14831484 — GoNGanERAL coummare
s been prepared propecy. x P- 16. EXPANSION BOLT, SCREW ANCHOR AND ADHESIVE ANCHOR INSTALLATION TO VERIFY HGR HANGER

INSTALLATION N ACCORDANCE WITH ICB0 REPORTS NOTED PREVIOUSLY OR APPROVED WoRZ  “HoRzONTAL —®
@ QA HSA _HEADED STUD ANCHOR Foorme wek
ottty B 0 et a5 i HSS -HOLLOW STRUCTURAL SHapE.
REGURED VERFICATION AND WSPECTION OF DRVEN DEEF FOUNDATION ELEWENTS (3" Raure o et 100 e (16 st ) o AAC oy G 0 TABLENET w NSPECTED AND W haERon
[ VERIFICATIN AND NSPECTION TASK CONTINUOUS DURING TASK LISTED PERIODICALLY DURNG TASK | {6 Rursd e s 500 St 45 st lrs) of AR nasy nsacianf See Eoents of Composit WELDIG SOCETY CODE ANS D 1 i oussTER Wk

e e T ¥ - = = 1 THE NSPECTOR SHALL OGSERVE THE WORK ASSIGNED T0 BE GERTAIIT CONFORS 0 Vs NRepemsousre oot
| ot b sens THE APPROVED DESIGN DRAWINGS AND SPEGIFCATIONS, [ —

T Deamnecapaoies ot s a DOUBLE ANGLE

ionty x 3 ; 19, THE NSPECTOR SHALL FURNSH DALY INSPECTION REPORTS ON THE WORK O THE o
i pscunmmeises SULDNG OFFCIAL AND TO THE ENGNEER. AL DISCREPANCEES SHALLBE BROUCHT T0 THE lse  -LONGLEGBACKTOBACK rchre AN~
i B— 3 3 MIMEDIATE ATTENTION OF THE CONTRACTOR FOR CORRECTION, AND, IF UNCORRECTED, TO 86
e i s e e N T — EANy THE ENGIEER AND THE BULDNG OFFICAL i EVELOAENT LENGTH
ot s spochstors WS il s ° B UH LONGLEG HORIZONTAL REVISION VARK
ent i i v s a3 o PLETE, S0N AND SEALA FHAL W loNeLEc oRzo
i At seyate]. o] o RERORT CERTINING THAT 0 THE BE0TOF S KUOWLEDGE THEVIORKIS N LIC LG T CONCRETE
T e o o [N titon syt oo ‘CONFORMANCE WITH THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. s
e, o er o ows - e — o e WS sy I
y;;ﬁjjfm;g;;ﬂ;‘gy x i o] X ORDINATING: e MONENT CONNECTION
i ‘Nerecron LY IR VEGH  MECHANCAL
(ot b lvatons o e g, o of o > SHALL NOT PROGEED AITH CONSTRUCTION O COLPONENTS AT AY INTERFERE VEZ  MEZANE
ver g oo S e ASCUOTILE 22 e i e b o, e o VR e )
g e INCURRED ASSOCIATED WITH REMOVAL OF WORK TO PERFORM NSPECTIONS WL BE oo R )

B ;vg;;;;;:e;;;eﬂmmmw g et icte) BORNE BY THE CONTRACTOR MSc  _MSCELLAwNOUS =
Setan 105 Gt e A Qe VERFICATION A0 NSPECT CONTIUOUS | PERODC | REFERENGED STANDRD || 3, et ot The SPECIAL NSPECTOR SHALLP e NeT o ‘mmmv R

Focont g SreeL Frwe T THE DETALS SHOVN ON THE APPROVED Ms ot w
o o sors i . o e, s CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. SUCH AS BRACNG, STFFENIG, HENBER LOCATIONS A0 e Ncm wasw concreTe e R L secTon =

o i S 1 oo Rk § PROPER APPLICATION OF JONT OETALS AT EACH CORNECTION T
o spca Setom sasiofy Ebipel sl o o lentfcsonmatigstocorom'o A
oo s e . E ST s pecie e ot X gt AT
Pt G i 0 oy i s o -orros o w
s " o ,,Ws, N e FRANE OR SHEAR WALL ELEVATION T

e e, Stamps, e, shl e he low-tress . b PCF \DS PER CUBIC FOOT
I —— (1L _ il > PL PIATE
[_____REQUIRED VERIFICATION AND INSPECTION OF CAST-N-PLACE DEEP FOUNDATION ELEWENTS | 2. Inspection of welding: PLF POUNDS PER LINEAR FOOT (D
TFICATION AND INSPECTION TASK. CONTINUOUS DURNG TASK LISTED PERIODCALLY DURNG TASK e e s S o Cofomed s o x A eLevATON DATUM WARK
43 " s P -POUNDS PER SQUARE FOOT >
7S FOUNDSPER SOUARE WCH
ot e s or | x B oSt ToNeon o)
Gt b i s Gy ooy o) FLooR oPENNG =
- wm;:.,;mgnanmnmm X PR RN zZ
mbosss. e oo danetes, . i Reptence
belldiameters (f appicable. lengths, X - ASC I8 TABLE NS4 REINF - REINFORCEMENT
s (e ot Ton Tols b W —— 2 Rt seesingfeurs REOD  REQURED IARCHITECTURAL EXTERIORCLADDING LNE 2
Sndachat sndearng s gy T A x Asore 5 T o)
et ot e e o Ko .-

. For concrete elemenis, perform addiionpl Packagng o |o ‘of specia structural walls o concrete and| Secton 352 sc SMLARCQNNECVGR\SI Z
ssoctons n st Wi . - ol S eniocamant o FOUNDATION NOTES ®] o
Socn 1053 S s

5 o 9 Shar rtorment X S Ser FOUNDATION NOTES =~
Cl w
e R o e T [ T TR ——— %)
Vst A lsaceino s S
S SPECROATIONS) 2 TR OMCATECTI DRGSR OYAL LD CEOVETRY, zZ
[ a Whar agpcabe, se o Secton 70511 o s SaUARE ALLLOCATIONS AU ADOIIONAL PRI WL REQURENEN < <
S e So S GOV L PENNGS, 109 GF VL TLAATONS, D SR 12062 =
s oo s S o ELEVATIONSWIH ARCHTECTURAL DRAWINGS
foeh i o |o YV vV Y v Y Y Y Stk St 3. SECARCATECTURAL DRAWINGE FOR LOCATION OF SLOPED, RASED. = o
o STRUCT STRUCTURE DEPRESSED SLABS, AND DRARS >
s e it ST e, + B Eson e saosraEeToy <
o pskong : PUATE THCRNESS REQURENENTS. REFER T0 GENERALNOTES FOR BACKFLL AND TEMPORARY wi
[ o THRB0D SO REURBIENTS
e T -ToPANDBOTION 5. COORDINATE ALL PENETRATIONS THRU FOUNDATIONS WITHNER ORAWINGS.
oo s o |o REFERENCE TPICAL FOUNDATION DETALS FOR SLEEVE DETALING, w
v s sy s TG -TOPOF CONGRETE 6. ALL EXTERIOR EXPOSED STEEL (N UNCONDITIONED SPACE) SHALL BE HOT DIP < 2
T8 ToporsmeRl -
e e e e S |
(N0 -UNLESSNOTED OTHERWSE kH
VERT ToAL. oL :=
PR w WIDE FLANGE SE
- FLOOR FRAMING NOTES oo %
Wi STeEL TeE Secron
WD WRE REnFoRCEENT 1. TOP O STEEL ELEVATIONSARE SHON ON PLVIS. TP OF STEELNOT
AIC 0 TABLE N5 43 XSTR - -EXTRY v
ST GOUBLEEXRASTRONG 707 OF STEELNOTED ON THE PLANS
2 REFER 10 ARCHTECTURAL DRAVINGS FOR OVERALL BULONG GEOVETRY
[ — o« o WAL LOCATIONS. AND ADDITIONAL PARITION WAL REQURENENTS
3. COORDIATE ALL SLA3 OPEUNGS AND T KRCH AVD HEP
Wots cosnes o l DRAWINGS. REINFORCE FLOOR PER Y’ LS. BID SET
[ — 3 v 5 REACTIONS SHOWNAT T END O GEAVS AND J0STSARE MU
s g s e FACTORED LOAD REACT 92020
F—— 5. ALLHSS MEVBERS SHALLHAVE 1 CAP PLATES AT EACH XD, TYPICAL Revsions
e & ALLDXTEROR EXPOSED STEEL (NUNCONDITIONED SPACE] SHALL BE OT D it
GAVANZED,
e v v
o
esias e 3 ROOF FRAMING NOTES
bearsa 1 i P 1. TOP OF STEEL ELEVATION ARE SHOWN ON PLANS. TOP OF STEEL NOT_
i P 'SPECIFICALLLY NOTED ON THE PLANS SHALL BE LINEARLY INTERPOLATED
OF STEELNOTED ON THE PLINS
N . 2
WALTLOCATENS MOREDTOUL PATTION Wi FEOURELEN
£ L 3. COORDINATE ALL ROOF OPENINGS Al ENEWA“DNSWWNMEVDRAW\NGS
PROVDE ADDTICHAL FRAING PR TYPCALDETA 201090
e b s it 1 (75 o 0 vl . S SHOMN AT THE END OF B D JOKTS ARE MM
CTORED LORD REACTION
5 AL ASSMENERS AL AV 4O PLITES ATEACHEND TYPIGAL STRUCTURAL
& Qs ntcns e & ALLDXTEROR EXPOSED STEEL (N UNGONDITIONED SPACE) SHALL BE HOT D NOTES
GAVANZED,




o0

dnoiD 1 my

1015 1 synig pounod
oy 9401 619 0071

NOISNVdX3 301440

SiddId3HS ALNNOD AINVLLIVMVLL1Od

ROOF FRAMING
S2.2

PLAN

BID SET
082912020
REVISONS
11-2010900

REFERENCE

(EHC EXHAUST. REFERENCE
| TYPIGAL ROOF OPENNG DETAL—

|
$ [ ——
o0

| ROOF DECK DRECTION

Ty

73w

[z

REFERENCE

S A
|

i

SPLICE NOTED THS,
TeREF2ISES |

!

s

v

ceodes ||

I S "

o

ROOF FRAMING PLAN

SCALE T

NORTH

WY 67106 1202829
W020271S70SOd 00-6002++4/S.1I0US 00 DUEIENEI 0060107417098 WIS



1-20109.00 Pottawattamie Co Sherifs/11-20109-00_PCSO_ST_2020.1

B 360

612812021 907145 AM

YooY Yo Y Yoy

BRICKPERARCH
CMUWALLPER PLAN

(COMPOSITE SLAB PER PLAN:
STEEL BEAM PER PLAN-

BELOW GRADE

70 sTeEL
—

400" HEADED
REOLTS CENTERED.

S0 LONG BEARNG
PUATE ——————

T NONSHRING
(GROUT MU
CONC WALL PER PLAN

ANCHO
INT'LONG SLOTTED HOLE
N BEAM FLANGE, TIGHTEN
NUTS FINGER TIGHT.

10 ok,
or i

NOTE: BEAM BRG ELEVATION

VARIES. SEE PLANS

CTION
Gz sone w=ro

— REMOVE EXIST
. BRCK AS REQURED.
0TV COMPOSITE SLAG PROVOE BENT
PERPLAN PER TYPLOOSE
psuce LINTEL DETAL.
ONNECTION DETAL. et oMy REMOVE EXIST
BRICK AS REQURED

WAL

CEREENY

coupostesue .

\ L EXSTOHU WAL
oot~

Gog
ol

U WALL BEYOND-
STEEL BEAM PER PLAN

BEAN BEARING

MU PER TYP DETAL

cocwLPER LN~ |

STEEL BEAM PER PLAN
SLAB EDGE AND BRACING

SLAB EDGE PER
1 Tve DETAL

BRICK PERARCH

COMPOSITE SLAB PER PLAN.
STEEL BEAM PER PLAN.

[ —omusem
GROUT SOLD
|~ BELow GRAdE

AN

ro.sres
e

To WAL
— A

SEE0 LONG BEARNG
PLATE ——

T NONSHRING
(GROUT MU
CONG WALL PER PLA-

VAREES, SEE PLAN

234003 HEADE

NOTE: BEAM BRG ELEVATION
VARIES. SEE PLANS

ANCHOR BOLTS CENTERED
INF'LONG SLOTTED HOLE
INBEAM FLANGE, TIGHTEN
NUTS FINGER TIGHT.

LOOSE LINTEL PER TYP DETAL

7l

TR 2T

—

T
17 DA DBA @ 27 00
TosuAg

s
A yperpu

COMPOSITE SLAB PERPLAN
(DRECTION VARES)

4 BENT PLATE

[ TS
EXSTCMUWALL

cowposie

CMUWALL PER PLAN

LEXGXB WITH HLTIHT
HY 270 34 DIA HAS ROD.
SPACED AT 15"0C
(EMBED B3
STANDARD HOLE, TYP-

NOTE: AT SIM CONDITION,
SLAB DRECTION VAREES

(e SECTION

TO. WAL
PER PLN

7.0, BRICKLEDGE

Fensaon
—CONC STEMWALL
PER PLAN & SCHED

CTION
Gz sone w=ror

(") SECTION
&/

SCALE: 1= 10"

cOMPOSTE

\ERT DOWELS TO

NOTE: AT S CONDITION, SPLCE PER TYP DETAL

MIRRORED OVER CHU WALL TP BEA TOCOL

CONNECTION

STEEL COLPERPLAN

STEEL BEAM
PERPLAN

o oo w7
couroseae vt
-BEAM TO BEAM CONN /COMDOSWE ‘SLAB PER PLAN
I e 1o |

i =

0.
Qv
LEXGKYB WITH HATI HIT
HY 270 34" DIA HAS ROD.
SPACED AT 16°0C

(ENBED 3

STANDARD HOLE, TYP-

\(1; BOND BEAMS W/ 2:45
WEA TV

= -CONC STEM WALL
~/umumsm>

2\ SECTION
w SCALE: 34 =10

CTION
w SCALE: T

REMOVE EXIST BRICK A
REQUIRED, PROVIOE BENT PL
PER TYPLOOSE LINTEL DETAL:
LEXAGB X 20 (LY W) HLT]
HIT HY 270 54" DA HAS ROD

"0 [EVBED 6 34'

117 DI 20
08A

FLOOR SLAB PER
PLAN

LEXAXB X 20 W/ 34 DA
AS25N BOLTS N VERT
SLOTHOLE AND 34" DA
A325N50LTS N HORE
SLOTHOLE

LEXEXSB EDGE ANGLE:

EXST CMU WAL FV————=

NOTE:
PROVIOE DETAL AT FLOOR DIAPHRAGHS ALONG FACE
OF EXSTING BULDING AT 80 MAX.

CTION
Gz soue we=ro

CTION
W SCALE: 3" =10"

NOTE: AT S CONDITION,
SLAB DIRECTION VARES

oM waLL

ERPLAN

GROUT SoLD.

BELOW GRADE

| 70,58
PERPLAN

| oK e Ao

TO WL

peRpLA

1 —conesEnm
PER PLAN & SCHED.

S/ sone w-ror

TYPICAL FLOOR SLAB AT
MASONRY WAL

osTE
SUAB PER

LEXGKSB WITH HTIHIT
" DIAHASROD
EDAT 15°0C
(EMBED 6 341N
STANDARD HOLE. TYP.

CMUWALLPER PLAN

GROUTS0LD
1~ siow oruoe
0548
PERPLAN
BRICK PER ARCH
—

TowAL
— AP

T0 BRIGK LEDGE
— e P

|—concstemmaL

CTION
SCNE EGEE

CTION
su\z W10

5
B

POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY SHERIFF'S
OFFICE EXPANSION

1400 Big Lake Ro
Counci Bufs, 1A 51501

11-2010900

FLOOR FRAMING
SECTIONS

S$4.2




B
d
k3
g
H
H

M 36011

612812021 907:34 AM

MASONRY CONTROL JOINT
ocx

CONTROL JONT KEY AS SPECIFED

PROVIDE REINFORCING EACH SIDE
L JONT TO WATCH
WALL RENFORGAG LNO.

OF CONTROL

OPTION B

BULDING PAPER ONE SIDE AND
FUL

m TYP CMU WALL CJ DETAIL

HORIZONTAL RENFORCING (WHERE
REQURED). LOCATE PER DETAL

BELON. WHERE SINGLE HORZONTAL BAR
IS REQUIRED, LOCATE NEXT T0 VERTICAL

AT MASONRY LINTEL

NorE; MASONRY WALL

LS PN D STRUCTURAL KOTES

FoR

2 uocAvEREnmwmr«GMAL comess,
F OPENINGS, C

SORTS M AT SHACNG S0 ON

C BAR AT CENTER

5 PROVIDE WIRE REBAR POSITIONERS T0
HOLD BARS I PLACE.

HORIZONTAL RENFORCING (VHERE

/ REQURED)

LOGATE NSDE MDNEKTTOVERTCA.
SINGLE HORZONTAL BAR S

REGMRED LOGATE AT GENTER OF

BAR AT EDGE

CORNER

OPEN END MASONRY UNITS

VASONRY WALL

AND GROUT
TYPIGAL AS SHOWN
VAXFACE SHELL STANDARD 80" HOOK. TYPIGAL
THCKN

T INTERSECTION

L
SBERDACR
ZOMNTYP L REOD)SPLICE
OND BEAN AP I zeentemms To
MATCH BOKD BEAM
RENFORCNG

BENTBIRTO
VATCH BOND SEA [
RENFORCNG

%

C STEP DETAIL . CORNER DETAIL

(NTYP BOND BEAM DETAIL

FLLWITH GROUT
ASSPECFED

VERTICAL MASONRY REINFORCING.
SEE PLANS AND STRUCTURAL NOTES

MESH WAL TIE (177416 GA.
500

AKED CONTROL JONT
WITHSEALANT

SGALE 117 =

PR —

NOTE:

1.PROVIDE SHORING UNDER BEAM
FOR AMNNUM OF 7 DAYS AFTER.
GROUTNG.

2 NONOLITHCALLY GROUT 5OND
BERANDALL

(GROUTING SHALL HAVE NOVERTICAL
‘OR HORIZONTAL GOLD JOINTS FULL

HE
INGLUDING END BEARIGS.

3 MECHANICALLY VIBRATE GROUT,

4 SEE TYPICAL MASONRY BEAMW
LINTEL BEARNG DETAL FOR.
BEARNG.

5 HORIZONTAL RENFORGEMENT
SHALL NOT BE SPLCED.

. PLATE TO STOP AT EDGE OF
‘OPENNG, T PLATE NOT REQURE
VHERE BRICK S SUPPORTED BY
LOOSE ANGLE LINTEL,

MASONRY LINTEL WILOOSE LITEL

ONRY LINTEL W/ T"PLATE

m:vw PLEIBECONT
WITHBOTTOM PLS16XCONT UNO
HOTDP SAINZEDATTER

/\ TYP CMU WALL REINF PLACEMENT (N TYP LINTEL/BOND BM @ INTERSECTION
SoAE 117 = Gysne vero
o—
—— sousre —— sousre
SEEARCH SEEARCH
P Lt curourTor GPENNG UNTEL SCHEDULE
orwess orwess s o
/ s - / s . e [row | worizow]cowens
semmeca e SEARRENORONG v Wi e ¥ DEEP SOND B W w4 Ta8
NDCATED, HoOY NDCATED. HOOK AROU
HORIZONTAL STEEL TOP AND HORIZONTAL STEEL TOP AND frsL<er Lol w4 107 OEEP BOND B W 245 TR0
BOTTOM (T PICALY BOTION (HOT TVPCALLY " ;
s ° wrsieer |ws |we 20 oeEp BoND B Wz T8
(CMU CPEN END UNITS g4s Letrar | waKet WaK4 PROVIDE /16" BOT PLATE AS REQ
| worsous PROVDE A UMM CF & 11as Letoa |wioar | winar | provoe st eor AT AsRec)
/ ADHESIVE ANCHOR 1945 200" | Wa4x65 | Waxss | PROVIDE 5if6"BOT PLATE AS REQ)
. S DIAHLT Y TOADHESVE
L BONDBM W REINF T~ ANcHORS @ roc [EUBED N
SEE GENERAL NOTES. 1| 658" INTO BOND BY) 1. AL OPENINGS REQUIRE A LINTEL. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE
[ ALL OPENING AND PENETRATION LOC HGNS \'r/TH | OTHER CONSULTANTS'
=3 1 Sonen WORK ANDREFER 10 T SCHEDULE FOR. 5
1 sorfEE 2 EONDSEM RENFORONG AL B o UOUS WTiouT SpucES.
3 3 EEqus 5 DONOT LOGATE G CONTROL JONTS WITHN OPENING OR JANE EXTENTS.
: | e b o A T ol

543/ SCHE =

0w ceep

o
REFER TO OTHER TYPICAL D

STERL INTELS s iace 50U X HEAOED MCHOR STUS 02100
oy

R FURTHER INFORIS

TalS O wTon
SENEDLLE 1 SUPLROEDED WHIERE LITEL SZES RE SOECIICALLY NOTED ONPLANS
£ TYP MASONRY LINTEL FOR

() TYP INTERSECTION REINF DETAIL
g/ sene

Tz

cpame
so0
/[ senn

sreeosr I [ L]

©DLR Growp

[l ol 1]

Ciowsommownson
[t

Coreunc
ores

1,LOAD.SEARING WALLS; LOCATE BETWEEN JOISTS AS SHOWN._IF OPENINGS MUST BE
UNDER JOIST, TOP OF OPENING SHALL BE AMNIMUM OF 172 0F THE OPENING WIDTH +&
INGHES BELOW THE JOIST BEARING OR CONTACT THE ENGINEER.

2 NONBEARING WALLS: PROVIDE 6" OND BEAN FOR OPENINGS 44" AND LESS AND 15"
BOND BEA FOR OPENINGS GREATER THAN £-8" AND LESS THANG-0". CONTACT ENGIEER
FOR LARGER OPENNGS.

5 WHERE VENEER OCCURS, PROVIDE SUPPORT PER TYPICAL LNTEL DETALS.

4 GENERAL CONTRAGTOR SHALL COORDINATE LOCATION OF OPENNGS WITH MECHANCAL,
ELECTRICAL AND OTHER CONTRACTORS BEFORE CONSTRUCTING WALLS.

& PROVIOE #4 @ & OC SHEAR REINF FORML-5 AND M5, SEE A,
/™ TYPICAL CMU LINTEL DETAIL Roones iy (Z\TYP MECH PENETRATION IN CMU WAL
w3 RE T - T - i s T
e e
I 2727 JAMB REINFORCEMENT SCHEDULE Lo AL PERAAN
ity i 0P N KO 8
NG | WALLRENF | Moo REFORGED o A mmessuorooun e ate
o | "thicee . 7 B e e T e 0
Py o0 B AV A o GRS N ATHER SDE 07 FOLLOW ROOF SLOPE
W roc 2 restseau e — eI
2400 1 ANCHOR BOLTS CENTERED 58 R 16" 0C MAX.
i, oo i [ e
9 9 oo 0 //V D nar | ECHMFLINGE TGN ROOF DECKPER PLAN
e e nour oo s el auersor s .
Sl e o) oo s Be FoUNDRULNG —RR
2777 §§Z§ ; N ‘ / T NONSHANG
oo ; s >/ A % i ’\ crtsacont o
90 [ fEdtany/ ki -
‘ £ oreuge R I s s swerLoseAmG Qe oe s o o0
o o : X R g it
S8991-0" LONG BEARING 245404 LONG INMINE" @200, (55 EVBED)
o0 B \ PUATE @ 12 QHOALL oz aEss LN
5 SETERts otk sean
SEE SCHEDULE FORNO. OF VERT 7 PROVIDE WEDGE SHM e
ELLS 27 0. 00 2 LANB RENE PER PLATES UNDER FULL CMUWALL PER PLAN
EoL e Aot S v o) orean
1. PROVIDE SAME BAR SIZE AND QUANTITY OF BARS PER CELL 2.0 SLopegicseos AAROUND ANCHORS -
TS P LA OPANG S oSS o |
2 ;ﬁ",ﬂ’é‘;ﬂiswf“ﬂ’“ ‘FSPEC“‘WWN"‘EWWW"SE 1. DONOT LOCATE CMU CONTROL JOINTS WITHIN OPENING OF JAMB EXTENTS.
s o
(™ TYPICAL CMU OPENING Grourso 3 DONOTLOGKTE G CONTROL TS WTHN OPENNG OF WUBEXTETS 72\ TYP CMU LINTEL BRG (\TYP STEEL BEAM BEARING AT MASONRY WALL o TYP DECK TO MASONRY WALL DETAIL
o s e SuE BT i s o SR
T
NN e
ST A28 e o iy
Arcond SRR s 44 DARIRODSACED
N 1 ?;nuac \ED?\‘\EESSE :? iwc 16°0C (EMBED 6 34°), TYP r SPACE AS REQ(D)
BN T — - RS
o
s
\ronxze o
éu:“: TosAsDBA@ 7 s Umugroezp cout QL. ROOF DECK PER PLAN e e g v 0c
] — Qe ) AP FoOR S8 )
[ ‘
L R
seion. e d CONPOSITE LABPER PAN ™
el I curmonkTorouowoEck
.l T Ao / : 50 crour oL
A 42 ~ i oeepconTsoND
Jottaed
e 552 o 00
3 S b e To
HEoED McHoRBOLTS H H stesLsean crouT oL \ FOLLOWDEOKBRG
/ \- - —
FILLALL CELLS WITH GROUT N - #4WITH STANDARD 160° /
‘SHADED AREA. R HOOK AT EACH BOLT
L
T EFER TO TPCAL BEARING DETAL FOF AL FORWATON
(G\TYP CMU COLLECTOR BEAM DETALL /7 TYP FLOOR BEAM AT MASONRY DETAIL () TYP FLOOR SLAB AT MASONRY DETAIL (2)TYPINTERIOR BRG ON CMU WALL DETAIL
eD Sy S T SE T
[
sree e CD et .
—
i
Loxdx3b 1YP) EXTEND [ [ [
Nsme-hvmg;wg e 12 om KT TR T T T T
O —— et arwoc e
S REaes oS e
eENTHAS RECUREDWTH
oSt BN R RENE ATIAS, conorcuT E——
cgrrorstoouss DECK RBS ARE PARALLEL TOWALL [ [ [ [
ewe son0senseLon
) ARt S R . e
L T DECKBRS LAYOUT AND ANCHORAGE TO
T S ——— s
o e
NoreS: 20 s oD [ Y bR
3 SEE ARCHTECTURAL PLANS O ATORGUE OF 60 IPOLN T T
PR T e PR — PR i it
commuous i AT FLOOR DECK WHERE SCREWS ELY DURNG SELECTIVE DEMOLITION AND T OCCURS, HOT.
iy o Sonne e
Sirostosan [T S5sENT P
2. AL EXISTING CONDITIONS SHOWN ARE TO BE T of
onuwaLL perpuN —— VIN & CONT BOND BEAM FIELD VERFIED PRIOR TO STARTING WORK. I i )
Koo BN 5 AT DTG PTTON AL O TRACTOR T FEHOVE AL WAL IENGTH AS REQURED 07 AT WAL AR BE : |
b TALTOSTRUCTURE NS SN o v iz
B e ek Srone o ELEVATION (B SECTION
; sy
(2 TYP CMU PARTITION WALL BRACING DETAIL /N TYP EXIST CMU WALL OPENING DETAIL (E\TYP EXIST CMU WALL OPENING DETAIL W/ STEEL ANGLE () TYP LOOSE LINTEL DETALL
S S T et ) e Ty S T

&/ s

0
[T
w
o
L
I
(2]
>
|
=z
2
Q
O
u
=
<
|
<
=
<
[
[
o
o

z
)
%)
z
<
o
x
w
T
o
[T
[T
o

1400 Big Lake Ro
Counci Bufs, 1A 51501

11-2010900

MASONRY
TYPICAL DETAILS

S$4.3




2010800 Potiawatiamie Co Sheris(11-20108-00_PCSO_ST_2020.t

612812021 907:39 AM

Y Y Y Y Y Y’

y-/

D -
i)

wrTossT

T DECK

e DECKTOWT ik

WO >

N~ see sen
R srace peRPLAN .
EXTEND TOP FLANGE

(\TYPWT BRACE DETAIL

~ Y YV ¥V ¥ ¥V YV

Iy
Ry
® :
seace s reaD) space 1)
.- _- FoRone
SR 15 0chM R 16 000k
s/
£ e £ L\W
i WETALDECK
. ‘ N
- osis g TosteeL
=4 T ¢ s
N
-
A
L it viok
R
(N TYP EDGE OF DECK DETAIL

oPenNG sz
|

N\ s e

Loxtcan

NorE
TYPIGAL DETAIL APPLIES TO ALL OPENINGS 6" AND LARGER.

METAL ROOF DECK

Y Y Y Y Y Y v’

8

\"’\’"Y"Y"\’"Y"\’"

CTION
&/ sene s

5.1/ SoHE 3

XD

Mo T ERCKAS

Lo xze LI
HIT HY 270 34 DIA HAS

SPACEDAT 1900 EABED 3

o xzow 3 on
ASZENBOLTS N

SO O AD 8 DA
AS25N BOLTS N HORZ
SLOTHOLE

LEXGXB EDGE ANGLE-

EXST CUU WAL FY—————=—

NoTE:
PROVIOE DETAL AT ROOF DItPHRAGMS ALONG FACE.
‘OF EXISTING BUILDING AT §.0"HAX

VETAL DECK PER
PN

STEEL DECK.

TosTEEL
i
Laxoe14 BRACE
STeEL| j\\

PL b4

BEAM PERPENDICULAR TO BEAMS

STeEL DEcK.

\ P

CONT Lnexti
BETWEEN BEA

"L%i‘ 7
~

sreeL sEA
BEVOND

s

/\TYP ROOF OPENING DETAIL
oA

A
(8]

=)

HCBZ TN R00F DECK
JTES AT 47 0 VA SPACING

ROOF CURE
10612 UNDER ROOF CURB

\ -

NOTE.
1 GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY SIZE AND LOGATION WITH CONTRAGTOR,
2 ETAL

5 WEIGHT OF UNIT EQUAL TO OR LESS THAN 00LES PER CHANNEL

9

1381 S UNLSTRUT

STeEL BEAM

120 THREADED RODS

g
STEEL DECK & CONY
PERPLAN

TosTEEL

a2 a2 2 2 ath af

)
)
)
)
)
9

ExsTCHU
WAL Y

1 eence oF
- SEacoeraL
[ [ ——

Tos
FeRma®

x STEEL s PERPLAN

9
)

XX XXX

A
2]

28 a2t a2t alh alh sl

Pl /erE aeAn h
we 1R
B — 1 | SIS 4
|18
[
il )

MU WALL BEYOND-
M STEEL BEAM PER PLAN
MU WALL PER PLAN: SEANGERNG OV
N MUPER TYP DETAL

)\ SECTION

ROOF DECK
PERPLAN

T¥P SpLIcE
i ‘CONNECTION DETAL.
A

2
oy

(F\SECTION
G, I XAE JER

EXIST. HSS12X12 CANOPY
STRUCTURE. FV DIVENSIONS

EXSTCMUWALL
v

(=

(S/sme

B MATCH ROOF BEAM SPACH
STEEL BEAM 7 METAL DECK o VETAL DECK ROOF DECK SCHEDULE ) 34" DIA HEX nz:mz
— " oo crES O DETAIL cropownasto () DETAIL DescRPTION ! ACHOROLTS W 17 E\BED oY L 1 ROOF DECKPER PLAN
EVER EXCEED 18" CANTILEVER EXCEED 16" 40 0C MAX PLIXIEXT = !
N il 7 - 12 DEEP x 20 GA.WIOE R PANTED STEEL ROOF DECK, 15820 | |
N 3 — r oL s S= S . ! L e e )
g = g L EcHOALUNT b/ Jre— a5 e (- B
cLsTestsen b o, RENFORONG oETAL spmoscroocson =~ Al AL 50 N
L REQUR REQURED = piEi "t
(5)BEAM PARALLEL T0 BEAMS 1 SovERE o s iy s Tres g oo -
T 5 Y ROOF QPG DETAL i i S
MECH UNIT PERPENDICULAR WITH ROOF FRAMING MECH UNIT PARALLEL WITH ROOF FRAMING 7 ‘
£\ TYP BOTTOM FLANGE BRACE DETAIL TYP ROOF TOP UNIT SUPPORT DETAIL AT 1-1/2" DEEP ROOF DECK ((2\ROOF DECK SCHEDULE (E)\SECTION "\ SECTION
551 ) SRLE T2 IA 551 ) SCALE: 3 swz SCA E

FA A A A _SA A

5
B

POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY SHERIFF'S
OFFICE EXPANSION

1400 Big Lake Ro
Counci Bufs, 1A 51501

11-2010900

ROOF FRAMING
TYPICAL DETAILS

S§5.1




Co Sherfs/11-20109-00_PCSO_MEP_2020..

BIM 360:/11-20109-00 Potiawattami

[p28r2021 94751 AM

LEGEND NOTES

TERMIATIG L CHASE TOGRAMLSPACE proupe
RAFT DAVPER ON 10712 RA DUCT OUT OF
CRAMLSPAGE R CHASE

SEUOLEH BTN DFFUSERS 8 GRALES NSTALLNEN
SALES NAEH CELNG G coneeT
R DFFUSERS 70 STV UGTOR AS SHomn

SALVAGE EXISTING FLOOR MOUNTED UNIT HEATER FROM
‘CORRIDOR 10 FOR RELOCATION. DEMOLISH EXISTIVG
IYDRONIC PPING WITHI EXSTIN

—_
HYDR DOR 1070
‘GEILING PLENUM AND GAP. REINSTALL SALVAGED UNIT
HEATER INTO VESTIELLE 131

ABANDON EXISTING 63 3" DIAVETER ROUND DUCTS AND
'ASSOCIATED LOWVER

©OLR Growp

12" ROUND EXHAUST DLCT FROM FUKE HOOD
w zvmzncz PROCESSHGS 11 SOUTHTOEE 11
TED ON ROOF ABOVE STORAGE

DEMOLISH EXISTING RETURN GRILL TWO SOUTHERN

147X 12° AN DUCT. CONNECT NEW
MANTENANGE THS POINT TO SERVE NEW DIFFUSERS I SERGEANT
WORK RO 114

GRILLS INTO EVIDENCE PROCESSING LAB 151,
'SERGEANT 113, AND WORK ROOM 114,

DEMoLsHESTNG s TRASFER AR T

o o SEE 140D FEN GFFGE 112
e ) RTALLNEN TRARFER AR OUCT A5 310
:
e JND 231 RADUCTS DO FROU T O
- Nt fu3) ROV NG ABATENENT NSULATON SEE
e DETAL O
) i
o1 9 SALVAGE EXISTING UNIT HEATER FROM CEILNG TO BE.
o EPLACED RENSTAL SALUAGED ONY REATER WITH
5 o NEW GYP CEILING.
] |eomaton e
@ > BT
FomgE o T GFce 2 CHASE AN U TO ST FANON ROOF

12 14" SAAND EA DUCTS ROUTED BETWEEN J0IST
FROVRTUZ ONROOF. PROVIDE NOISE
ABATENENT INSULATION. SEE DETAL 32 ONHS.1

e

Evence
LowvouTace SToRAGE

FUTURE OFFicE

o
o
VAV 285 CFIY

5 TA

s P
b X i
135CFM G-t 81
S Jesar
i o

3850 () TA

cvoevce WesoRR
ProcEsong Us H ot
i i) 50,
o R ol
5P
o
L ®
[} N0) nesnoAToR
2 ey | 2]
= L
o1 100 SA] e |__|_
A NoO] i x
| e ke (g
T G s L
S e 8 T
ik %)
LIEUTENANT Z
2
w=
JossTatGrice s2
e
e st <z
®E R Fo
s X
a G o VAL w
=l 5 e 2w
P T £ s
U [ '{gl o |<_( O .
We —_— g
5 2l
o1 =i
5 W e
W @ oL i
oo a0 i
e &3
o
i
MENS 150 CFM|
@) vesteue
ooy (K 21 o s
of s
R
T s
seren
®
aotosan
MECHANICAL
FLOOR PLAN,
LEVEL 1

MECHANICAL FLOOR PLAN, LEVEL 1

M1.1




Co Sherfs/11-20109-00_PCSO_MEP_2020..

BIM 360:/11-20109-00 Potiawattami

[p28r2021 94752 AM

—_
s
&
D H
s
TOUVER SCHEDULE “SECTOR 3500
[GENERAL
61D EQUPHENT TO PROVIDE
PROVIDE 8RO SCREEN
PANTTOMATCHWALL GOLOR
W FREEARER | VELOGTY | WAXPD
ek BASIS OF DESIGN cw W T 0 T 5] sarm | e | mwe | owe
T comment bt N N O T O R ¥ 5]
DIFFUSER, REGISTER & GRILLE SCHEDULE (TITUS) - SECTION 233713
o7ES
1PROVIDE SOUND BOOT PER DETAIL 34 ONNS.1
TRAE FRATE K K TRER
war | sassOFoESGN | TYRE st sz sz we | wrea o | ewss [vores
_y
T RG] SOURE PG FACE prT SE LT F S e
) AR NN PR A e e PR et prr Aeiher| ﬂﬁ>
il g TS o v DECTON S ARG PATTER DD S e T ) e
- A A I S S S St
" | TuswR. | SURCE | DOULE DEFLECTION SUPPLY ) SEEFL FE S L —
& RTZEY Sz PR ORATED FACE DUCTED RETURR X Y] P I T
o7 TS 2R SURFAGE EGGoRTE 2xiz s [ Aownar | n Ve
FAN SCHEDULE - SECTION 233423
" BASS OF DESIGN MODEL NUVBER epsupEITTOPROIE
2 REVIEW VANUFACTURER' RIGGING AND LIFTNG RSTRUCTIONS PRIOR TO NSTALL
3 BSTAL N PR KAUFACTURERS NSTRUCTONS NCLLDAG ALPELD ASSEMLY REGURENENTS
& PROVDE ROOF CURS SLOPED AS REQUIRED TOMATCH ROOF SLOPE.
N v 0 FROU FAN CRCU,
A1 ERO ORI SERER G A IGET
v EECTROA
o e ATA BAsis 0 DESGH ores
RVE
R vour [ ow
2] ESTCRASPACE ) YT AT
7 WEST CRAVLSPACE Fng v | T i
T R 105,107 DRECT | 1 v | T Y RN
7751 | EVDENCE PROCESSNG B T57 | RoOF | T000CAv | 150wy ORECT | 1 v | T oo CookConpany | 20 ACRUD | 75.8.9
UNIT HEATER SCHEDULE - ELECTRIC - 236239
oTES
1. RENSTALLSALVAGEDUNT MOUNTED THERVOSTAT o
2 PROVDEZWAY CONTROLVALVE
T FOTWATER COL AT T
capaciTy EINEy
ARk SERVES easisoroesoN | @runR) | oen | po | cew | ewr | | o8 | o8 |wars | v | e | coneiouramon | emsw | wores | ek
oo
I S WCQUAY CHE 003A A T | 05 | 05 | w0 | aw — W e - WALL-SURFACE | TWHITE i¥] (Vi3] ()]
7| ERST CRMLSPACE TRE SATE Tow [ 19 [ 22 [ w5 [ a0 | - [ & [ w [ W [@[i0] suewe W | |z g
DUCTLESS MINI SPLIT SYSTEM AIC UNIT SCHEDULE - SECTION 238127 L
oS =
8 EQUPNENT T0PROVIDE e
REFRIGERANT
PROVIDE HAL GUARDS ON CONDENSER. w
PR TER LEVE 10 SHUT OFF EQUPHENT! T
INSTALL OUTDOOR UNIT DETALS SHEET.
ST 06 A n
PROVIDE CONDENSATE PUMP.
W ABRET NG BT COOLNG PERATONTo " >
TREGORTRT TUTG00R T =
wasis cooune o VEGT] e oS T HECTRGL DATR =z
CONFIGURATION o cencry | seer | Rk voDeL wito) ws | e MODEL (0) ) V[ a [ vGR [ocR
DEsion wer) NoBER iRk e )
e @5 Toh | AT | e T T CooA | PUAwwrEs T p N N I
T I T 7 St ST clion | plvasewares | s b e 1o | O
TALIOONTES [ imsinan 2 o0 | hcist | Prosor ST 5 oot | PuUvAmNOTES w5008 P TN I I ) oz
VARIABLE AIR VOLUME TERMINAL UNIT SCHEDULE - SECTION 233600 W =
' DUCTRUNOUTS 1O ERMNALSOIESTOBE ONE SUE1ARGER TN LE, EDUCE @ TERMIA. B0XPERDETAL s @
Z CAPACITES BASED Z
et STHERS CODRNATE REGURBIENTS T CONTROLS CONTRACTOR <Z
PR
$EROUDE by CONTROL VALVE [y
5 PROVIE 5HAY CONTROL VALVE. o
P TERGE T [ =
o | e e DS et [ | wee | o || S
o wows | riow [ o | on | m | e =
| SNGIEGET i G | s o | R [FT & Ei BT s =
SNGLE DUGT 25 Gr | oo cev | ) oo ) TS v <C g
SNGLEDUCT 755 cr | sooce| ) o o s oesv [ O &
SwoLevor | st crn | 4 A | 50 Tscr [ 0 0 | 02wz [T m oEsv = &=
S suo | sarcA | ocAr | oo | socei | FRCaT L OV T OESv = i
R R e e o
| SWeLEDuGT | S0 | e | B0 cAT | Hocr | 7oA | an [T | odiio s oESV 1
[ SwaLE bucT | s crm oG | e G| T2GA | 200 | 7% | a0 s OEsv a O &
SNaLEDUCT | st crn | acen | socw | rioce | Tseaw [ | [ nzma0 TS v
SNGLE DUGT | 500 CAr | 76 G | Tocew | oGP T [ oima0 s oEsv
SNGLE DUCT woen | wocew | Tscr | 0 o s oesv
SNLE DUCT s crv | ovcen | e oscry | 0 |z | 02w s oesv
SNGLE DUCT o | Tocr |z on oo | 0 | e | oamo s OeST
[ ST e | focer ]| EETe il Ml L) TS vESY
| SwatE oucT | soocAr | zscaw | e | zscen | oGP | 20 | e | oamo TS OESv
| SwetE oucT | soocAr | rsscar | oo | tsscen | TsGew [ 0 | 72 [ 0zma TS OESv
7 SworE oueT | oo cov | erscrw | socev | escr | T7ePw [ o0 | o | vamo Ty TS )
ROOFTOP UNIT SCHEDULE - SECTION 237413
ki ms 9 DESION MODEL NUUGERSARE R RFERENCE LY, D ECIPUENTT0PROVOE THE NDIGATED ERSCRIAICE
X G ANDLIFTING NSTURCTIONS PRIOR O RSTALLATION
5§ BROVDEHAL GUARDS N CONDERSER GOLS
4 REFRIGERANT, RATDA
5 SIE CONDENSERS BASED ON TEMPERATURE OF 1050EG
& COOLNG COL PACE VELOGTY SHALLBE LESS AN S00EPA AND GREATER THAN 50 P
7. PROVDE INTERNAL MPRESSOR SPRING VERATION SOLATON
PROVE NN HERV O FLTER
o PR ooy WLPY EC
10 PROVIDE SINGLE PONT COWNECTION VA UNT MOUNTED HEAYY DUTY NON-FUSED DISCONNECT SWITCH,
{1 FROVDC NTEGRA Nl SR 1 10011 ECEPTACLE MO WEATERTRO0:COER
12 UNIT T0 B FURNSHED W FACTORY CONTROLS WITH INTERFACE FOR CON
14 CONTRACTOR AL S RESPONS LE FORAL FONER AND CONTROL WA NCLUDNG CONOUI O POV A FULLY FNCTIONAL SYSTEN
14 NECHANCAL CONTRACTOR T0 NSTALL SHOKE DETECTOR FLRNISHED UNDER DVSIONZ3 N THE RETURN AR DUCTWORK 12010900
5 FROVDENNMUI 1 TAL SO VERATON SOLATON R00F GURS VRIYCUREAEGAT REQURED T ROOFING CONTRAGTOR
16 SUPPLY FaN 10 82 PROVI
i pmwmsMawwwewmmzspzsn COMPRESSOR ON THE FIRST STAGE. DIGIAL SCORLL, APR, OR HGSP 1S NOT ACCEPTABLE
15 PROVIDE NODULATI MECHANICAL
1 PROUDELOWNOSE SOUND FOWER OPTON TO NLUDE NULTHIING CONDENSER FANS AND COUPRESSOR ACOUSTICAL SOUND WRAPS SCHEDULES
20 PANT UNT TOMATCH ADJAGENT EXISTNG EF1S COLOR
oy (R A e D)
P —— SRR EUSTIAY e COOUNG CAPAGITY GRS REATIG PRI Do p— ELECTRIGAL OATA BRSO DESGN
o serves QUTDGOR | 0UTDo0R |sureLy AR L P VOO 3 B LITIELN PP ARSDE | compreser | Conprssor?. | Jut | ot | ABENT | sk | 0 G Rewars
HRFLON | ARFLON | “riow | [arv Teowen |~ row | Jarv[eouen | tora [sewsmie | o8 | we | oe | we |ammow| T | T EITET J Ll ogT | wer | osT VouT | P | MGA | MocP WoDEL M61
ot | wemsoomovwy | s | oo | wemce | s | 1| soo | omscn | 0 | 1 o [ i |mar| mo | o | emon | oo |mowsun || mar | sk TN IR A e ———
[z | esrormes omon | e | oo | oo [ovmw | o | == o o [z e | v e [ooe [ wue | woom | e | [r[wae| i Tor | wzr [ eew | wiw | s [ [wmv] 5 [ 7oa | woa [ wm Tane | VIO P AR 0000 i)




r

Co Sherfs/11-20109-00_PCSO_MEP_2020.

BIM 360:/11-20109-00 Potiawattami

[p2812021 10:36:43 AM

coyFEReNce

STORAGE:

HiA T 1 o |z
e 5 b ares heeon
Ao grrice )
2
m =
)
=
it

VesTBULE

®

HiA

VESTIBULE

©

FUTRE
oFFicE

Lowvouace FuTRE

oFFice

evoRNcE
SToRaGE

CoRRIDOR.

PROCESSING.
vy

INVESTIGATOR
SERGEANT

INVESTIGATOR

SREAKROOM

SeRcEAT WORKROOM =
i

Cis>
m m

o)

5,C)

Jomet )

Stomce s

; =
e ®

ASSISTANT 7]

iy
NANAGER' “
®

Tedd e rize | [[ica]
FNGERPRIT
Qi

et et et
e e e st gy
EiA. o1

Rilr el Rel
e 4t erta- a1 B
TRANING

v

&
et 41 erta. a1 enta 41 estn. o1

rire rire
G e

®
1o

5 s

=]

X
EHiAar

e
ping
N ==
WA AJ-5
tee o
i JCORRIDOR ™ LIEUTENANT|
e T
orice

<

=
hE =

LY HIAL-5

=
o e
© K>

X1 Lo
B4 s

«E
i

HiAl T

SERCEANT

-

SERGEANT R

Sercen:

D )

commnon
m ‘ >
]

i W
Ve CHEE DERUTY

itht. =wew
¥R tre)
R3¢

Hiat:s | X
N R T

x
; HiAL1
AR
HiAL1 thres
Tiow RavsT
e HIATEY
Camg S S mee
ey et et
5|
Aty
5 —_—
U e ROBT - Ra0aT
LS
=]
Raoar - RioGT Raosr
i HiLT

sn
St 4l
e

&=
ey
[ 3
= &R
e O
e
e &
Q ?
&
(L3

Zh LIGHTING PLAN, LEVEL 1

NORTH "SGALE!

LEGEND NOTES

BASE BID EXTEND EXISTING CANOPY LIGHTING FIXTURES
CROUITTO NEW CANOPY LOCATION. RENSTALL EXSTING
FIXTURES IF REMOVED DURIG CANOPY RELOCATION.
IOUNT IN SAVE MANNER AS EXISTING HOUNTING ON
CANOPY. CONCEAL ALL CONDUIT.

ALTERNATE GG DEMOLISH CANOPY HOUNTED
FIXTURES.

PROVIDE NEW LIGHTING CONTROL THIS SPAGE AS
SHown.

PROVIDE BOX EXTENDERS FOR EXISTING DEVICES SUCH
AT THEY ARE FLUSH INNEW FURRNGIESH WALL.

REINSTALL EXISTING FIXTURE(S) N NEW CELING.

(CROUIT FXTURES TO EXISTING LIGHTING CIRCUT THES
SPACE. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWSE.

(CROUIT FXTURE TOEXISTING EVERGENCY LIGHTING.
CRCUIT THIS SPACE.

(CROUIT FIXTURE TO EXISTING BUILDING MOURTED
EMERGENCY LIGHTING CIRCUIT. TIE FIXTURE INTO
EXISTING EXTERIOR WALL NOUNTED FIXTURES GONTROL

(CROUIT FXTURE TO EXISTING EVERGENCY LIGHTING.
CRCUIT I ADJACENT SPACE.

ALLLIGHTS SHALL TURN ON INCORRIDOR 130, CORRIDOR.
138, AND ALCOVE 1201N THE EVENT OF ANY OCCUPANCY.
SENSOR INANY OF THOSE SPACES |

SENSOR SHALL CONTROL ALL NORMAL PONER LIGHTS
(CKT HIAL1) THS SPACE

GENERAL NOTES

ELOCATED EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURES: EXTEND
EXISTING CIRCUIT SERVING FIXTLRES TONEW
LOCATIONS AS SHOMIN. HAINTAN EXISTNG CONTROL
METHOD.

©OLR Growp

0
[T
w
14
L
I
2}
>
(=
4
2
Q
&)
u
2
[
<
z
[
|
o
o

OFFICE EXPANSION

HH
b2s)
BID SET
om0
-

LIGHTING PLAN,
LEVEL 1

E1.1




Jason Slack/Director, Buildings and
Grounds

Discussion and/or decision to approve
Courthouse Addition Project CRC 002 -
Master Schedule Modifications.



_hgm _

ASSOCIATES INC.

General Contractor's Cost Summary

PROJECT: Pott. Co. - Courthouse Addition PROJECT #: 107419E
CONTRACTOR: Meco-Henne Contracting, Inc. DATE: 7/15/2021
Request for Change # and Description: #002 - Master Schedule Modifications [ ]ORC

Check ORC for Owner's Request for Change or CRC for Contractor's Request for Change: CRC

Reference: ASI # and Description:
RFI1 # and Description:

O Approved O Declined
OWNER T T T T T e Dawe T TTrmrmTT
O Approved O Declined
.................................... _ uy20201 ..
Kimberly A. Bogatz, AIA, LEED AP BD+C Date
NOTE: This form, all Subcontractor/Material Supplier cost summary forms (if appropriate), itemized accountings and appropriate

supporting data must be attached to any claim or contractor's request for change proposal for approval.

General Contractor Self Performed Work

1. Material supplied by General CoONtraCtor............c.oveiiiiiiis i e,
General Contractor's Labor. .....c..iu it e e e
Equipment...................
Subtotal (NS 1, 2 aN0 3) ... euitie e e e e e e e e e e e

Overhead and Profit (15% OF lINE 4) ... ..o e,
Total of General Contractor Self Performed Work............ccoooiiiii e, $0

o0k wN

Subcontractor Installation/Work on Site
* (Attach Subcontractor/Supplier Cost Summary Sheet and Summaries/Breakdowns)

7. Subcontractor's cost summary (include but are not limited to the following:)
a. MaSON e
b. Drywaller
C. Roofer
d. FlOOINg e
e. PN
f. Plumber
g. HVAC
h. EIECriCIAN oo
I. Other
J. Other
K. Other
l. Other
m. Other
8. Total Subcontractor's Cost (all l[inesunder 7).........ccovviiiii i
9. General Contractor's Overhead and Profit on Subcontractor's Work (5% of line 8).........

10. Total of Subcontractor Installation/Work on Site (lines8and 9)........................ $0



CONTRACTOR'S COST SUMMARY

CRC#

002

Project Name: Pott. Co. Courthouse Addition

Date:

7/15/2021

Page 2 of 2

Material Supplier/Subcontractor Providing Materials Manufactured Off Site for General

Contractor to Install On Site

* (Attach Subcontractor/Supplier Cost Summary Sheet and Summaries/Breakdowns)

11. Materials Supplied by Sub or Material Supplier (include but are not limited to the following)

a. Structural Steel..

b. Interior Archltectural Woodwork ....................................................

C. 00T S . e e

d. R0 T T 01

e. [ o107 T

f. Other

g. Other

h. Other

I. Other
12. Subtotal of Materials Supplied...
13. General Contractor's Overhead and Proflt (5% of Ilne 12)
14, Total of Materials Supplied by Subcontractor/Material Suppller $0
15. Material Supplied by General CoONtraCtor..........oouiiieiner e e e e v e een,
16. General Contractor's Labor. ... ..... e e e e e e e
17. 00T 0 11T
18. Subtotal (1INes 15, 16, aNd 17) ... ..uiriiriti e e e e e e e e e e e e e
19. Overhead and Profit (15% 0f 1IN 18).......cciieriieie i e e e
20. Total of General Contractor (lines18 and 19)............cooiiiiiii i $0
21.  Subtotal (lines 6, 10, 14, and 20) $0
22, Bond at and Insurance at -
23. Total Contractors Request for Change (CRC) (lines 21 and 22) $0



MECO-HENNE
CONTRACTING INC

July 15, 2021

Kim Bogatz

HGM Associates Inc.
640 Fifth Avenue
Council Bluffs, IA 51501

RE: CRC #002 Pottawattamie County Courthouse Schedule Modifications
Ms. Bogatz,

Per OAC meeting correspondence, the overall master schedule and substantial completion date have been
impacted due to current market procurement times. The inability to get important structural steel material
needed to erect and enclose the building coupled with the timing of the winter season have led to an
increase in schedule duration.

Attached is an updated master schedule which reflects a substantial completion date as discussed in OAC
meetings.

Please advise with any questions.

Sincerely,

/ 72
. %/r Senne

Jon Henne Jr.

Vice-President

Meco-Henne Contracting, Inc.
402-708-3986 Cell
jhennejr@mecohenne.com

4140 S. 87th STREET OMAHA, NEBRASKA 68127 402/339-8127 FAX 402/339-8147



ID Task Name Duration Scheduled Start  |Scheduled lun21 [ju21 laug21 lsep21 oct21 [Nov21 |Dec'21 [Jan22  [Feb'22 [Mar22 |Apr22 [May22 [jun22 |22 |Aug22 [sep22 [oct22 |[Nov22 |Dec'22 [Jan23 [Feb'23 [Mar'23 |Apr23 [May23 |J
Finish 2330 613202714 111825 1181152229 5121926 310172431 7142128 5 1211926 29162330 6 132027 6 1320273 101724 1 8 152229/ 5 12192613 10172431 7 142128 4 111825 2| 9/162330 6132027 41111825 118152229 5 121926 5121926 2 9162330 7 142128
1 | Courthouse Addition 500 days Mon 6/14/21 Fri5/12/23 I
2 Mobilize & Site Preparation 30 days Mon 6/14/21 Fri7/23/21 |
3 Mobilization 5 days Mon 6/14/21  Fri6/18/21 |6/14 m 6/18
4 Temporary HC access ramp 5 days Mon 6/14/21  Fri6/18/21 |6/14 m 6/18
5 Fencing & site security 5 days Mon 6/21/21  Fri6/25/21 = 6/21 m 6/25
6 Removals 10 days Mon 6/28/21  Fri7/9/21 6/28 7/9
7 Site excavation 10 days Mon 7/12/21  Fri7/23/21 7/12 7/23
8 Structure 360 days Mon 7/19/21  Fri12/2/22 I 1
9 Auger cast piles 10 days Mon 7/19/21  Fri7/30/21 7/19 7/30
10 Foundations 35 days Mon 8/2/21 Fri9/17/21 I 1
11 Ground Floor 35 days Mon 8/2/21 Fri9/17/21 | 1
12 Footings 10 days Mon 8/2/21 Fri8/13/21 8/2 8/13
13 Concrete walls 20 days Mon 8/9/21 Fri 9/3/21 8/9 9/3
14 Entry concrete walls 15 days Mon 8/30/21  Fri9/17/21 8/30 | 9/17
15 Building & Grounds 10 days Mon 8/23/21  Fri9/3/21 |
16 Footings 5 days Mon 8/23/21  Fri8/27/21 8/23  8/27
17 Concrete walls 5 days Mon 8/30/21  Fri9/3/21 8/30 1y 9/3
18 Masonry 330 days Mon 8/30/21  Fri12/2/22 ! 1
19 Load bearing at B&G HC 10 days Mon 8/30/21  Fri9/10/21 8/30 9/10
20 Load bearing at first floor SOD 10 days Mon 2/21/22  Fri3/4/22 2/21 3/4
21 Load bearing at B&G balance 10 days Fri 3/4/22 Thu 3/17/22 3/4 3/17
22 Non-bearing at ground floor 5 days Mon 9/20/21  Fri9/24/21 9/20 9/24
23 Non-bearing at first floor SOG 10 days Mon 3/28/22  Fri4/8/22 3/28 4/8
24 Brick Veneer 325 days Mon 9/6/21 Fri12/2/22 I 1
25 At concrete wall 20 days Mon 9/6/21 Fri 10/1/21 9/6 10/1
26 At metal framing 30 days Mon 5/30/22  Fri7/8/22 5/30 7/8
27 Interior 20 days Mon 11/7/22  Fri12/2/22 11/7 12/2
28 Waterproofing & Backfill 150 days Mon 8/16/21  Fri3/11/22 I 1
29 For B&G Foundation 5 days Mon 8/16/21  Fri8/20/21 8/16 m 8/20
30 Exterior 10 days Mon 8/23/21  Fri9/3/21 8/23 9/3
31 At first floor SOG 10 days Mon 2/28/22  Fri3/11/22 2/28 3/11
32 Steel Erection 135 days Mon 10/18/21 Fri4/22/22 I 1
33 First floor & upper roof framing 12 days Mon 10/18/21 Tue 11/2/21 10/18 11/2
34 First floor & upper roof decking5 days Mon 2/14/22  Fri 2/18/22 2/14 i 2/18
35 First floor low roof framing 10 days Mon 3/14/22  Fri3/25/22 3/14 3/25
36 First floor low roof decking 5 days Mon 3/28/22  Fri4/1/22 3/28 | 41
37 B&G low roof framing 10 days Fri 3/25/22 Thu 4/7/22 3/25 i 47
38 B&G low roof decking 5 days Wed 4/6/22 Tue 4/12/22 4/ 4/12
39 Entry roof framing 10 days Mon 3/28/22  Fri4/8/22 3/28 4/8
40 Stairs & handrails; misc. 10 days Mon 4/11/22  Fri4/22/22 4/11 4/22
41 Concrete Floors 149 days Mon 9/6/21 Thu 3/31/22 I
49 Building Shell 80 days Mon 4/11/22  Fri7/29/22 T 1
Project: Pott County Schedule s Task Summary 1 Inactive Milestone Duration-only Start-only L External Milestone < Critical Split
Date: Thu 7/15/21 Split Project Summary I I Inactive Summary I I Manual Summary Rollup s Finish-only | Deadline ¥ Progress
Milestone L 2 Inactive Task Manual Task I I Manual Summary 1 External Tasks Critical Manual Progress

Page 1




ID Task Name Duration Scheduled Start  |Scheduled lun21 [ju21 laug21 lsep21 oct21 [Nov21 |Dec'21 [Jan22  [Feb'22 [Mar22 |Apr22 [May22 [jun22 |22 |Aug22 [sep22 [oct22 |[Nov22 |Dec'22 [Jan23 [Feb'23 [Mar'23 |Apr23 [May23 |J
Finish 2330 613202714 111825 1181152229 5121926 310172431 7142128 5 1211926 29162330 6 132027 6 1320273 101724 1 8152229/ 5 12192613 10172431 7 142128 4 111825 2| 9/162330 6132027 41111825 118 152229 5 121926 5121926 2 9162330 7 142128
50 Metal soffit panels 15 days Mon 4/25/22  Fri5/13/22 5/13
51 Exterior metal stud framing 20 days Mon 4/11/22  Fri5/6/22 4/11 | 5/6
52 Exterior wall sheathing & air barrii 20 days Mon 5/9/22 Fri6/3/22 5/9 6/3
53 Roof blocking - partial 10 days Mon 5/9/22 Fri 5/20/22 5/9 5/20
54 New roof 20 days Mon 5/23/22  Fri6/17/22 5/23 6/17
55 Enclose building & temp heat 15 days Mon 6/6/22 Fri6/24/22 6/6 6/24
56 Fireproofing 15 days Mon 6/6/22 Fri6/24/22 6/6 6/24
57 Re-roof existing 15 days Mon 6/20/22  Fri7/8/22 6/20 7/8
58 New roof edge w/ blocking & flast 10 days Mon 6/20/22  Fri7/1/22 6/20 | 7M1
59 Aluminum entrances 10 days Mon 7/11/22  Fri7/22/22 7/11 7/22
60 Exterior glazing 15 days Mon 7/11/22  Fri7/29/22 7/11 7/29
61 Building Rough-In 65 days Mon 6/27/22  Fri9/23/22 I 1
62 M&E basement 30 days Mon 6/27/22  Fri 8/5/22 6/27 8/5
63 Interior Wall Framing 20 days Mon 7/25/22  Fri 8/19/22 Iﬂ—l
64 At brick veneer 10 days Mon 7/25/22  Fri 8/5/22 7/25 8/5
65 Balance 10 days Mon 8/8/22 Fri 8/19/22 8/8 19
66 M&E balance 25 days Mon 8/22/22  Fri9/23/22 8/22 9/23
67 Fire sprinkler 25 days Mon 8/22/22  Fri9/23/22 8/22 | 9/23
68 Interior Finish 165 days Mon 9/26/22  Fri5/12/23 I 1
69 Drywall 30 days Mon 9/26/22  Fri11/4/22 ! 1
70 At brick veneer 15 days Mon 9/26/22  Fri 10/14/22 9/26 10/14
71 Balance 15 days Mon 10/17/22 Fri11/4/22 10/17 11/4
72 Elevator & vertical platform lift 15 days Mon 10/24/22 Fri11/11/22 0/24 | 11/11
73 Primer & first coat of paint 15 days Wed 10/26/22 Tue 11/15/... 10/26 | 11/15
74 Casework 8 days Wed 11/16/22 Fri 11/25/22 11/16 11/25
75 Solid surface counter tops 5 days Mon 11/28/22 Fri12/2/22 11/28 ; 12/2
76 Acoustical Panel Ceilings 31 days Mon 12/5/22 Mon 1/16... | e —|
77 Grid 10 days Mon 12/5/22  Fri12/16/22 12/5 12/16
78 Fixtures 21 days Mon 12/12/22 Mon 1/9/23 12/12 1/9
79 Pads 10 days Tue 1/3/23 Mon 1/16/... 1/3 1/16
80 Plumbing fixtures 7 days Mon 12/5/22  Tue 12/13/... 12/5 12/13
81 Flooring 25 days Tue 1/17/23 Mon 2/20/... 1/17 2/20
82 Final paint 20 days Tue 2/7/23 Mon 3/6/23 2/7 | 3/6
83 Doors & Hardware 10 days Tue 2/21/23 Mon 3/6/23 2/21 yu'm 3/6
84 Electrical devices & trim 5 days Tue 3/7/23 Mon 3/13/... 3/7 3/13
85 Wire mesh partitions & specialties 10 days Tue 3/7/23 Mon 3/20/... 3/7 3/20
86 Final finishes 20 days Mon 4/17/23  Fri5/12/23 4/17 5/12
87 Site Finish 235 days Mon 5/23/22  Fri4/14/23 [ 1
88 Storm Sewer 10 days Mon 5/23/22  Fri6/3/22 5/23 6/3
89 Site paving & sidewalks 20 days Mon 3/6/23 Fri3/31/23 3/6 3/31
90 Landscaping 10 days Mon 4/3/23 Fri4/14/23 4/3 4/14
Project: Pott County Schedule s Task Summary 1 Inactive Milestone Duration-only Start-only L External Milestone < Critical Split
Date: Thu 7/15/21 Split Project Summary I I Inactive Summary I I Manual Summary Rollup s Finish-only | Deadline ¥ Progress
Milestone L 2 Inactive Task Manual Task I I Manual Summary 1 External Tasks Critical Manual Progress

Page 2




Matt Wyant/Director, Planning and
Development and/or Pam
Kalstrup/Acting Director, Planning and
Development

Discussion and/or decision to approve
Final plat of Bond Subdivision, a
subdivision situated in Lewis Township;
and sign Planning and Zoning Resolution
2021-02.



PLANNING AND ZONING
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-02

WHEREAS, this Board had approved the preliminary plat of Bond Subdivision, a
residential subdivision situated in Lewis Township, by approval of Planning and Zoning
Resolution No. 2021-01, dated July 13, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the final plat and supporting documents required by Chapter 9.10 of the
Pottawattamie County, lowa, Code and Chapter 354, Code of lowa, has been filed with
this Board for its study and consideration under Case #SUB-2021-01; and

WHEREAS, this Board has examined the final plat and has found it is in substantial
compliance with the approved preliminary plat; and

WHEREAS, after careful study, and due consideration this Board has determined that the
final plat and supporting documents conform to the requirements of Chapter 9.10 of the
Pottawattamie County, lowa, Code and Chapter 354, Code of lowa, and it has deemed it
to be in the best interest of Pottawattamie County, lowa, to approve the final plat.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, IOWA: That the final plat of Bond Subdivision, a
residential subdivision in Pottawattamie County, lowa, be, and the same is hereby
approved as the final plat of said subdivision.

And that the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to enter such

approval upon said final plat.

Dated this 27th Day of July, 2021.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Scott A. Belt, Chairman

O O @] @)
Tim Wichman

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Lynn Grobe

@) O O @)
Justin Schultz

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Brian Shea
ATTEST:

Melvyn Houser, County Auditor



INDEX LEGEND :
COUNTY: POTTAWATTAMIE FINAL PLAT OF —--~"EGEND'5/ o N
SECTION: 11, TOWNSHIP 74 NORTH, RANGE 43 WEST @® - FOUND 8" REBAR WITH YELL
ALIQUOT PART: SW1/4 SE 1/4 BOND SUBDIVISION PLASTIC CAP MARKED #14415,
PROPRIETOR: ROGER & DEBRA BOND SNL%SR?\W?JSERWISE DESCRIBED
REQUESTED BY! ROGER & DEBRA BOND THE EAST 15 ACRES OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF 4
SITE ADDRESS' 22730 CHESTNUT ROAD, COUNCIL BLUFFS, IA 51503 THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 11, TOWNSHIP O - SET 5/8" REBAR W/ALUMINUM
TAX_ADDRESS: 1055 CHESTNUT STREET, SYRACUSE, NE 68446 74 NORTH, RANGE 43 WEST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL CAP MARKED L.LS. #7717
LAND SURVEYING COMPANY: ROGERS SURVEYING | MERIDIAN, POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, IOWA. — INDICATES LINE NOT TO SCALE
LAND SURVEYDOR: CARL H. ROGERS, JR. SCALE: 1" = 100'
PREPARED BY: CARL H. ROGERS, JR. PHONE: (402) 689-1549 e e —— |
1688 ROLLING HILLS LOOP, COUNCIL BLUFFS, IOWA 51503 1000 50 O 100" 200"
NOTE: THIS DRAWING HAS BEEN REDUCED.
* U " r
SEVEN N pasce — 7\ LEGAL DESCRIPTION: POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
QUARTER-QUARTER SECTION LINE
THE EAST 15 ACRES OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 11, TOWNSHIP 74 NORTH, RANGE 43 WEST OF THE
FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, IOWA, AS APPROVED BY CHAIRPERSON: JUSTIN SCHULTZ DATE
NORTHEAST CORNER DESCRIBED IN BOOK 95, PAGE 20684, IN THE OFFICE OF POTTAWATTAMIE
COUNTY RECORDER, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
SW 1/4 SE 1/4_ OF THE Sw 1/4 SE 1/4
! SECTION 11, T74N, R43VW, COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 11;
THENCE NORTH 89°28'09" EAST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID ATTESTED TO BY POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY AUDITOR
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 826,09
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 89°28'09”
¥ EAST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
3 SOUTHEAST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 49538 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST = -
e CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER; COLNEY aUINTOR: ML XNROUSER DATE
4 THENCE NORTH (°07'00” WEST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 1318.98 FEET TO
w THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
< SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 85°29°34” WEST, ALONG THE NORTH
g LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER, A POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY ENGINEER
& / DISTANCE OF 49538 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0°07°00” EAST, AND PARALLEL
S WITH THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST
o W QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 319,19 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID
7 5 PARCEL CONTAINS 15.00 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. THE SOUTH 33.00 FEET OF APPROVED BY ENGINEER : JOHN RASMUSSEN DATE
& SAID PARCEL IS SUBJECT TO AN EASEMENT FOR CHESTNUT ROAD RIGHT OF
& WAY. SAID EASEMENT CONTAINS 0.38 OF AN ACRE, MORE OR LESS.
&
<L
3
SECTION 11, Elfu OWNER'S DEDICATION
e KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS THAT ROGER A. BOND & DEBRA §.
4 BOND, BEING THE SOLE OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS OF THE PROPERTY
N 892809 E LOT 2 2 DESCRIBED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND EMBRACED WITHIN THIS PLAT
141,45 LOY = X HAS CAUSED THE SAID PROPERTY TO BE SUBDIVIDED INTO LOT 1 AND LOT 2
11.974 ACRES% % AND TO BE KNOWN AS BOND SUBDIVISION,
-0.221 OF AN ACRE: FOR %
& E?g&{! lel;r 32';‘9 ol & NOTE: THERE WILL BE NO PRIVATE RESTRICTIONS AND/OR COVENANTS FOR
o 11753 ACRESE | & THIS SUBDIVISION. CERTIFICATION OF TREASURER OF POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, [IOWA
] : =1
a > ] IN WITNESS THEREOF WE DO HEREBY, RATIFY AND APPROVE OF THE I, LEA A. VOSS, TREASURER OF POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, IOWA, DO
W 3 “'SPOSIT'ON-)OF BQND SUBDIVISION AS CONTAINED HEREIN THIS_2.0) HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE PROPERTY INCLUDED IN THE LEGAL
. 8 =1 DAYOR, . )i 4 \ »2021. DESCRIPTION AND EMBRACED WITHIN THIS PLAT IS FREE FROM CERTIFIED
=3 & 51y A 5 Z TAXES AN CERTIFIED,SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS,
~ ~ & o
& £ - ud‘l;/‘«) vy
4 o z S ROGER ALBfIND f e M’d/ 7/3/ 30"1/
o (1} . . Iy
= : o )(/ 6 Wg TREASURER, POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, IOWA: LEA A, VOSS  DATE
‘:% = DEB BOND = e
S T 74 N, R 43 W )
o
» STATE OF IOWA )
)$8
5 COUNTY OF POTTAWATTAMIE ) T
in|h e gy 4
i 'f!; S 87'02'47” E 68.66' ON THIS LQD_ DAY OF _ Sl 5515 , 2021, BEFORE ME, A NOTARY ﬁgi"‘,\ XAs ROG&@&:“%
in PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF KOWA, PERSONALLY APPEARED ROGER A. " QL8700 |§"€’g:i %, 1 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS LAND SURVEYING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED
w BOND, TO ME PERSONALLY KNOWN, WHOM BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID "% o, \\ui= 6{) e‘?f'; 5 AND THE RELATED SURVEY WORK WAS PERFORMED BY ME OR UNDER MY
i b3 SAY HE ACKNOWLEDGE THE EXECUTION OF THIS INSTRUMENT TO BE HIS 5 9 A% { % | DIRECT PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED LAND
S VOLUNTARY ACT AND DEED.. S & § |SURVEYORUNDER THELAWS OF THE STATE OF IOWA.
o | 3 ®
°le NOTARY PUBLIC IN ANT{ FOR SAID STATE 3 3 #7717 E M//%mg Sy 20, 302/
el ] £ [CARL H. ROGERS,IR 7 DATE
XS STATE OF IOWA ) = £
v LOT 1 | )SS % X Iy & | LICENSE NUMBER: 7111
el I - S
vops AL 3 % COUNTY OF Pq(:"[\TAWATI'AMIE) ) (4"’\".% Town Qe ,5? MY LICENSE RENEWAL DATE 1S DECEMBER 31,2022,
| 5 e @, 5% 3
-0.159 OF AN ACRE: FOR™|%D ON THIS 25" “DAY OF , 2021, BEFORE ME, A NOTARY %%Qﬁfiy i_ff:g:p!:f\{‘}\«‘% NUMBER OF SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL: SHEET 1 OF 1
CHESTNUT ROAD wf|® PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF ﬁwA. PERSONALLY APPEARED DEBRA S, 1§ AR
RIGHT OF WAY . |w BOND, TO ME PERSONALLY KNOWN, WHOM BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID Trapenecsrtt
2867 ACREST al: SAY HE ACKNOWLEDGE THE EXECUTION OF THIS INSTRUMENT TO BE HIS
N VQLUNTARY ACT AND DEED, ROGERS SURVEYING
Sl~ SOUTHEAST CORNER : I\ 1688 ROLLING HILLS LOOP COUNCIL BLUFFS, IOWA
ols NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID STATE
wls OF THE SW 1/4 SE 1/4 SCALE: 1* = 100’ PHONE: DRAWN BY: JAT,
SOUTH 1/4 CORNER « SECTION 11, T74N, R43W; RN DEBORAM J MILLER ' :
SECTION 11, A7 | Commis \ber 760525 -2 (402> 689-1549
T 74 N, R 43 W N 89°28'09" E N 83.82585%9“ E : 4 Wy (':Gwr--u}u N EXPIRES DATE: 7-20-2021 REVISED
21000~ 38’ £5 I
ia 7 an | 1O\ TITLE FINAL PLAT OF
[—33,00' [}  RIGHT OF wav LINE 3
—— v BOND SUBDIVISION
N 89'28°09"" E N 89°28'09" E N 89:28'09
826.09' 210.00' 285.38 CUENT: ROGER & DEBRA BOND
N 89°28'09"” E 495.38' CENTERLINE OF CHESTNUT ROAD 1055 CHESTNUT STREET SHEET 1
AND SECTION LINE SYRACUSE, NE 68446




Other Business



David Bayer/CIO

Discussion and/or Decision to approve
and authorize Chairman to sign contract
between MAPA and Pottawattamie
County GIS for FY22 GIS Activities.



Omaha - Council Bluffs
l\ Metropolitan Area
Planning Agency

June 29, 2021

Pottawattamie County
GIS Coordinator
Attn: David Bayer
223 S 6% Street
: Council Bluffs, IA 51501

Re: 22903100001-Pottawattamie County GIS Activities — FY22

Mr. Bayer,

Enclosed are two originals of the contracts between MAPA and Pottawattamie County GIS
Activities — FY22. Please sign both agreements and return one fully executed agreements to

MAPA for our records. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me by email at
cbrownell@mapacog.org or by phone (402) 444-6866 x 3217.

Sincerely,

Christina Brownell

Executive Administrator
Encl.

NI IAY s SLAUTRY
Y e o[ 1 1S

2222 Cuming Street 402-444-6866 p Www.mapacog.org
Omaha, NE 68102-4328 402-342-0949 F mapa@mapacog.org




CONTRACT COVER PLATE

CONT! IDENTIFICATION
1. Contract Number: 22903100001
2. Project: Pottawattamie County GIS Activities — FY22
3. Effective Date: July 1, 2021
4. Completion Date: June 30, 2022
ONT TP
5. Contractor Name and Address:
Pottawattamie County
GIS Coordinator
223 S 6™ Street
Council Bluffs, IA 51501
6. The Planning Agency:
The Omaha-Council Bluffs Metropolitan Area Planning Agency
2222 Cuming Street
Omaha, Nebraska 68102
CCO DAT,

7. Contract - not to exceed $30,000 FHWA PL Funds, plus minimum $ 12,857 in local matching
funds.

a. Allotted - $30,000 FHWA PL Funds, CFDA Number 20.205
S OARD APPR L
8. Date of MAPA Board Approval 5/2 7/ 02’
9. Date of County Approval
10. Legal Review - (0//0/2’
11. Date of State Concurrence - lﬂ { |5 ’ 014'



AGREEMENT

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this first day of July, 2021 by and between Pottawattamie County, lowa
on behalf of the GIS Department, 223 S 6 Street, Council Bluffs, IA 51501 (hereinafter referred to as "the
County") and the Omaha-Council Bluffs Metropolitan Area Planning Agency, 2222 Cuming Street, Omaha,

Nebraska, 68102 (hereinafter referred to as "MAPA"), providing for professional services described herein
and within the MAPA FY 2022 Unified Work Program (hereinafter referred to as the “FY 2022 Program”).

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually understood and agreed by the parties hereto as follows:

1=

2.

3.

EMPLOYMENT OF THE COUNTY

The County agrees to undertake certain transpoertation planning activities identified in 23 USC Section
134; 23 CFR Part 420, subpart A, and Part 450, subpart C and incorporated into MAPA's FY 2022
Program Exhibit | and incorporated hereto by reference. This Agreement shall be subject to all
required provisions of the lowa Department of Transportation (“IDOT”") Agreement Project No.
@@ﬁhﬂached as Exhibit Il and incorporated hereto by reference.

AREA COVERED

The area to be covered in the study under this Agreement shall be Pottawattamie County, lowa.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The County shall do, perform, and carry out the duties stated herein and in accordance with
MAPA's FY 2022 Unified Work Program for transportation planning activities for the Omaha-
Council Bluffs Metropolitan Area. The work will include the various work activities within work
element 310 identified below and Exhibit IIl.

Pottawattamie County GIS Activities (31003)

Pottawattamie County will conduct a GIS program including creating, maintaining, and
managing ongoing geospatial data. Pottawattamie County will accurately develop and maintain
data sets and tools supporting transportation planning, modeling, analysis, and forecasting.
Data sets will include, but not be limited to, streets, right-of-way, land records (lots, parcels,
subdivisions, etc.), section corners, zoning, and annexations. Funding will support staff time for
the aforementioned activities. Implementing the natural resources inventory and coordinating
open data resources with other county GIS departments.

The County shall develop progress reports documenting their work activities and studies
undertaken under the terms of this Agreement. These reports shall be of a quality suitable for
publication, but will not ordinarily be intended for wide distribution. The documents shall be
written in a style and form suitable for a technical audience rather than the mass public. Such
reports shall contain the following information:

1. Activities completed in the quarter.

2. Percentage completion.



C.

3. Number of hours completed by employee by activity for the quarter.

4. Activities to be completed next quarter.

5. Any existing or expected concerns about completed the activities included in the scope.
The aforementioned reports shall be prepared for no less than the work activities specifically
cited within Section 3, Scope of Services. The remaining work activities within the FY 2022
Program may be documented in a single report or additional reports as is mutually agreeable
to MAPA and the County.

The County will cooperate with MAPA in the preparation of information and reports to meet in a
timely manner, the requirements of IDOT. MAPA will be provided a copy of data and reports
developed as a result of this Agreement.

The County will be available to provide quarterly oral reports to the MAPA Transportation
Technical Advisory Committee and the MAPA Board of Directors when necessary, and will
submit written quarterly progress reports. These progress reports will provide, for work element
310 the following information: work performed during the completed quarter, conformance to
approved project scope, percent completed, if on schedule, and planned activities for the next
quarter. These reports need to be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of each
quarter.

4. PERSONNEL

A.

The County represents that it has, or will secure all personnel required in performing the services
under this Agreement without exceeding the project budget. Such personnel will not have any
other financial interest pertaining to work covered by this Agreement.

All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the County or under its supervision
and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified and authorized under state and
local law to perform such services.

All subcontracted services covered by this Agreement shall be reviewed and approved prior to
contracting by MAPA and IDOT.

5. TIME OF PERFORMANCE
The County agrees to perform the services of this Agreement as outlined in the FY 2022 Program

and stated herein, within the time of this Agreement. The agreement shall cover work performed
beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022.

6. COMPENSATION
Contingent upon receipt of Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) PL funds from IDOT under
Agreement Project No22/MPo/A8f MAPA agrees to pay for the services rendered by the County
under the terms of this Agreement, compensation on a cost reimbursement basis for costs incurred



and to include direct costs not to exceed in any event thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) less

independent audit and inspection fees, unless acceptable compliance with 2 CFR 200 can be

substituted. The County agrees tc contribute in cash or in services a minimum requirement of

twelve thousand eight hundred fifty-seven dollars ($12,857). Services shall be defined as staff time

paid with non-federal dollars or equipment purchased with non-federal dollars. {Exhibit III)

Payments for work under this agreement will be made based on actual costs up to a Maximum-

Not-To-Exceed amount identified in the preceding paragraph. Actual costs include direct labor

costs, direct non-labor costs, and overhead costs.

A. Direct Labor Costs are the earnings that individuals receive for the time they are working

directly on the project.

a. Hourly Rates: For hourly employees, the hourly earnings rate shall be their employee’s
straight time hourly rate for the pay period in which the work was performed. If overtime
hours are worked on this project, the premium pay portion of those hours is not allowable
as a direct labor cost. For salaried employees, the hourly earnings rate shall be their
actual hourly rate as recorded in the County's accounting books of record.

b. Time Reports: The hours charged to the project must be supported by adequate time
distribution records that clearly indicate the distribution of hours to all projects/activities on
a daily basis for the entire pay period. Time reports must provide a clear identifying link
to the projects: such as project description, project number, pertinent work phase, dates
of service, and the individual's name and positiocn. There must be an adequate system of
internal controls in place to ensure that time charges are correct and have the appropriate
supervisory approval.

B. Direct Non-Labor Costs: These costs include all necessary, actual, and allowable costs related

to completing the work under the agreement, including but not limited to: meals, lodging,
mileage, subject to the limitations outlined below; communication costs; reproduction and
printing costs; special equipment and materials required for the project; special insurance
premiums if required solely for this agreement; and such other allowable items. Purchases of
such items should follow federal funding procurement process. Meal and lodging expenses
shall not exceed IRS published per diem rates for the region, Alcoholic beverages are not
considered to be an allowable expense and are not reimbursable.

A non-labor cost charged as a direct cost cannot be included in the County's overhead rate. If
for reasons of practicality, the consultant is treating a direct non-labor cost category, in its
entirety, as an overhead cost, then costs from that category are not eligible to be billed to this
project as a direct expense.

County shall submit to the Planning Agency an invoice or billing itemizing all direct non-labor
costs claimed for work under this agreement, and all supporting receipts or invoices.

7. ACCOUNTING RECORDS

A

The County shall establish and maintain accounts for the project in a manner consistent with
applicable provisions of 2 CFR, Subtitle A, Chapter 2 Part 200 Subpart F.

Expenditures shall be in conformance with the standards for allowability of costs set forth in 2
CFR 200.



C. The County shall establish and maintain separate accounts for expenditures under this

Agreement.

If necessary, the Federal award information needed for SEFA includes:

Federal Grantor: US Department of Transportation - Federal Highway Administration
Pass-Through Grantor: Omaha-Council Bluffs Metropolitan Area Planning Agency
Program Title: Highway Planning and Construction

CFDA Number: 20.205

Project Number: 2090310006

E. The County shall maintain an accurate cost-keeping system as to all costs incurred in connection

with the subject of this Agreement and shall produce for examination books of account, bills,
invoices and other vouchers, or certified copies thereof if originals are lost, at such reasonable
time and place as may be designated by MAPA, FHWA or a designated Federal representative
and shall permit extracts and copies thereof to be made during the period and for three (3) years
after the final FHWA-MAPA audit is completed, resolved and closed.

The County shall at all times afford a representative of MAPA, FHWA, or any authorized
representative of the Federal government, reasonable facilities for examination and audits of
the cost account records, shall make such returns and reports to a representative as may be
required, shall produce and exhibit such books, accounts, documents and property as the
representative may desire to inspect, and shall in all things aid the representative in the
performance of audit duties.

If any amount paid by MAPA to the County under this Agreement is found to be ineligible for
reimbursement from the sponsoring federal agency, the County shall pay such amount back to
MAPA,

8. SUBMISSION OF VOUCHERS/INVOICES

A

The County may submit monthly, but no less than quarterly, documented invoices of costs
incurred for the work elements and work activities that were previously identified in Sections 3A
and 3E of this Agreement. Said reports shall account for the expenditure of Federal and the
County shares, shall indicate work program percentage completion, and shall contain a
statement of the County's estimate of the percentage of work completed and be signed by a
responsible representative of the County certifying that all of the items herein are true and
correct for the work performed under the terms of this Agreement. Final payment shall be made
upon determination by MAPA and IDOT that all requirements hereunder have been completed,
which determination shall not be unreasonably withheld. Promptly after receipt of the County's
invoices, and following receipt of funds from IDOT under Agreement Project NoZ2Ma YHAMMAPA
shall make payment thereon to the County. MAPA may withhold ten percent (10%) of the total



10.

compensation pending a final audit of this Agreement, 120 days from the end date of this
agreement.

All invoices shall be taken from the books of account kept by the County and the County shall
have available copies of payroll distribution, receipted bills or other documents reasonably
required by MAPA. The County shall use actual labor rates for billing purposes.

The County shall have available a listing of all the County personnel positions that may be
selected or assigned to the work contemplated herein. Said listing shall indicate the title or
classification and salary range of each such position. Itis agreed that employees of the County,
whose time is directly assignable to this FY 2022 Program, shall keep and sign a time record
showing the work element and work activity of the FY 2022 Program, date and hours worked,
and title of position.

It is understood that reimbursement for out-of-state (other than Nebraska, lowa and Kansas)
travel costs, will not be requested unless written prior approval for such travel has been given
by MAPA and the State. The rate of reimbursement will be that allowed by the State for travel
by its own employees.

If the FHWA notifies MAPA that a cost item (as identified in the cost circulars and regulations
identified herein) paid to the County under this Agreement is not eligible for funding by the
FHWA, then the County shall reimburse to MAPA the amount of the ineligible cost item.

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT FOR CAUSE

Al

If, through any cause, the County shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations
under this Agreement, or if the County shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or
stipulations of this Agreement, or refuse to accept changes required by IDOT, MAPA shall
thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the County of
such termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. In that event, all finished
or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings and reports prepared by the County
shall be made available to MAPA, and the County shall be entitled to receive compensation for
all expenses incurred or obligated on all work mutually agreed to be satisfactorily completed
through the effective date of termination.

The above also applies when the Agreement may be terminated because of circumstances
beyond the control of MAPA or the County.

CHANGES
The County or MAPA may, from time to time, request changes in the Scope of Services set forth in

this Agreement, which are to be performed by the County GIS Coordinator. Such changes, including

any increase or decrease in the amount of the County's compensation, which are mutually agreed

upon by and between MAPA and the County, and subject to the approval of the IDOT, shall be



11

12.

incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement and duly executed by authorized officials of
the Parties.

ASSIGNABILITY
Neither the County nor MAPA shall assign any interest in this Agreement, and shall not transfer any

interest in the same {(whether by assignment or novation), without prior written mutual consent.

CLAIMS

Both parties indemnify, save and hold harmless the other party, and all its agents and employees
of and from any and all claims, demands, actions or causes of action of whatever nature or character
arising out of, or by reason of, the work to be performed by either party. Each party further agrees
to defend, at its own sole cost and expense, any action or proceeding commenced for the purpose
of asserting any such claim of whatever character arising as a result of its actions. Each party
agrees to cooperate in the defense or settlement negotiation of such claim, action, or proceeding.
it is further agreed that any and all employees of either party while engaged in the performance of
any work or service required or provided for herein to be performed by that party, shall not be
considered employees of the other party, and that any and all claims that may or might arise under
the Worker's Compensation Act of the State of Nebraska or any other applicable workers'
compensation law on behalf of said employees, while so engaged, and any and all claims made by
any third parties as a consequence of any act or omission on the part of said employees, shall in no

way be the obligation or responsibility of the other party.

13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST LAWS

A. No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States shall be admitted to any share
or part of this contract or to any benefit arising therefrom.

B. No employee, officer or agent may participate in the selection, award or administration of a
contract supported by a Federal award if he or she has a real or apparent conflict of interest.
Such a conflict would arise when the employee, officer or agent, any member of his/her
immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ
any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal
benefit from a firm considered for a contract. The officers, employees, and agents of the non-
Federal entity may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value

from contractors or parties to subcontracts.

14. IDENTIFICATION OF DOCUMENTS

A. All reports, maps, and other documents completed as part of this Agreement, other than

documents completed exclusively for internal use within MAPA, shall carry the following notation



on the front cover or a title page (or, in the case of maps in the same block) containing the name
of MAPA, the County and the following:
"The preparation of this report, document, etc. was financed in part through
a Federal grant from the Department of Transportation under the
Transportation Planning Program authorized under 23 USC Section 134."
Together with the date (month and year) the document was prepared.
Originals of all documents including computer tapes, tracings, drawings, estimates,
specifications, field notes, investigations, studies, etc., as instruments of service under terms of
this Agreement are to be the joint property of the politicai jurisdiction and governmental agencies
participating in the transportation planning process. Copies of said documents will be made

available to such participants upon request at costs of such reproduction.

15. PUBLICATION OR RELEASE OF INFORMATION

A.

Papers, interim reports, forms or other material which are a part of the work under this
Agreement shall not be copyrighted without written approval of IDOT and FHWA.

Either party to the Agreement may initiate a request for publication of the final or interim reports,
or any partions thereof.

Publication by either party shall give credit to the other party and to the FHWA. However, if
IDOT or FHWA does not wish to subscribe to the findings or conclusions of the study the
following statement shall be included on the credit sheet: "The opinions, findings and
conclusions expressed in this publication are those of the authors and not necessarily those of
IDOT or the Federal Highway Administration.”

In the event of failure of agreement between IDOT and the County relative to the publication of
any reports during the period of the Agreement, each party reserves the right to publish
independently, in which event the nonoccurrence of the cther party shall be set forth, if
requested.

Both written and oral releases are considered to be within the context of publication. However,
there is no intention to limit discussion of the study with participants in the Transportation
Planning Program, small technical groups or lectures to employees or students. Lectures to
other groups which describe the plans are permissible.

Neither party shall publish nor otherwise disclose, nor permit to be disclosed or published, the
results of the investigation herein contemplated, during the period of the Agreement, without
notifying the other party.

When the scheduled time for presentation of a paper does not permit formal review and approval
of a complete report, abstracts may be used for notification of intent to present a paper based
on the study. Such presentation must protect the interest of the other party by the inclusion of
a statement in the paper and in presentation to the effect that the paper had not been reviewed
by the State.



16. FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES
Both Parties agree that in accordance with the Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act, Neb. Rev.
Stat. § 48-1101-48-1126, and all regulation relative to nondiscrimination in federally assisted
programs of the Department of Transportation, Title 49 CFR, Parts 21 and 27 as set forth in
SECTION 22. TITLE VI NONDISCRIMINATION CLAUSES of this Agreement. The reference to
“Contractor” in this section also means “County”.

17. DISABILITIES ACT
The County agrees to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-366), as
implemented by 28 CFR 35, which is hersby made a part of and included in this Agreement by

reference.

18. RESIDENCY VERIFICATION

Each party shall use a federal immigration verification system to determine the work eligibility status
of new employees physically performing services within the States of lowa and Nebraska. A federal
immigration verification system means the electronic verification of the work autherization program
authorized by the illegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. §
1324a, known as the E-Verify Program, or an equivalent federal program designated by the United
States Department of Homeland Security or other federal agency authorized to verify the work
eligibility status of a newly hired employee.

19. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE)

A. The County shall ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part
26 shall have the maximum opportunity fo participate in the performance of contracts finance
in whole or in part with Federal Funds under this Agreement

B. The County and MAPA shall ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises as defined in 49

CFR Part 26 have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and
subcontracts finance in whole or in part with Federal Funds provided under this Agreement. In
this regard, the County shall take all necessary and reascnable steps in accordance with 49
CFR Part 26 to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises have the maximum opportunity
to compete for and perform contracts. MPO shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color,
sex, age, disability, or national origin in the award and performance of FHWA assisted contracts.

20. TITLE VI NONDISCRIMINATION CLAUSES
During the performance of this Agreement, the County, for itself, its assignees and successors in

interest agrees as follows:



A. Compliance with Regulations:
The County shall comply with the Regulations of the Department of Transportation relative to
nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation (Title 49,
Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 21 and 27, hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which
are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.
B. Nondiscrimination:
The County with regard to the work performed by it after award and prior to completion of the
contract work, shall not discriminate on the basis of disability, race, color, sex, age, disability,
religion or national origin in the selection and retention of sub-contractors, including
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The County shall not participate either
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulation, including
employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix “A’, *B", and
"C" of Part 21 of the Regulation.
C. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:
In all solicitations either by compelitive bidding or negotiation made by the County for work to
be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or equipment, each
potential sub-contractor or supplier shall be notified by the County of the County's obligations
under this agreement and the Regulation relative to nondiscrimination on the basis of disahility,
race, color, sex, religion or national origin.
D. Information and Reports:
The County shall provide all information and reports required by the federal regulations, or
orders and instructions issued pursuant thereto, and will permit access to its books, records,
accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the MPO,
State of Nebraska or FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such federal
regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the
exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the County
shail so certify to the State of Nebraska or FHWA as appropriate and shall set forth what efforts
it has made to obtain the information.
E. Sanctions for Noncompliance:
In the event of the County's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this
Agreement, the MPO will impose such contract sanctions as it or FHWA may determine to be
appropriate, including but not limited to,
a. Withholding of payments to the County under this Agreement until the County complies,
and/or
b. Cancellation, termination or suspension of this Agreement, in whole or in part.

F. Incorporation of Provisions:



The County shall include the provision of section 22.A through 22 F in every subcontract,
including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the
Regulations, order, or instructions issued pursuant thereto. The County shall take such action
with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the MPO or FHWA may direct as a means
of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that, in
the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a sub-contractor
or supplier as a result of such direction, the County may request the MPOR to enter into such
litigation to protect the interests of the MPQ, and in addition, the County may request the United

States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

21.APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE
Parties to this Agreement shall conform to all existing and applicable city ordinances, resolutions,
state and local laws, federal laws, and all existing and applicable rules and regulations. lowa laws

will govern the terms and the performance under this Agreement.

22 ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties. The provisions of this Agreement
may not be explained, supplemented, or qualified through evidence of trade usage or prior course
of dealings. No representations were made or relied upon by either Party other than those that are
expressly set forth herein. No agent, employee or other representative of either Party is empowered

to alter any of the terms hereof except as provided herein.

23. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS, LOANS, AND
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract,
the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal ioan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer of employee of any federal
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a

Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative

10



agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclesure
Form to Report Lobbying” in accordance with its instructions.
¢. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts
under grants, sub-grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients
shall certify and disclose accordingly.
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite from making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, US Code. Any person who fails
to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not

more than $100,000 for each such failure.

24 DRUG FREE POLICY

Both parties have established and maintain drug free workplace policies.

25 PUBLIC BENEFITS
With regard to Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 4-108 — 113, neither Party is an individual or sole proprietorship.
Therefore, neither Party is subject to the public benefits attestation and related requirements of Neb.
Rev. Stat. §§ 4-108 — 113,

26. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
It is agreed that nothing contained herein is intended or should be construed in any manner as
creating or establishing a partnership or joint venture between the Parties. Any and all acts that
either Party or its personnel, employees, agents, contractors, or servants, perform pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement shall be undertaken as independent contractors and not as empioyees of
the cther. The Parties shall, except as provided herein, act in their individual capacities and not as
agents, employees, pariners, joint ventures or associates of the other. An employee or agent of one
shall not be deemed or construed to be the employee or agent of the other for any purpose
whatsoever. None of the Parties nor its personnel, employees, agents, contractors, or servants shall
be entitled to any benefits of the other. The Parties shall not provide any insurance caverage to the
other or their employees including, but not limited to, workers’ compensation insurance. Each Party
shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due its employees and shall be responsible for all
reports, obligations, and payments pertaining to social security taxation, income tax withholding,
workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, group insurance coverage, collective
bargaining agreements or any other such similar matters. Neither Party shall have any authority to

bind the other by or with any contract or agreement, nor to impose any liability upon the other. All

11



acts and contracts of each shall be in its own name and not in the name of the other, unless

otherwise provided herein.

27. COPELAND "ANTI-KICKBACK" ACT (18 U.S.C. 874 and 40 U.S.C. 276¢) - (If applicable)
The County or subcontractor shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed
in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to
which he is otherwise entitled. The recipient shall report all suspected or reported violations to the
Federal awarding agency.

28. DAVIS-BACON ACT, as amended (40 U.S.C. 276a to a-7) ~ (If applicable)

The County and subcontractors shall be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate
not less than the minimum wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor.
In addition, contractors shall be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The recipient
shall place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor
in each solicitation and the award of a contract shall be conditioned upon the acceptance of the
wage determination. The recipient shall report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal
awarding agency.

29. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. 327-333) - (If
applicable)
The County and subcontractors shall be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and
laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week
is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than 11/2 times the basic
rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. Section 107 of the Act is
applicable to construction work and provides that no laborer or mechanic shall be required to work
in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These
requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available

on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.

30. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGEEMENT - (if applicable)
Any performance of experimental, developmental, or research work shall provide for the rights of
the Federal Government and the recipient in any resulting invention in accordance with 37 CFR part
401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under
Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regutations
issued by the awarding agency.

12



31. DEBAREMENT AND SUSPENSION (E.O.s 12549 and 12689)

The County and all subcontractors assert the organization or individuals are not listed on the
government-wide Excluded Parties List System, in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR
part 180 that implement E.O.s 12549 (3 CFR, 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR, 1989 Comp.,
p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” The Excluded Parties List System contains the names of
parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than E.O. 12549.[69 FR 26281, May 11, 2004,
as amended at 70 FR 51879, Aug. 31, 2005]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereto caused this Agreement to be executed by their proper

officers and representatives.
OMAHA-COUNCIL BLUFFS METROPOLITAN
AREA PLANNING AGENCY

Attest: ///%A P @zmﬁ \/ﬁ;\) DATE?é";A/

/ J Carol Vinton, Board Vice-Chair

POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, NEBRASKA

Attest: by DATE:

Printed Name

Title

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM

DATE j\mé /01} , 20 2’

A\ vy—

MAPA Legal Counsel

Signed

13



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

Unified Planning Work
Program (UPWP)

Final FY2022 Work Program

May 2021

Omaha - Council Bluffs
l\ Metropolitan Area
Planning Agency

ith fundin n the United States Department of
ortation (lowa DOT). The opinions, findings and c«




Exhibit |: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

OMAHA-COUNCIL BLUFFS METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING AGENCY
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2021- 40

WHEREAS, the members of the Omaha-Council Bluffs Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)
have been formally designated by their respective legislative bodies to act as the official representative in
planning matters of mutual concern; and

WHEREAS, MAPA is the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Omaha-
Council Bluffs Transportation Management Area (TMA); and

WHEREAS, The MPO, as required Metropolitan transportation planning activities performed with
funds provided under title 23 U.S.C. and title 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53 shall be documented in a unified
planning work program (UPWP), or simplified statement of work in accordance with the provisions of this
section and 23 CFR part 420 and must annually prepare a document that provides an overview of all
purposed major work activities, funding levels and funding sources; and

WHEREAS, The Unified Planning Work Program for fiscal year 2022, covering the period of July 1,
2021 to June 30, 2022 has been prepared, submitted to the lowa Department of Transportation and
Nebraska Department of Transportation, made available for public comment for a thirty (30) day period and
has been reviewed and recommended for adoption by the Transportation Technical Advisory Committee
of the MPO, and now requires official approval from the Board of Directors of the MPO.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Omaha-Council Bluffs Metropolitan Area Planning
Agency Board of Directors approves the Unified Planning Work Program for Fiscal Year 2022.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the MAPA Board Chairman and the MAPA Executive Director
are hereby authorized and directed to execute such agreements with lowa Department of Transportation
and Nebraska Department of Transportation on behalf of the MAPA MPO.

PASSED this 27th Day of May, 2021

Carol Vinton, Board Vice-Chair



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

Table of Gontents

Table of Contents

Introduction
Current Transportation Planning Overview
Work Program Framework
Modifications to the Approved Work Program
Revisions and Approval Procedures
Performance Management Agreement

FY2022 Work Program Activities
200 — Work Program & Federal Assurances
210 — Board & Committee Support
220 - Regional Transportation Planning
230 - Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) & Local Projects
240 - Communications & Community Relations
250 - Regional Data, Mapping & Forecasting
260 - Environment & Energy
270 — Heartland 2050 Implementation
280 - Training & Education
290 - Transportation Management
300 - Membership Services
310 - Local and Partner Planning Support

FY2022 Work Program Budget Summary
FY2022 Work Program Full Budget

The preparation of this report was financed in part with funding from the United States
Department of Transportation (USDOT), administered by the Nebraska Department of

—

0 0 O WM

12
14
16
19
22
24
97
29
31
32
33
34

39
40

Transportation (NDOT) and lowa Department of Transportation (lowa DOT). The opinions, findings

and conclusions expressed in this publication are those of the authors and do not necessarily

represent USDOT, NDOT, and lowa DOT. MAPA is an EOE/DBE employer.

it

1 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

Introduction

The Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) documents the Metropolitan Area Planning
Agency's (MAPA’s) transportation-related activities and projects for fiscal year (FY) 2022 which
encompasses July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. MAPA serves as a voluntary association of
local governments in the greater Omaha region chartered in 1967. MAPA performs planning and
development work, especially to address problems that are regional in scope and cross
jurisdictional boundaries. Figure 1 (next page) illustrates the MAPA TMA.

The governing body for MAPA is a 79-member Council of Officials representing cities, counties,
school districts, resource agencies, and numerous other governmental bodies within the region.
The MAPA Board of Directors is a nine-member Board serving as the Council of Officials’
executive committee and is composed of elected officials representing cities and counties from
the larger six-county MAPA region. The Transportation Technical Advisory Committee (TTAC)
reviews and makes recommendations related to transportation to the MAPA Board. The
relationship, responsibility, and composition of the Board of Directors, Council of Officials, and
TTAC are also described in the MAPA Interlocal Agreement and Committee Bylaws.
Membership of key MAPA Committees Appendix Il

Council of Officials

MAPA is governed by a 79-member Council of Officials,
representing each of the 79 governmental units which
comprise MAPA within the six counties it serves. They include:
Douglas, Sarpy, Cass and Washington Counties in Nebraska;
Pottawattamie and Mills Counties in lowa. The Council’s roles
include approving the agency'’s long range plan and setting
overall policy.

Transportation Planning Affiliations

In its role as a Metropolitan Planning Organization, MAPA is
‘ the pass-through agency for millions of dollars in federal
P . transportation funding for the Transportation Management
. sHBY | Area (TMA) it serves which consists of Douglas and Sarpy

= Counties in Nebraska and western Pottawattamie County in
lowa (mainly the boundaries of the City of Council Bluffs). In
addition, MAPA also serves as the administrator for lowa
Regional Planning Affiliation 18, which includes the counties of
Harrison, Mills and Shelby, and the non-urbanized portion of
Pottawattamie County.

1 MAPA TMA
' Regional Planning Affiliation 18 (RPA-18)

[T

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 2



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

Figure 1: Detailed View of MAPA's Transportation Management Area

Dodae

Saunders

Fremont i

Current Transportation Planning Overview

The global COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 and early 2021 caused a number of unexpected and
unprecedented changes to the transportation process. Principally, MAPA continues to support
the recovery of local governments from both the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and 2019
flooding in Nebraska and lowa. MAPA has coordinated closely with state and federal partners
on federal funding programs in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and will continue to assist
its member jurisdictions through their recovery from the pandemic and its impacts. Additionally,
MAPA's public engagement activities were shifted to virtual platforms to slow the spread of the
novel coronavirus. While these changes in plans caused some initial challenges, they also
provided an opportunity to develop new tools and to test hybrid types of engagement by
providing people multiple opportunities to engage with our projects in the coming years. Notable
among these was MAPA's partnership with the Nebraska Department of Transportation (NDOT),

il

3 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

City of Omaha, Benson Business Improvement District and Benson Neighborhood Association
to deliver a virtual “Block Talk”. Leveraging online maps, drone photography, and “photospheres”
the MAPA team led engagement activities to prioritize safety improvements for cyclists and
pedestrians throughout the neighborhood. This effort built off the coordination between MAPA,
NDOT and FHWA to develop actionable strategies to reduce pedestrian serious injuries and
fatalities along the Maple Street corridor.

Throughout 2020 and early 2021 MAPA coordinated with the Greater Omaha Chamber of
Commerce (GOCC) on ConnectGO—an initiative designed to change the conversation about the
role transportation plays in supporting the lives of people in the Omaha-Council Bluffs region.
Closely coordinated with the development of MAPA's 2050 LRTP, this effort produced an
actionable strategy that includes implementation plans for policy, programs and specific
transportation projects focused around system preservation, attracting and retaining talent,
improving accessibility to jobs and services, and fostering economic growth in the region. This
partnership has brought new partners to the table from the private and philanthropic sectors,
leveraging the strengths of both MAPA and the GOCC.

MAPA has continued to lead the Sarpy County I-80 Interchange Planning and Environmental
Linkages (PEL) Study which is exploring the potential for a new interchange in an area with
significant forecasted future growth. The study has held multiple rounds of public and
stakeholder engagement to develop a purpose and need for the effort and establish priorities
for evaluating alternatives. Across the river, work on the Council Bluffs Interstate System (CBIS)
project has continued and significant phases (such as the interchange with West Broadway) will
begin construction in the coming year.

MAPA continued its safety planning activities to support the regional target-setting process
MAPA's Safety Committee is composed of representatives from all levels of government,
non-profit partners, and private industry to understand and prioritize safety issues in the region.
MAPA updated its Regional Safety Report and crash data dashboard, www.safety.mapacog.org,
to provide the public with more routine access to crash-related data. MAPA's continued
participation in NDOT's Highway Safety Committee has more closely linked the regional
planning process with State Highway Safety Planning process.

In FY2020 MAPA worked closely with partners on the Heartland Freight Technology Plan-a
multi-state partnership between state DOTs and MPOs to align policies and priorities for the
future of goods movement in lowa, Nebraska, Missouri and Kansas. These efforts were closely
coordinated with the ConnectGO Freight Working Group to guide priorities in the Long Range
Transportation Plan and ConnectGO strategy. By partnering with the Greater Omaha Chamber of
Commerce, new private sector partners such as traditional freight carriers, Amazon, and
freight-dependent industries were convened along with local policymakers to discuss the most
pressing issues facing the Omaha-Council Bluffs region. Chief among these issues is the need
for additional, sustainable revenues to implement 2050 LRTP and ConnectGO priorities.

Transit planning continues to play a central role in MAPA’s activities. In 2020, Metro Transit

[T

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 4



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

successfully launched ORBT-the region’s first Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) corridor—amid the
COVID-19 pandemic. Recent legislation in Nebraska provides for the creation of a Regional
Transit Authority, accelerating Metro Transit’s development of its MetroNEXT strategic plan.
MAPA's Long Range Transportation Planning outreach and efforts led by GOCC’s ConnectGO
initiative continued these conversations with key stakeholders and leaders throughout the
region over the last year, focused on the connection between increased route frequency and
high-capacity service in improving access to jobs and services and economic development. The
Regional Development Report is a recent example of MAPA's role as a leader in data resources
for the region. Building off successful partnerships with the Greater Omaha Chamber’s Regional
Indicators Project and local jurisdictions, MAPA will incorporate new data and resources related
to affordable housing conversations in the region into this narrative about the region's growth
and development. The report provides key data points for MAPA's on-going Close the Gap
initiative about the importance of compact, walkable neighborhoods to the fiscal health of
member communities. Additionally, this focus underpins MAPA's interest in participation in
other regionally-significant land use planning initiatives, including the FIRST AVE redevelopment
work in Council Bluffs, Bellevue's Fort Crook Road Corridor, and Omaha'’s Transit Oriented
Development (TOD) policy development.

In FY2021 MAPA continued to make significant progress on our regional open data portal,
GoHUB, to bring the resources of these county GIS departments together for use by
stakeholders and the public. This effort built on the collaboration to develop a Natural
Resources Inventory to unify the environmental and community data resources available to the
development community. MAPA's Little Steps, Cleaner Air Travel Demand Management
program has worked closely with employers throughout the region to understand how
commuting patterns may be impacted by changes to work site policies—opening up new
opportunities to explore strategies related to parking, transit, and work from home. The region
faces significant challenges to reducing single-occupancy vehicle trips overall including major
changes to the built environment, low levels of transit funding, and significant maintenance
backlogs on the local system.

Significant progress has been made in improving the delivery of federal-aid projects in the MAPA
region. The large balance of Regional STBG funding that had built up as projects languished has
been spent down to our annual allocation over the last three years. FY2021 marked the first
year in which new STBG applications were solicited in nearly five years, owing to this progres.
Major projects (including Bellevue's 36th Street - Phase 1 and Omaha'’s 168th Street - Phase 1)
have been let in the last 12 months, marking significant milestones towards implementing
long-term priorities in our Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). MAPA has continued to
develop the online TIP database and mapping platform that provides up-to-date programming
information to project partners and helps track the status of projects in both lowa and
Nebraska. Securing additional funding for transportation-related projects remains a long-term
challenge and will slow the implementation of 2050 LRTP priorities.

fi

5 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

Work Program Framework

MAPA’s Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) is developed in accordance with the
metropolitan planning provisions described in the 23 CFR - Part 450 and 49 CFR - Part 613. The
UPWP is created in cooperation with state and federal agencies who are financial sponsors, and
it is intended as a management tool for participating agencies.

MAPA has continued to update and maintain its Strategic Plan annually in coordination with
MAPA staff and the MAPA Board. During the development of the UPWP, a priority setting
process was used to evaluate existing programs and projects against these goals. Additional
outreach was conducted to the Council of Officials, Board of Directors, and TTAC to understand
our members’ needs for the upcoming year. Results of the priority setting process are reflected
by the projects and associated funding levels shown in the UPWP.

In accord with the spirit of federal transportation legislation, MAPA conducts a continuing,
coordinated, and comprehensive planning process for the region. This process is intended to
meet the transportation needs of the region's residents to the extent possible with available
resources.

The transportation planning process for the region takes into account all modes of
transportation: roadway, highway, transit, air, rail, and water, as well as active modes of
transportation such as walking and bicycling. The provision of transportation services must also
be consistent and compatible with the overall goals and development of the region. Major
considerations include the environment, energy conservation, growth patterns, land use,
tourism, and recreation, as well as a wise and efficient use of economic resources.

MAPA's responsibilities include the LRTP, TIP, and UPWP. As a TMA with a population greater
than 200,000, MAPA is charged with conducting a Congestion Management Process (CMP).
Other planning products include the Coordinated Public Transit and Human Services Plan and
Public Participation Plan (PPP). MAPA is compliant with civil rights legislation and maintains a
Title VI Plan and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program.

The UPWP will also contain activities to assist in implementing provisions contained in surface
transportation legislation. The following planning factors identified in the current federal
legislation, Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act, will, at a minimum, be
considered in the transportation planning process for the region:

1. Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling global
competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency.

Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and nonmotorized users.
Increase the security of transportation for motorized and nonmotorized users.

Increase the accessibility and mobility options available to people and for freight.
Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, and improve quality

I

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 6

ukwn



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

6. Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system across and
between modes for people and freight.

7. Promote efficient system management and operation.

8. Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system.

9. Improve resiliency & reliability of the transportation system and reduce or mitigate storm
water impacts.

10. Enhance travel and tourism

In addition, the transportation planning program is formulated to support the goals and
objectives specific to the region as identified in the 2050 LRTP, namely:

Ensure equitable access to opportunity

Cultivate a quality of place that attracts and retains talent

Foster economic growth throughout the region

Provide stewardship of the existing and future transportation system

The UPWP budget includes sub-recipients that utilize FHWA PL and FTA 5305(d) funding for
MAPA activities. These locally-funded planning activities contribute to the regional
transportation planning process. Sub-recipients for the FY2022 Work Program are summarized
in the table below.

Local Planning Partner Funding Source Federal Award Total Project Cost

Douglas County GIS PL-Nebraska $54,992 $78,560
Sarpy County GIS & Planning PL-Nebraska $§57,403 $82,055
City of Omaha Planning PL-Nebraska $40,005 $57,150
City of Omaha Public Works PL-Nebraska $60,000 $85,715
Pottawattamie County GIS PL-lowa $30,000 $42,857
Metro Transit FTA-5305d $60,000 $85,715

it

7 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

Modifications to the Approved Work Program

All changes to work programs require prior written federal approval, unless waived by the
awarding agency. The following table denotes the approving agency for various changes to work
programs.

NOTE: The below table will be updated when final guidance is provided by NDOT and lowa DOT.

Revision Type Approving Agency

Request for additional federal funding 2 CFR 200.308(b)and FTA Circular FHWA / FTA
5010.0C,.6.e(1)]

Transfer of funds between categories, projects, functions, or activities FHWA / FTA
which exceed 10 percent of total work program budget $150,000 2 CFR

200.308(e)

Revision of scope or objectives of activities (i.e. adding or deleting FHWA / FTA

activities or major change in scope of activity) 2 CFR 200.308 (c) (1)

Transferring substantive programmatic work to third party (i.e. FHWA / FTA
consultant) 2 CFR 200.308 (c) (6)

Capital expenditures including equipment purchasing in excess of $5,000 FHWA / FTA
2CFR 200.439(a) (2) [OMB Circular A-87)]

Transfer of funds allotted for training allowances 2 CFR 200.308 (c) (5) FHWA / FTA
Transfer of funds between categories, projects, functions, or activities State

which do not exceed 10 percent of total work program budget or when

federal award share of total work program budget exceeds $150,000 2

CFR 200.308 (e)

Revisions related to work that does not involve federal funding MAPA

Revisions and Approval Procedures

Revisions where FHWA / FTA is the designated approving agency shall require written approval
by FHWA / FTA prior to commencement of activity, purchasing of equipment, or request for
reimbursement. Requests from MAPA will be submitted in writing to the appropriate state
personnel and then forwarded to FHWA / FTA for approval. Notification by the approving agency
will be in writing in reverse order.

[T

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 8



Exhibit I FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

Revisions where the State (NDOT or lowa DOT Systems Planning Bureau) is the designated
approving agency shall require written approval by the State prior to commencement of activity,
purchasing of equipment, or request for reimbursement. Requests from MAPA will be submitted
in writing to the appropriate State personnel and then forwarded to FHWA / FTA for approval.
Notification by the approving agency will be in writing in reverse order.

Revisions where MAPA is the approving agency shall be approved by the Board of Directors.
Updates to the work program shall be provided to the appropriate state and federal
representatives via electronic or, upon request, hard copy.

Performance Management Agreement

On May 27, 2016, the final rule for statewide and metropolitan transportation planning was
published, based on 2012's Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) Act and
2015’s Fixing America’s Transportation System (FAST) Act. As part of this final rule, 23 CFR
450.314 (h) was amended to state:

(h)(1) The MPO(s), State(s), and the providers of public transportation shall jointly agree
upon and develop specific written provisions for cooperatively developing and sharing
information related to transportation performance data, the selection of performance
targets, the reporting of performance targets, the reporting of performance to be used in
tracking progress toward attainment of critical outcomes for the region of the MPO (see
§450.306(d)), and the collection of data for the State asset management plan for the NHS
for each of the following circumstances:
(i) When one MPO serves an urbanized area;
(ii) When more than one MPO serves an urbanized area; and
(iii) When an urbanized area that has been designated as a TMA overlaps into an
adjacent MPA serving an urbanized area that is not a TMA.
(2) These provisions shall be documented either:
(i) As part of the metropolitan planning agreements required under paragraphs (a),
(e), and (g) of this section; or
(i) Documented in some other means outside of the metropolitan planning
agreements as determined cooperatively by the MPO(s), State(s), and providers of
public transportation.

In 2017, the following three-pronged approach was cooperatively developed to address 23 CFR
450.314 (h) for MPOs in lowa. This approach provides a regular opportunity to review and
update coordination methods as performance management activities occur, which offers an
adaptable framework as performance-based planning and programming evolves.
e Agreement between the lowa DOT and MPOs on applicable provisions through
documentation included in each MPO'’s TPWP.
e Agreement between the lowa DOT and relevant public transit agencies on applicable
provisions through documentation included in each public transit agency’s consolidated
funding application.

it

9 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

e Agreement between each MPO and relevant public transit agencies on applicable
provisions through documentation included in the appropriate cooperative
agreement(s) between the MPO and relevant public transit agencies.

Performance measures require coordination with the MPOs to set performance targets, collect
performance measure data and report performance measure data to FHWA and/or FTA. These
requirements are included in this MPO manual as detailed in this section and identify the
responsibilities for carrying out performance-based planning and programming in the
metropolitan planning area (23 CFR 450.314(h)). National goals and performance management
measures are identified in 23 U.S.C §150 and Federal Transit performance measures for capital
assets are identified in 49 CFR §625.43 and safety in 49 CFR Part 673.

This following section includes the provisions for cooperatively developing and sharing
information related to transportation performance data, selecting performance targets,
reporting performance targets, performance used in tracking progress toward attainment of
critical outcomes for the region of the MPQ, and collecting data for the State Transportation
Asset Management Plan (TAMP) for the NHS. Inclusion of the following language in an MPQ'’s
TPWP and that TPWP's subsequent approval by lowa DOT, constitutes agreement on these
items. The lowa DOT and MAPA agree to the following provisions. The communication outlined
in these provisions between the MPO and lowa DOT will generally be through the statewide
planning coordinator in the Office of Systems Planning.

1) Transportation performance data

a. The NDOT and lowa DOT will provide MPOs with the statewide performance data
used in developing statewide targets, and, when applicable, will also provide
MPOs with subsets of the statewide data, based on their planning area
boundaries.

b. If MPOs choose to develop their own target for any measure, they will provide the
NDOT and lowa DOT with any supplemental data they utilize in the target-setting
process.

2) Selection of performance targets

a. The NDOT and lowa DOT will develop draft statewide performance targets for
FHWA measures in coordination with MPOs. Coordination may include in-person
meetings, web meetings, conference calls, and/or email communication. MPOs
shall be given an opportunity to provide comments on statewide targets and
methodology before final statewide targets are adopted.

b. If an MPO chooses to adopt their own target for any measure, they will develop
draft MPO performance targets in coordination with the NDOT and lowa DOT.
Coordination methods will be at the discretion of the MPO, but the NDOT and
lowa DOT shall be provided an opportunity to provide comments on draft MPO
performance targets and methodology prior to final approval.

3) Reporting of performance targets

a. NDOT and lowa DOT performance targets will be reported to FHWA and FTA, as

applicable. MPOs will be notified when NDOT and lowa DOT has reported final

I

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 10



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

statewide targets.

b. MPO performance targets will be reported to the NDOT and lowa DOT.

i. For each target, the MPO will provide the following information no later
than 180 days after the date the NDOT and lowa DOT or relevant provider
of public transportation establishes performance targets, or the date
specified by federal code.

1. A determination of whether the MPO is 1) agreeing to plan and
program projects so that they contribute toward the
accomplishment of the NDOT and lowa DOT or relevant provider
of public transportation performance target, or 2) setting a
quantifiable target for that performance measure for the MPQ'’s
planning area.

2. If a quantifiable target is set for the MPO planning area, the MPO
will provide any supplemental data used in determining any such
target.

3. Documentation of the MPO’s target or support of the statewide or
relevant public transportation provider target will be provided in
the form of a resolution or meeting minutes.

c. The NDOT and lowa DOT will include information outlined in 23 CFR 450.216 (f)
in any statewide transportation plan amended or adopted after May 27, 2018, and
information outlined in 23 CFR 450.218 (q) in any statewide transportation
improvement program amended or adopted after May 27, 2018.

d. MPOs will include information outlined in 23 CFR 450.324 (g) (3-4) in any
metropolitan transportation plan amended or adopted after May 27, 2018, and
information outlined in 23 CFR 450.326 (d) in any transportation improvement
program amended or adopted after May 27, 2018.

e. Reporting of targets and performance by the NDOT and lowa DOT and MPOs

_ shall conform to 23 CFR 490, 49 CFR 625, and 49 CFR 673.
4) Reporting of performance to be used in tracking progress toward attainment of critical
outcomes for the region of the MPO

a. The NDOT and lowa DOT will provide MPOs with the statewide performance data
used in developing statewide targets, and, when applicable, will also provide
MPOs with subsets of the statewide data, based on their planning area
boundaries. Updates of this data will include prior performance data.

5) The collection of data for the State asset management plans for the NHS

a. The NDOT and lowa DOT will be responsible for collecting bridge and pavement

condition data for the State asset management plan for the NHS.

il

11 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

FY2022 Work Program Activities

The following pages detail the work activities that MAPA and contract sub-recipients will
undertake in FY 2022.

200 - Work Program & Federal Assurances

Objective
To efficiently develop and implement MAPA’s Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) in

accordance with MPO responsibilities and federal requirements

Previous Work

e Maintained and updated UPWP

Developed & Executed PL Agreements with NDOT

Held leadership and staff workshops to develop Strategic Plan of five-year priorities
Implementation of the Certification Review Action Plan

Quarterly reporting & Invoicing to NDOT & IDOT

Reviewed Annual DBE goal requirements

Work Activities

1.

Planning Agreements
Maintain and review the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) outlining state, MPO, and

transit responsibilities. Develop and execute the annual PL Agreements with Nebraska and
lowa.

Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

Develop the FY2023 UPWP and maintain the FY2022 UPWP. A draft UPWP is approved in
March by the Council of Officials, Board of Directors, and TTAC, with submission in April for
state and federal review. Final approval by MAPA occurs in May, with submission in June to
state and federal agencies.

Strategic Planning

Implement MAPA Strategic Plan with leadership team and Board of Directors. Facilitate
annual staff workshop to refine strategic plan and align Work Program activities with
strategic plan

Certification Review Action Plan
Implement the federal Certification Review Action Plan for MAPA's programs. Review
progress and revise activities on an ongoing basis.

I

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 12



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

5. Civil Rights & Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
Update to Title VI Program and Policy document and implementation of civil rights
program. Title VI Program and Policy will be updated by October 2021 and coordinated with
state and federal partners. Review DBE Program and develop annual goals. Participate in

regional equity forums to ensure transportation is incorporated into broader planning and
equity initiatives.

200 Work Activities Budget Federal (§) | Total($) | Hours |
MAPA Work Activities $18,535 $18,678 288

200 End Products mmm
1. Planning Agreements

2. Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) - = = X

3. Strategic Planning - X o o~

4. Certification Review Action Plan - = - -

5. Civil Rights & Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) = = = =

Ongoing Implementation - Major Deliverable X

il

13 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

210 - Board & Committee Support

Objective
To support ongoing activities of MAPA’s Council of Officials, Board of Directors, Finance

Committee, Transportation Technical Advisory Committee (TTAC) and Regional Planning
Advisory Committee (RPAC)

Previous work

e Organized monthly Board of Directors meetings

Facilitated monthly Finance Committee meetings

Conducted four Council of Officials meetings, including annual meeting
Prepared and conducted monthly TTAC meetings

Prepared and conducted bi-monthly RPAC meetings

Adoption of CEDS and 2050 LRTP by Council of Officials

Work Activities

1.

Council of Officials

The Council of Officials meets quarterly and serves as MAPA's overall policy body. The
Council is charged with adopting major plans, recommending MAPA’s annual budget and
work programs to the Board of Directors, and providing oversight for MAPA’s activities.
MAPA staff members support the Council’s activities through clerical and technical
preparation, meeting costs, and conducting meetings.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors meets monthly and serves as MAPA's governing body. The Board
approves the TIP amendments, LRTP, annual budget, and work programs. The Board is
composed of elected officials who appoint and oversee the TTAC and other MAPA
committees. MAPA staff members support the Board through clerical and technical
preparation, conducting meetings, and informing members about MAPA activities.

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee meets each month during the week prior to the Board of Directors’
meeting. The Finance Committee reviews MAPA's financial statements, approves payments,
and reviews / recommends contracts, large payments and other items for the Board's
consideration. MAPA staff members support the Finance Committee through preparation of
financial documents, invoices, contracts, and other such items.

Transportation Technical Advisory Committee (TTAC)

Provide for a continuing, comprehensive, and coordinated transportation planning program
through the TTAC. Maintain correspondence and coordination with participating agencies.
Provide other technical support necessary to the transportation planning program. The

[T

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 14




Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

TTAC meets on a monthly basis to approve action items and discuss issues within the
region to forward recommendations to the Board of Directors.

5. Regional Planning Advisory Committee (RPAC)
Provide a forum to coordinate future planning and growth in the Greater Omaha-Council
Bluffs region. The Committee will provide direction for the regional vision (Heartland 2050)
through oversight of Implementation Committees and strategic decision-making. The RPAC
meets on a bi-monthly basis to approve action items and discuss issues within the region
to forward recommendations to the Board of Directors.

210 Work Activities Budget Federal ($) | Total($) | Hours |

MAPA Work Activities $135,605 $136,653 2,102

mmmm

Council of Officials

Board of Directors - - - -
Finance Committee - = = —
Transportation Technical Advisory Committee (TTAC) - - - =
Regional Planning Advisory Committee (RPAC) - - - -

R

Ongoing Implementation -  Major Deliverable X

il

15 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

220 - Regional Transportation Planning

Objective
To conduct the transportation planning activities related to the development and
implementation of the Long Range Transportation Plan

Previous Work

e Completed 2050 LRTP, with approval by MAPA Council of Officials

e Coordinated development of 2050 LRTP with the CEDS Update

e Served on action team and stakeholder committees for City of Omaha Transit Oriented
Development (TOD) policy

Participated in stakeholder committees for Omaha Rapid Bus Transit (ORBT) project
Conducted outreach to freight and private sector representatives

Coordinated with Eastern Nebraska Office on Aging regarding urban service changes
Completed Council Bluffs Transit Study in coordination with Greater Omaha Chamber of
Commerce (GOCC)

e Assisted with local planning studies, including providing forecasts and data

MAPA Work Activities

1.

2050 LRTP Administration & Implementation

Implement, review, and amend the LRTP as necessary. Support regicnal goals in
accordance with the federal transportation planning provisions. Coordination with Greater
Omaha Chamber of Commerce (GOCC) Prosper 2.0 and ConnectGO Regional
Transportation Strategy.

Transit Planning Activities

Provide data, technical analysis, and coordination in support of short-range and long-range
mass transit planning. This will include collaboration with Metro Transit, MAPA committees,
local governments, nonprofit agencies, and other stakeholders in the transit planning
process. Support development of MetroNEXT regional transportation strategy and Metro
Transit's consideration of becoming a Regional Transit Authority. Continued planning
support for the Omaha Bus Rapid Transit (ORBT) corridor, potential future BRT extensions,
core system improvements, suburban and express route enhancements. Ongoing support
of transit planning in Council Bluffs and coordination between the City of Council Bluffs,
Southwest lowa Transit Agency (SWITA), and Metro Transit.

Coordinated Transit Plan & Regional Coordination

Update the Coordinated Transit Plan (adopted in FY2018) by October 2021 through the
Coordinated Transit Committee (CTC) and its work groups. Continue collaborative work
with transportation service providers, human service agencies, and stakeholders to

[T

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 16




Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

encourage, coordinate, and implement plans, actions, and programs to enhance the
transportation opportunities of the elderly, disabled, and economically disadvantaged.
Participate in statewide mobility management coordination through NDOT and lowa DOT.

4. Bicycle&P rian Plannin iviti
Participate in bicycle/pedestrian planning activities for the region, including the
implementation of the Omaha Complete Streets policy and development of the Complete
Streets Design Guide. Support implementation of the Complete Streets policy included in
the LRTP. Assist with implementation and updates to the Heartland Connections Regional
Bicycle/Pedestrian Plan with local project partners. Facilitate ConnectGO Bike Strategy
Working Group. Support local bike and pedestrian committees including the Mayor of
Omaha’s Active Living Advisory Committee, Bellevue Complete Streets and Council Bluffs
FIRST AVE committee.

5. Ereight Planning & Coordination
Continue facilitation of ConnectGO Freight Working Group with participation from Economic

Development Corporations, freight representatives, and private transportation industries.
Convene representatives from freight and goods movement industries as well as local,
state and federal officials to ensure that freight is included in the regional planning process.
Support implementation of Heartland Freight Technology Plan in coordination with other
Midwest DOTs and MPOs. Utilize the Freight Analysis Framework (FAF5), Probe Data
Analytics Suite, and other publicly available data to characterize freight bottlenecks.
Purchase data to conduct planning studies, analyses, and modeling of freight and goods
movement in the region. Analyze potential solutions to issues developed through the
stakeholder outreach.

6. Land Use Planning & Coordination
Participate in local comprehensive planning and other land use planning activities to
support the transportation planning process. Participate in Omaha Transit Oriented
Development (TOD) policy implementation. Participate in redevelopment plan
conversations including the Council Bluffs FIRST AVE, Ralston Hinge project development,
and Bellevue Fort Crook Road Corridor. Provide and present MAPA land use forecasts and
Regional Development Report to local jurisdictions in support of the transportation planning
process.

7. Regional Safety Planning & Coordination
Facilitate semi-annual meetings of the MAPA Safety Committee in coordination with

federal, state and local partners. Monitor and set annual safety performance targets in
coordination with state and local partners. Participate in monthly Highway Safety
Committee meetings with NDOT and FHWA-NE. Coordinate with state and local partners to
implement AASHTOWare Safety Analytics tools to facilitate identification of local and
regional safety projects. Development of narrative elements for the Regional Traffic Safety
report in support of safety performance management.

it

17 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

8. Regional Congestion Management Process (CMP)

Implement recommendations to enhance the CMP contained in the Certification Review
report. Monitor causes of recurring/non-recurring congestion and identify congestion relief
opportunities. Utilize data collected from MTIS, NDOT, lowa DOT, and other sources to
assess existing congestion conditions in the region. Update CMP and approve as a
stand-alone document in alignment with the goals of the 2050 Long-Range Transportation
Plan. Develop regional commute profiles utilizing available travel time datasets and census
data sources. Continue participation in regional Transportation Systems Management
(TSM) and Transportation Incident Management (TIM) meetings.

9. Other Long-Range Studies
Provide technical assistance and related transportation system travel, financial, and

socioeconomic data to the states and local jurisdictions as requested to assist in
conducting long-range corridor, location, subarea, feasibility, and other project level studies.
This element includes working on PEL and IJR activities for a new I-80 Interchange in the
180™-192" Street area of Sarpy County, as well as other projects requiring coordination with
cities, counties, states, utilities, and other stakeholders.

220 Work Activities Budget Federal (§) | Total ($) | Hours |

MAPA Work Activities $223,840 $225,570 3,470

mmm

2050 LRTP Administration & Implementation

Transit Planning Activities

Coordinated Transit Plan & Regional Coordination

Bicycle & Pedestrian Planning Activities

Freight Planning & Coordination

Land Use Planning & Coordination

Regional Safety Planning & Coordination

Regional Congestion Management Process (CMP)
9. Other Long-Range Studies

22001 Transportation Support & Communications

> XX X
>x X
|
|

N AWN =

I > 1 > 1
1
>
|

Ongoing Implementation -  Major Deliverable X

[T

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 18



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

220 Contracts & Subrecipient Work Activities Federal ($)
22001 Transportation Support & Communications $24,000 $30,000
MAPA will utilize its on-call communications firm to provide support for regional visioning and
transportation planning efforts, including coordination with the Unified Transportation Plan,
Smart Cities and Heartland 2050. These deliverables may include items such as brochures,
website content, videos, local transportation needs and funding analysis, and strategic
communications activities

230 - Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) & Local Projects

Objectives
To monitor and maintain a fiscally constrained Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) for

regionally significant transportation projects.
To implement performance-based planning requirements of the FAST Act.
To ensure MAPA staff representation and coordination with local partner projects.

Previous Work
e Processed TIP Amendments and Administrative Modifications

Updated project selection guidance in coordination with 2050 LRTP update

Continued development of online TIP database and project management platform

Completed development of FY2022-FY2027 TIP

Administered Project Selection Subcommittee (ProSe-Com) for Surface Transportation

Program (STBG)

e Administered the Transportation Alternatives Program Committee (TAP-C) for
Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) projects

e Administered the Coordinated Transit Committee to implement recommendations of the
Coordinated Transit Plan

e Administered Section 5310 Program of Projects through Transit Award Management
System (TrAMS)

e Provided transportation technical assistance to member cities and counties

MAPA Work Activities

1. Development & Maintenance of Transportation Improvement Programs (TIPs)
Administer the FY2021 TIP (through September 30", 2021) and FY2022 TIP (beginning
October 1%, 2021). Process Amendments and Administrative Modifications of the TIP as
necessary. Administration of regional funding programs. Monitor and maintain fiscal
constraint of the TIP and ensure consistency of the TIP with the LRTP. Administration of

il

19 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)




Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

Sec. 5310 Program of Projects (POP) in Transit Award Management System (TrAMS) in
cooperation with federal, state and local partners. Develop the FY2023 TIP to provide a
program of federal-aid transportation projects. The TIP includes at least four
fiscally-constrained years of programming and a prioritized project list with a financial plan
for project implementation. The updated TIP is approved each year in June and is ready for
implementation when the new federal fiscal year begins on October 1.

Regional Project Selection Activities (STBG, TAP, & Section 5310)

The Project Selection Committee (ProSeCom) will be convened to review and recommend
federal-aid projects eligible for STBG funds based on project selection criteria linking the
TIP to the LRTP’s goals. The Transportation Alternatives Program Committee (TAP-C) will
be convened to review and recommend federal-aid projects eligible for TAP funds based on
project selection criteria linking the TIP to regional bicycle/pedestrian goals. The
Coordinated Transit Committee (CTC) will be convened to review and recommend funding
for Section 5310 based on project selection criteria linking the TIP, Coordinated Transit Plan
and the Long Range Transportation Plan.

Transportation Funding Analysis
Identify funds available to the region from federal and state transportation legislation.

Identify and assess innovative financing techniques to fund projects and programs. Provide
data and information to officials on the status of transportation funding in the MPO.
Monitor congressional reauthorization conversions and facilitate regional dialogue about
federal transportation funding opportunities. Support implementation of regional
apportionments of CRRSAA funding in coordination with state and local partners. Support
ConnectGO Funding & Policy Working Group. Coordination with State and Federal officials
on transportation funding issues.

Regional Performance Measurement & Reporting

Implement performance measure framework in the 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan.
Development of Regional Performance Report to be included with Final FY20222 TIP.
Analysis of state and local data to support monitoring of performance trends. Data will be
purchased (as necessary) to support the performance measurement analyses and
implementation. New annual targets for Safety performance measures will be adopted
before February 27, 2022. Coordination with Metro Transit on FTA-related performance
measures, including Transit Asset Management plan and Transit Safety requirements.
Coordination with local municipal transit providers on on-going transit asset management
planning.

Local Proj r oordination

MAPA staff members provide technical assistance for MAPA, local and state transportation
projects as needed. In particular, MAPA's local project liaison will work to coordinate project
delivery with MAPA planning and administration, and assist with project communication
and streamlining. MAPA may serve as the Responsible Charge (RC) for Nebraska projects
using federal funds. Attend Nebraska Environmental Assessment (EA) meetings to track

[T

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 20



Exhibit I FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

the progress of local projects through the NEPA process. Assist jurisdictions with grant
writing, grant administration, and development of letters of support for transportation
funding requests through the USDOT, NDOT, lowa DOT, and other funding opportunities.
Attend locally-led planning-related meetings and activities supporting the regional
transportation planning process.

3vities Budget ho __ Tota ($) m—_ §
MAPA Work Activities $130,502 $131,511 2,023

mmm

Development & Maintenance of TIPs

2. Regional Project Selection Activities - X X i
3. Transportation Funding Analysis - = = -
4. Regional Performance Measurement & Reporting X = X =
5. Local Project Support & Coordination - - = X
Ongoing Implementation - Major Deliverable X
230 Contracts & Subrecipient Work Activities Federal (S
23000 Highway 75 Corridor & Freight Strategy $200,000 $302,000

The purpose of this study is to evaluate the current alignment of Highway 75 through the
Florence Neighborhood of Omaha and evaluate potential realignment alternatives. These
alternatives will include alternative highway designations, new corridor alignments and the
potential for a new Missouri River bridge connection between |1-680 and the Storz expressway.
Carried over from FY2021 based on coordination with state and local partners

23002 Sarpy County I-80 Interchange PEL Study (42.5%) $63,030  $145,904
Planning and Environmental Linkages (PEL) study to determine the location of a new 1-80
interchange in Sarpy County. Study builds off analysis that was conducted as part of the Metro
Travel Improvement Study (MTIS) and will support an anticipated Interchange Justification
Report (IJR). Carried over from FY2021 based on anticipated project schedule and review of
key documents.

il

21 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

240 - Communications & Community Relations

Objectives
To provide ongoing opportunities for stakeholders & the public to participate in the

transportation planning process

To communicate important information and key decisions about the transportation planning
process to the public

To conduct and support events, seminars and other activities that support the transportation
planning process

Previous Work

e Implemented public and stakeholder involvement strategies across all projects

e Prepared 2020 annual PPP report
e Developed updated MAPA brand guidelines
e Updated agency branding and templates to align with 2050 LRTP document
e Refined agency Communication Plan and implemented social media strategy
e Developed bi-moonthly email newsletter for members and partners
e Performed ADA assessments of venues for public involvement
e Published newsletters, annual reports, and regional directory

MAPA Work Activities

1. Public Participation Plan (PPP) & Public Engagement Activities
Implement the policies identified in the Public Participation Plan. An annual report
documenting public participation activities conducted during the past year will be created.
Conduct public involvement and engagement efforts related to the transportation planning
process. Host public forums and panel discussions on topics related to and impacted by
transportation planning. Conduct presentations and meetings with service clubs,
neighborhoods, community leaders, elected officials, and others to foster strong
relationships and engage the public in the planning process. Efforts will include outreach
and engagement activities with low-income, minority, and other underrepresented
segments of the population.

2. Equity & Engagement Activities

Administer and facilitate activities of the Equity and Engagement Committee. Provide input
into and leadership of MAPA's public participation process. Implementation of activities
related to the MAPA Board of Directors June 2020 Equity Resolution including annual Equity
Report. Develop regional tool-kits and scorecards to ensure representative participation in
the planning process. Participate in IAP2 workshops hosted by regional partners.

I

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 22



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

3. Agency Communications & Publications
Implement and refine MAPA Communications Plan. Develop, produce, and disseminate the

MAPA Annual Report. Develop, produce, and disseminate at least six issues of the Moving
Forward newsletter. Develop and maintain an online database of contacts at MAPA
member jurisdictions.

4. Online Activities (Websites & Social Media)
Maintain the MAPA websites including MAPA, Heartland 2050, “Little Steps, Cleaner Air",
and Metro Rideshare. Update the MAPA website with projects, regional data, maps, and
committee information. Update MAPA's social media to communicate pertinent information
to the public. Development of video content for MAPA social media platforms. Integrate the
MAPA public outreach efforts with various social media outlets.

5. External Relations & Public Forums
Conduct community relations with partners and participate in Federal, State and Local
forums to support the transportation planning process. Examples include public events or
hearings related to transportation projects, state commission meetings, and ongoing
coordination meetings between state partners (NDOT and IDOT) and MPOs. Coordination
with other local, transportation-related activities.

240 Work Activities Budget Federal () | Total (§) | Hours |

MAPA Work Activities $290,736  $292,983 4,507

mmm

Public Participation Plan & Public Engagement Activities
Equity & Engagement Activities

Agency Communications & Publications

Online Activities (Websites & Social Media)

External Relations & Public Forums

1 >xX X |
|
1

B s SO
b
>

X 1 X |

Ongoing Implementation — Major Deliverable X

it

23 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

250 - Regional Data, Mapping & Forecasting

Objectives
To conduct socioeconomic and demographic forecasts in support of the transportation

planning process

To develop and maintain regional Geographic Information Systems (GIS)

To develop and maintain modeling tools to support decision-making at the state, regional, and
local level

Previous Work

e Developed and maintained regional GIS data in coordination with regional partners
Coordinated with local partners regarding NIROC project

Updated traffic safety portal in coordination with state and local partners

Development of 2020 traffic & safety reports

Continued development of Travel Demand Model and transition to lowa Standard Model
Structure (ISMS)

Assisted with corrections to annual Census population estimates

Completed Regional Development Report and maintained regional database of building
permit data

e e

MAPA Work Activities

1.

Regional Data Development & Maintenance

Maintain and update an integrated geographic database system and develop other
computerized tools to assist in the analysis and manipulation of data. Create maps, graphs,
and analyses as requested for jurisdictions and the general public. Coordinate GIS activities
in the region to support the planning process. Purchase new hardware and accompanying
software to support GIS activities as needed. Collect, purchase, and monitor local travel
data including detailed data regarding traffic counts (such as time of day, occupancy, and
vehicle classification), speed, and delay as available from local jurisdictions and other
secondary sources. Collaborate with data partners toward the development of the GOHub
Regional Data portal and Natural Resources Inventory (NRI). Review pavement, traffic
counts, and other roadway characteristics for NDOT Highway Performance Monitoring
System (HPMS) report.

I

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 24



Exhibit |: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

2. Technical Reports & Forecasts
Utilize the US Census data and other data to provide assistance to jurisdictions,
businesses, individuals, and organizations with projects involving Census data. Purchase
necessary data and conduct regional or local studies for growth monitoring and analysis.
Collaborate with data partners toward the development of a regional data hub. Maintain
parcel-based land use dataset including housing, employment and local zoning information.
Support development of 2020 Traffic Growth, Interchange, Intersection, and Safety Reports
(carried over from FY2021 due to data availability). Monitor other local population
characteristics such as auto ownership, vital statistics, and school enroliment.

3. Regional Growth Monitoring & Development Report
Tracking of progress towards Heartland 2050 land use vision. Continued development of
regional permit dataset to track ongoing development activities and monitor growth in
coordination with Greater Omaha Chamber of Commerce regional indicators project.
Development of annual growth report documenting regional development patterns, land
consumption, impacts to natural resources, and permit activity. Develop reports and
visualization tools to illustrate the impact of development patterns on infrastructure costs.
Coordination of development report with data collected as part of Missing Middle and
Affordable Housing reporting to the Nebraska Legislature. Purchase socioeconomic data
for forecasting and modeling activities.

4. Travel Demand Modeling Activities
Maintain and refine the regional travel demand model to provide forecasts for studies and

planning activities. Implement ISMS framework in coordination with lowa DOT. Conduct
regional/subregional travel demand model runs. Participate in training activities for travel
demand modeling. Purchase data, software, and licenses for travel demand modeling.
Utilize the External Travel Survey data regarding external traffic patterns and characteristics,
as well as the 2009 National Household Travel Survey (NHTS) data for the region.
Coordination with On-Call Travel Demand Modeling consultant on task orders.

5. Drone Data Services
Utilize MAPA drone for photography and data collection activities. Staff time on drone
services contracts with partner communities and members. Development of MAPA image
library in coordination with local partners. Drone project planning, data processing and
creation of deliverables such as photography, video and other data products.

250 Work Activities Budget Federal ($ .m

MAPA Work Activities $171,427  $172,752 2,658

il

25 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

bR T G R S Gl RS AT R O P MR R

Regional Data Development & Maintenance

2. Technical Reports & Forecasts X = X -
3. Regional Growth Monitoring & Development Report X - - -
4, Travel Demand Modeling Activities = = X -
3. Drone Data Services = = . =

Ongoing Implementation — Major Deliverable X

250 Contracts & Subrecipient Work Activities Federal () | Total ($)

25003 On-Call Travel Demand Modeling Services $30,000 $37,500
Consultants will provide travel demand model forecasts as requested by MAPA. The model will
be updated and refined following recommendations from the FHWA Resource Center and
TMAC input. Validate and provide documentation for modeling activities. Implement ISMS
recommendations. Conduct modeling scenarios related to other studies, as necessary.

25004 Traffic Data Services $32,000 $40,000
Vendor or consultant will provide traffic data to supplement existing traffic data sources in
areas such as origin-destination information for automobiles and/or other modes, traffic
volumes, or travel time.

[T

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 26



260

Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

- Environment & Energy

Objective
Improve the region’s air quality by taking proactive measures to reduce environmental impacts
and improve energy conservation as related to transportation.

Previous Work

Conducted 2020 Little Steps, Cleaner Air (LSCA) ozone awareness and reduction
campaign with travel demand management strategies and marketing alternatives fuel
options

Conducted school outreach program related to LSCA program and developed air quality
curriculum for teachers at different grade levels’

Facilitated rebranding of Little Steps, Cleaner Air campaign website and materials
Developed application materials for FY2021-2022 Air Quality Strategy

Implemented MetroRideshare program and set-up employer rideshare portals
Coordinated with NDOT van pool contractor

Supported implementation of Phase 1 of the Electric Vehicle Charging Station Expansion
Participated in Clean Cities, electric vehicle, ethanol, and other alternative fuel
technology efforts

MAPA Work Activities

Little Steps, Cleaner Air Ozone Awareness Campaign
Develop and implement the Little Steps, Cleaner Air ozone awareness and outreach

program. Evaluate and analyze monitored air pollution data for carbon monoxide, ozone,
particulates, and lead to meet air quality requirements. Work with federal, state, and local
agencies to monitor air quality. Coordinate with local agencies to develop educational
materials, conduct training, and utilize hand-held air quality monitors to inform the public
about the ground ozone issues in the region. Implementation of Clean Air Partnership
strategy to coordinate air quality related messaging with major institutional partners,
including universities, utilities and transportation agencies. Data may be purchased to
support air quality planning and modeling activities.

Alternative Fuels Activities

MAPA will participate in the Nebraska Community Energy Alliance (NCEA) and work with
utilities to coordinate planning of environmental and energy-related efforts with the
transportation planning process. Implement the CMAQ electric vehicle (EV) changing
stations project by working with local entities to identify locations for EV stations in
coordination with the Omaha Parking Division. Coordinate efforts to deploy infrastructure
for increased usage of natural gas (CNG/LNG), electric vehicles, ethanol, and other
alternative fuel efforts in Nebraska and lowa. Activities may include grant preparation and

it

27 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

oversight for CMAQ, Nebraska Environmental Trust, and other funding opportunities.
Coordination with FHWA and states to implement Alternative Fuel Corridor designations.
Support for Metro Transit's fuel diversification initiative and alternative fuel grant
applications.

3.  Travel Demand Management & Other Activities
Utilize RideShark platform available through lowa DOT to support MetroRideshare website.
Coordinate with employers to establish employer portals and manage carpool and vanpool
activities. Provide outreach support for Nebraska's Statewide Vanpool project for
employers within the Omaha-Council Bluffs region. Support on-going intercity bus planning
efforts led by NDOT. Facilitate employer-based transportation surveys to support the
development of employer-based programs.

260 Work Activities Budget Federal ($) | Total($) | Hours |

MAPA Work Activities $57,838 $58,285 897

mmm

1. Little Steps, Cleaner Air Ozone Awareness Campaign
2. Alternative Fuels Activities - - - -
3. Travel Demand Management & Other Activities = X = X

Ongoing Implementation —  Major Deliverable X

260 Contracts & Subrecipient Work Activities Federal ($ Total (S

26001 Little Steps Cleaner Air Ozone Awareness Campaign $80,000 $100,000
The FY2022 Little Steps, Cleaner Air ozone reduction campaigns will focus education efforts
on the small actions everyone can take to help reduce ground-level ozone and improve public
health. Work tasks also focus on aligning air quality-related messaging with institutional
partners across the region through the Clean Air Partnership. Overall campaign goals include
reducing single-occupancy vehicle trips and increasing usage of bicycle, pedestrian, transit,
and carpool modes. Little Steps Cleaner Air will also raise awareness of alternative fuels (such
as electric vehicles, CNG/LNG, fuel cells, and biofuels) that reduce emissions.

26001 MAPA On-Call Travel Demand Management Services $105,000 $131,250
Travel demand management consult will conduct outreach to employers in order to implement
and promote active commuting throughout the MAPA region. Employee surveys will be
conducted to understand potential mode share for employees and recommendations will be
developed for work sites to implement travel demand management programs. (Anticipated
NE-CMAQ and lowa STBG)

[

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 28



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

270 - Heartland 2050 Implementation

Work Activities

1. Heartland 2050 Mini-Grant Program
Administration of set-aside of STBG funding from NDOT and lowa DOT for implementation

of projects related to the Heartland 2050 Regional Vision and Action Plan. Facilitation of
project selection process and administration of H2050 Mini-Grant Review Committee.
Develop documentation to support expansion of the program beyond transportation
projects with additional funding sources. MAPA staff coordination with Mini-Grant
recipients and participation in mini-grant project committees.

2. Heartland 2050 Committees & Working Groups
MAPA staff support related to the Heartland 2050 Implementation Committees, task forces
and other work groups relate to the project. Facilitation of meetings and development of
materials to coordinate the transportation planning process with the implementation of the
H2050 Vision. Development of regional framework of Nodes and Corridors to guide
infrastructure development and land use policy throughout the region. Assist with planning
for Close the Gap initiative. MAPA staff will conduct technical analysis and data support for
the Heartland 2050 project. Additionally, MAPA staff will support ongoing coordination
related to the Metro Smart Cities project and the implementation of pilot projects.

3. Heartland 2050 Summits and Speaker Series
MAPA staff will hold Heartland 2050 Summits to convene stakeholders and the public to

hear speaker presentations, learn best practices from within and outside the region, discuss
progress by committees and projects, and work on the initiative. One summit and two
speaker series events are anticipated annually.

4. Heartland 2050 Site Visits
Heartland 2050 will coordinate a site visit to a location where stakeholders will experience
and meet with local representatives to learn more about walkable, livable communities that
include robust transportation. Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, planning for the next
site visit in early 2022 has begun.

5. Heartland 2050 Administration
MAPA staff will provide administrative support and administration for the Heartland 2050
project.

it

29 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

270 Work Activities Budget Federal ($) | Total (§) | Hours |

MAPA Work Activities $134,551 $135,591 2,086

mmm

Heartland 2050 Mini-Grant Program

2. Heartland 2050 Committee & Working Groups = - - -
3. Heartland 2050 Summits and Speaker Series = X = X
4. Heartland 2050 Site Visit = = X =
5,

Heartland 2050 Administration - - - -

Ongoing Implementation — Major Deliverable X

I

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 30



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

280 - Training & Education

Objective
To provide professional development and training to promote continued development of skills
for MAPA staff

Previous work

e Attended local workshops, training, and educational activities
e Participated in statewide COG/Economic Development District (EDD) organizations of

Nebraska Regional Officials Council (NROC) and lowa Association of Councils of
Government (ICOG)

Participated in MPO coordination meetings hosted by NDOT and lowa DOT

Took part in FHWA/FTA webinars related to federal guidance and initiatives

Work Activities

1.

Technical and Policy Education Activities

Participate in ongoing education and staff development activities such as workshops,
conferences, and webinars devoted to planning and research-related policy and technical
information. Event sponsors include local, state, and national organizations such as the
Greater Omaha Chamber of Commerce and Economic Development Partnership, American
Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE), Locate, NROC, IARC, NARC, NADO, Transportation
Research Board (TRB), American Planning Association (APA), and other organizations.
Workshops and training activities may also be convened by local, state, and federal
governmental agencies such as NDOT, lowa DOT, USDOT, EPA and EDA.

Related Association Participation
Participate in local, state, and national associations that provide ongoing education,

training, staff and leadership development, and peer-to-peer knowledge exchange. Event
sponsors include local, state, and national organizations such as the Greater Omaha
Chamber, ASCE, LOCATE, NROC, IARC, NARC, NADO, TRB, APA and other organizations.
Federal funding for these activities will not consist of lobbying in accordance with 2 CFR
200.450.

Professional Certifications and Memberships
Staff members apply, take required tests, and actively participate in professional

organizations such as the APA's American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP).

280 Work Activities Budget Federal ($) | Total ($) | Hours |

MAPA Work Activities $50,469 $50,859 782

finl

31 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

LZR0 B Frauct e L O a2 e e

1. Technical & Policy Education Activities
2. Related Association Participation - - - -
3. Professional Certifications & Memberships - - - -

Ongoing Implementation —  Major Deliverable X

290 - Transportation Management

Objective
Provide for leadership and efficient administration of MAPA's transportation programs

Previous Work

e Personnel management for transportation activities

e Review of invoices and progress reports for MAPA activities

e Financial management of budget and contracts

e General administrative activities related to organization support and operations

Work Activities

1.

Program Administration

Provide oversight and administrative support for MAPA transportation and data staff
activities. Development and maintenance of process documentation, project management
platform, and staff coordination meetings.

Personnel Management
Ongoing activities related to personnel needs, recruitment, orienting and training, and other

human resource activities.

Financial Management
Monitoring and maintenance of MAPA's budget and development of dues schedule and

associate membership program. Implementation and coordination for a TIP Administrative
Fee.

Contracts & Agreements
Develop and negotiate contracts for programs, develop proposals as well as monitor and
report on contracts.

Quarterly Reporting and Invoicing (NDOT & lowa DOT)
Review quarterly reports and invoices for the Nebraska Department of Transportation and
lowa Department of Transportation.

[T

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 32



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

290 Work Activities Budget Federal ($) | Total (§) [ Hours |

MAPA Work Activities $70,204 $70,747 1,088

mm

Program Administration

Personnel Management = = = =
Financial Management - - . ey
Contracts & Agreements = = 7 =
Quarterly Reporting and Invoicing X X X X

ok wn =

Ongoing Implementation — Major Deliverable X

300 - Membership Services

Objective
Provide assistance to MAPA members, including demographic data, mapping, and other service
to local, state and regional projects.

Previous Work ‘
e Provided data and map requests to members.

e Coordinated with members on their projects and methodologies to benefit the regional
transportation process.

Work Activities

1. Member Data Requests
MAPA staff will respond to requests for demographic, traffic, and other data requests from

members.

2. Member Mapping Requests
MAPA staff will respond to mapping and GIS requests for demographic, traffic, and other
data requests from members.

300 Work Activities Budget Federal ($) | Total (§) | Hours |

MAPA Work Activities $10,154 $10,232 157
300 End Products ; bl mm
1. Member Data Requests

2. Member Mapping Requests - - = @

Ongoing Implementation — Major Deliverable X

il

33 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

310 - Local and Partner Planning Support

Objective
Provide assistance to local governments and agencies to conduct plans and develop data in
support of the regional transportation planning process.

Previous Work
¢ Douglas County GIS created and maintained GIS data sets that support the regional

planning process including Natural Resources Inventory (NRI) and open data portal.

e City of Omaha Public Works conducted the traffic counting program.

City of Omaha Planning Department worked on Omaha transportation planning projects
and coordinated with the regional planning process.

e Sarpy County GIS created and maintained GIS data sets that support the regional
planning process including Natural Resources Inventory (NRI) and open data portal.

e Sarpy County Planning Department worked on transportation-related planning projects
and coordinated with the region.

e Pottawattamie County GIS created and maintained GIS data sets that support the
regional planning process including Natural Resources Inventory (NRI) and open data
portal.

e Implemented 5310 operations and vehicle purchase contracts with Council Bluff, Metro
Transit, Florence Home for the Aged, and Black Hills Works
Completed 1st Avenue Corridor Alternatives Analysis
Kicked off Southside Terrace Indian Hills Multi-Modal Transportation Study
Procured consultant services for Papio-Missouri River NRD's Neighborhood Enhanced
Access to Trails (NEAT) Project

e Completed Central 24th Street Corridor Study

31003 Metro Transit Planning Activities $60,000 $85,715
Consultants will provide travel demand model forecasts as requested by MAPA. The model will
be updated and refined following recommendations from the FHWA Resource Center and
TMAC input. Validate and provide documentation for modeling activities. Implement ISMS
recommendations. Conduct modeling scenarios related to other studies, as necessary.

31003 Omaha Public Works Traffic Counting $60,000 $88,201
Vendor or consultant will provide traffic data to supplement existing traffic data sources in
areas such as origin-destination information for automobiles and/or other modes, traffic
volumes, or travel time.

[T

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 34



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

310 Contracts & Subrecipient Work Activities (continued
31003 Douglas County GIS Activities $54,992 $78,560
Douglas County will manage and maintain transportation-related assets through the Cityworks
GIS-based program. Implementing the natural resources inventory and coordinating open data
resources with other county GIS departments. These assets include streets, construction
projects, curb ramps, bridges, maintenance areas, sidewalks, sewers, snow removal routes,
pavement markings, parking meters, signs, traffic signals, street parking, alleys, and
unimproved roads. Douglas County will create, maintain, and manage transportation-related
GIS data and coordinate with MAPA on the development of a regional traffic count portal. In
addition, Douglas County will design, develop, implement, and maintain various GIS web and
mobile applications in support of transportation-related activities within the City of Omaha and
Douglas County. Douglas County will also support implementation of regional open data portal
and Natural Resource Inventory projects.

31003 City of Omaha Planning Activities $40,005 $57,150
The City of Omaha Planning Department will develop and refine the transportation planning
process. Work activities will include, but are not limited to, the Midtown / Downtown BRT and
Urban Circulator project, North Downtown pedestrian bridge, facilitation and development of
parking management systems, Transit-Oriented Development, development review for
transportation planning, and Complete Streets. Other activities include coordination with MAPA
and regional planning activities, as well as travel to national and regional events/conferences
for technical and policy training such as: FTA and FHWA sponsored workshops, Nebraska
Chapter of the American Planning Association annual conference, American Planning
Association National Conference, Rail-Volution Transit Conference, Congress for New
Urbanism, Designing Cities Conference Sponsored by the National Association of City
Transportation Officials and other similar conferences. Funding will support staff time, travel,
supplies and consultant expenses for the aforementioned activities.

31003 Sarpy County Planning & GIS Activities ' $57,403 $82,0055
The Sarpy County Planning Department will conduct development review and create
development regulations in coordination with MAPA and the regional transportation planning
process. Funding will support staff time for the aforementioned activities. Sarpy County will
conduct a GIS program including creating, maintaining, and managing ongoing geospatial data.
Sarpy County will accurately develop and maintain data sets and tools supporting
transportation planning, modeling, analysis, and forecasting. Data sets will include, but not be
limited to, streets, bridges, railways, trails, traffic counts, parcels, land use, environmental and
physical features, and jurisdictional boundaries. Implementing the natural resources inventory
and coordinating open data resources with other county GIS departments. Funding will support
staff time for the aforementioned activities. Sarpy County will also support implementation of
regional open data portal and Natural Resource Inventory projects i

it

35| Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit I FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

310 Contracts & Subrecipient Work Activities (continued)
31003 Pottawattamie County GIS Activities $30,000 $42,857
Pottawattamie County will conduct a GIS program including creating, maintaining, and
managing ongoing geospatial data. Pottawattamie County will accurately develop and
maintain data sets and tools supporting transportation planning, modeling, analysis, and
forecasting. Data sets will include, but not be limited to, streets, right-of-way, land records (lots,
parcels, subdivisions, etc.), section corners, zoning, and annexations. Funding will support staff
time for the aforementioned activities. Implementing the natural resources inventory and
coordinating open data resources with other county GIS departments.
31004 Nebraska-lowa Regional Orthophotography Consortium
(NIROC) Aerial Photography Project
Vendor will provide orthophotography and oblique aerial photography in support of local land
use and transportation planning processes. Flights and data collection are anticipated in
Douglas, Sarpy, Lancaster, and Pottawattamie Counties as part of the consortium. Total project
cost is estimated at $324,723 for FY2022 flights. FY2022 activities include data processing,
QA/QC on survey corrections for advanced imagery, feature extraction, software licensing, and
delivery of advanced imagery products in Q4 FY2022.
31005 Heartland Bike Share Station Maps $4,000 $5,000
Printing costs for updated station maps for Heartland Bike Share stations in the Omaha
metropolitan area. Maps will include information about transportation options and locational
information to help users navigate the system.

$0 $140,531

MAPA administers the Section 5310 program for distribution to eligible subrecipients. 5310
funding is a discretionary capital assistance program to assist local governments, private

agencies, and nonprofit agencies provide transportation service for the elderly and disabled.
Anticipated contracts for operations and capitalized costs of operations for FY2020 include:

31003 City of Council Bluffs STS : $58,500 $117,000
Cost of Contracted Services for the City of Council Bluffs Paratransit Service known as

the Council Bluffs Special Transit Service (STS) serving the elderly and disabled citizens of
Council Bluffs with transportation within the city limits of Council Bluffs and to three (3)
designated medical facilities in Omaha, NE, i.e. CHI-Creighton Medical Center, the University of
Nebraska Medical Center and the VA Medical Center

31003 Florence Home for the Aged $28,910 $57,820
Florence Home Transportation Services provides trained staff to accompany residents with
disabilities, the elderly, and veterans on transportation trips to physician visits, dental
appointments, outings and social events. Residents served live at Florence Home Healthcare
Center, Royale Oaks Assisted Living, House of Hope Alzheimer's Care and House of Hope
Assisted Living.

31003 New Cassel Retirement Home $13,890 $27,780
New Cassel serves 185 elderly residents and is home to the Franciscan Adult Day Center which
can care for 80 people with Alzheimer's, dementia, and special needs. They offer transportation

[

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 36



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

service from 9 am to 4 pm, Monday through Friday. The adult day center provides round trip
transportation for the disabled, wheelchair/scooter bound, and for Alzheimer and dementia
participants. Their service area includes the Omaha Metro area: Elkhorn border, Papillion, La
Vista, Bellevue, North Omaha, and Council Bluffs, lowa.

310 Heartland 2050 Mini-Grant Awards Federal ($ Total (S

The Heartland 2050 Mini-Grant program provides support for projects that incorporate the
goals and principles of the Heartland 2050 Vision, such as walkable, livable communities,
transportation options, well-planned and efficient infrastructure, and regional collaboration, into
local projects. Heartland 2050 Mini-Grant awards are administered by MAPA and MAPA
procures professional services on behalf of communities participating in the Heartland 2050
Mini-Grant Program. The percentage value noted in parentheses denotes the amount of effort
anticipated in FY2022:

FY2021 Heartland 2050 Mini-Grant Program Awards
31002 Southside Terrace/Indian Hills Neighborhood
Multi-Modal Transportation Study (90%)
The City of Omaha and Omaha Housing Authority were awarded a Choice Neighborhoods
Planning + Action Grant for the same area, and the required Transformation Plan is due in the
summer of 2021. The purpose of the Transformation Plan is to guide the comprehensive
transformation of the Southside Terrace-Indian Hill neighborhood. As a part of this
comprehensive planning study the City of Omaha and MAPA will also contract for a multimodal
study to analyze and determine how to best accommodate all modes and users (including
walking, biking, transit, freight and automobile) in the area now and in the future. Carried over
from FY2021 based on coordination with local partners on project schedule.
31002 NEAT: Neighborhood Enhanced Access to Trails (95%) $114,000 $142,500
The Neighborhood Enhanced Access to Trails (NEAT) Study is a transportation planning study
to prioritize trail project locations throughout Douglas and Sarpy Counties in Nebraska. MAPA
and the Papio-Missouri River Natural Resources District have identified gaps in the existing trail
network and will use this study to determine which of these locations are best suited to be
carried forward as construction projects. Carried over from FY2021 based on coordination with
local partners on project schedule.

$86,400 $108,000

FY2022 Heartland 2050 Mini-Grant Awards

31005 Omaha Bicycle Master Plan $200,000 $250,000
The overall objective is to create a bicycle and pedestrian master plan to be adopted as a
supplement to the City of Omaha Master Plan. This plan shall: 1) Develop a framework for a
comprehensive and integrated network of bicycle facilities, trail corridors, low-stress routes,
and sidewalk and crossing improvements that serve all neighborhoods; 2) identify and
prioritize projects, programs, and policies focused on expanding participation by making
walking and bicycling for daily needs safer, more comfortable, and more convenient; and 3)

il

37 | Draft FY2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)



Exhibit |: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

identify strategies that will guide the planning, funding, implementation, and maintenance of
future projects with performance measures that allow the City to assess its progress.

31005 Bellevue Fort Crook Road Corridor Study $100,000 $125,000
Corridor study of Fort Crook Road in Bellevue to identify potential for changes to the roadway
configuration to support redevelopment and transportation options. Focus on regional
connectivity to the region’s largest employer, Offutt Air Force Base, and connectivity between
Bellevue and adjacent communities.

[T

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (MAPA)| 38



%02 %08 955'ch | 158'Z1 $58'Sl 0 Sha'vLL STVLOL NN WYHOOHd
%001 %0 ¥68'GL $ ¥68'G 1l Aydeibojoyd |eusy| vooLe
%0€ %0. 158°CY $|268821L 000'0€ (0£/02) swaidpaigng |eao Buluueld| eoole
%0 %00} 9er'e $ 9ev'e s901n98 diysiaquisy| 0000€
%0 %0014 LET'Y $ LET'Y juswsbeuep| 00062
%0 %00} 0sv'e $ ost'e uoneanp3 pue Bujulel]| 00082
%0 %001 168'6 $ 168'6 a|qiby3 vonepodsuel] - 0G0Z PUBIUESH| 0002
%0 %001 £€0'L $ €E0'L ABJau3 pue JuswuolAU3( 00092
%0 %001 LSH'2L $ LS’z Bunsesaso g Buidden ‘ejeq |euoifay| 00052
%0 %001 ¥st'glL $ S¥'8L JUBWSA|OAU| 1[GN PUB UONEDIUNWWOD| 000¥Z
%0 %00} 68L'8 $ 68L'8 sjosloid |20 pue 41| 000€Z
%0 %001 L1T'¥L $ L2yl Buiuue|4 uonepodsuel | [euoibay| 00022
%0 %001 1¥2'6 $ L¥Z'6 voddng aajjwiwo) pue pJeog| 00042
%0 %001 ovz'L $ ove'L S3OURBINSSY |BJapa4 pue d\MdN| 00002
spund 1d YMH4 emoj|
%0Z %08 0£5'€8E°L 915°C6 069'G.L 0052 +28°90L°L STVLOL ANNd WYYO0Hd
%0014 %0 218'e8 $ 218'e8 AydesBojoyd jetiay| vOOLE
%02 %08 000'S $ 000'L 000'¥ (0z/08) sdew apAaig puejpeaH| SO0LE
%LE %69 9L6'60E  $ | 9LG'E6 00t'zZIZ (0e/02) swaidpaigng [eoo] Buluueld| €ooLe
%02 %08 000'0% $ 0o00's 000'ZE (0z/08) s901MI9S BIRQ DWRI] [ ¥00ST
%02 %08 005'/¢ $ 0052 000°0¢ (0z/08) BullepPOW I1BD-UO| €0052
%LS %EY €06'GPL $ £.8'28 0€0'€9 (1esopa} %8°95 ‘%05) ApMiS 13d Adieg| Looee
%0 %001 £S6'Y $ £G6'Y $201A9G diysiaquisy| 0000€
%0 %001 906'Lt $ 906'L¥ uswabeuepy| 00062
%0 %001 999'Le $ 999'LE uonesnp3 pue Bulues) | 0008z
%0 %00} 8L¥'Le $ gLY'Lg a1q1By3 uoneuodsuel] - 0G0Z PUBHEBSH| 00042
%0 %00} 19821 $ 198'ZL ABisau3 pue juswuoliaul| 00092
%0 %001 G0g'eol  $ G09'c0l Bunseosalo g Buiddepy ‘eleq jeuoibay| 00052
%0 %001} €6E'LLL  $ E6E°LLL JUBWIBAOAU| 1[G PUE UOHEJIUNWWED| 000¥Z
%0 %00} 005°'L8 $ 00S'L8 sjoaloid [eo07 pue d|1| 000EZ
%0 %001 ZhP'ocl $ Zrr'oel Buluue|4 uoneuodsuel | [euoiBay| 000zZ
%0 %001 956'1L8 $ 966'L8 voddng sayiwwo pue pieog| 000iE
%0 %001} 889'L1L $ 889'L L SBOUBINSSY [BIBPS PUB dMdN| 00002
spund d YMH4 e)selqsN
eleysg eJeys lejol ysjew punj-uj yolew spung spuny apod
yojeN | |eseped Aianay jusididaiqng |  Aued pig VdVIN aels I Ruanoy o joefoid

(dMdn) weibold siopn Buluueld paiun ZZ0zZ Ad 1 ¥qiyx3

weiboid y1om Ag Buipung :9iqe] yodddng dMdN 2202 Ad - VAVIN




%02 %08 SLL'Ly 0 GZv's 0 0 069°L¢ STIVLOL ANNd WYNOONd
%00+ %0 GZ¥'6 $ GZr'6 Aydeibojoyd [euay| ¥00LE
%0 %004 Z80'tL $ Z80'1L $a2IM9S diysiaquialy| 0000€
%0 %001 ze8'L $ z88'L juawabeuey| 00062
%0 %00} ZES'L $ ZEG'L uoneonp3 pue Bulutes] | 0008z
%0 %00} ¥6E'Y $ v6E'p 2|q16113 uonepodsuel] - 050Z PUBIUBIH| 00042
%0 %001 65t $ 65t ABisu3 pue juswuonAul| 00092
%0 %00} LES'S $ LES'G Bunseoaio g Buiddey ‘ejeq |euoibay| ooosz
%0 %00 861'8 $ 861'8 JUBLIBA|OAU| D1qNd PUB UOHEDIUNWLWOD| 000V
%0 %001 9£9'c g 8€9'E sjo8loud |B207 pue 4|1 | 000£2
%0 %001 GLE'9 $ GLE'9 Buiuue|d uonepodsuel | jeuoiBay| 000zZ
%0 %001 80L't $ 80L'¥ voddng aspiwwo) pue pieog| 000LZ
%0 %001 1GG 3 [Reie] SS0URINSSY [BI9P24 PUB dMdN| 00002
spund psogs V.14 emo|
%02 %08 £99°CLS G162 8L0°LL 0 0 0€6'0LY SIVLOL ONNd WVHOONd
%001 %0 810 LY g 810'LY Aydesbojoyd |euay| v00LE
%0€ %0L G1/2'G8 $|sis'se 000'09 (0g/0.) swuaidpaigng |eooT Buuueld| €00l
%0014 %0 000'0¢ $ 000'0€ spuny |eiapaj oN - Hoddng 0G0z PUBLESH| L00.2
%0 %001 BEL'L $ 6ELL sa01n9g diysiaquisiy| 0000€
%0 %00} Liv'02 $ LI¥'0Z juswabeuew| 00062
%0 %00} 90.'¢cl $ 90L'cl uoneanp3 pue Buluies | 0008z
%0 %001 £LL'8E $ £llL'8e 8|q!613 uonepodsuel) - PGOZ PUBIUESH| 0002
%0 %001 1682 $ 158' ABiau3 pue juswuolaug| 00092
%0 %001 chloy $ EvL'Op Bunsenalo g Buiddepy ‘ejeq [euoibay| 0005z
%0 %001 115'08 $ 12608 JUSWSAJOAU| 21|gNd PUE UOHEDIUNWWOD| 000¥Z
%0 %001 ¥89'9¢ $ ¥89°9¢ sjpsloid [eoo7 pue 41| 000ez
%0 %001 Z05'S9 $ Z0G'G9 Buiuue|q uoneuodsuel ] jeuocibay| ooozz
%0 %001 L9Y'6E $ L9%'6€ voddng sapiwwoy pue pieog| 00012
%0 %001 L10'S $ LL0'G S30UBINSSY |BIBPa4 pue JAMdN| 00002
spund psoes V14 ejseiqan
eleys eleys lejoL yajew pumy-uj yolew spung spun4 apod
yolew | |eiepey Aoy | wuerdioeigng | Aued pig VdVIN S i Auanav H1oM 198l01d

weutboid 31oMm Ag Buipung :ajqey Jodddng dMdN 2202 Ad - VAVIN
(dMdn) weiboid yiop Buluueld payiun ZzozZ Ad ‘1 Hayx3




%ET %Ll viZ'6L5°c 88¢'EET LEC'BSY 005°S1 000°00L 686042 STIVLOL ANVHD dMdN
%0% %09 009°Z52 00E°L0L 0 0 0 00£°LS1 STVLOL ANNd WVHOO0Nd
%05 %05 00920z  $|oog’LoL 00€°101 (05/08) swiaidvaians 0LEG| €00LE
%0 %004 8%z $ 8vZ saoiuag diysiaquisiy| 0000€
%0 %00L L1862 $ LIB'Z juawabeuep| 00062
%0 %001 €G6'L $ €56°L uoneonp3 pue Bues) | 00082
%0 %001 BEY'S $ BEV'G 2|@iB113 uoneuodsuel] - 0S0Z PUBUESH| 0002
%0 %001 L0¥ $ L0V ABisu3 pue JuswuolAUg| 00092
%0 %001 099'9 $ 099'9 Bunseosalod g Buiddepy ‘ejeq jeuoiBay| 00052
%0 %001 08t'LL $ 08t'LL 1UBLWAI0AU| D1IGNd PUB UOHEDIUNWWOD| 0002
%0 %001 122'6 $ 122’ sjoaloid [eo07 pue d|1| 000ET
%0 %001 €EE'6 $ £EE' Buiuue|d uonepodsuel] |euoibay| 0002z
%0 %001 £29's $ £29'G uoddng aapiwiwo) pue pieog| 000LZ
%0 %00k SLL $ GLL S80UBJNSSY [BIBP3S PUB dMdN| 00002
0LES VL
%ET %Ll 05.'852°L 0 05181 0008 000001 00t‘6v6 STVLOL ANNd WYNO0Hd
%0z %08 000G/ § 000'G. 000°00€ ZZA - SIUBID U 0S0Z PUBUESH| SO0LE
%02 %08 00s'0sz % 001'05 00+'002 LZAd - SWUBID IUIIN 0G0Z puejUesH| Z00LE
%0z %08 0sZ'Lel $ 052'92 000'G01L sa0Inag Juswabeue puewa( [9Ael] | Z009Z
%0Z %08 000'00L % 000'0Z 000°08 ssaUalemy aU0z(Q Jiy Jaues|) sda)g spy| 1009z
%PpE %99 00020 § 0002 00000} 000'002 (%G. ‘I 9sBYd) ApnIS Jopluod 6L AMH| 000€Z
%02 %08 000'0€ $ 000'9 000'tZ (0z/08) Woddng suoyesiunwwo)| L00ZZ
%02 %08 0sZ'L $ 0sz 000t awabeuep| ooosz
%02 %08 05z’ LY $ 0sZ'8 000'ce ABiau3 pue juswuoliaug| 00092
%02 %08 00S' $ 00¢ 000'2 Bunseoaiod g Buiddeyy ‘ejeq |euciBay| 0005z
%02 %08 000'G $ 000°L 000'¥ JUSLIBAIOAU| D1|gNd PUB UOHEDIUNWLIOY | 000¥Z
94918 YMH4 / DVYIND
eleys eleys lejol ysjep puny-uj yolew spung spung 8pod
yoew | jmieped | Awanoy | juerdioesgng | Aued pig VdVI S T e Auanoy oM 1o8foid

(dMmdn) weiboid 3iopn Buluueld paiun 2zoz A4 (| ¥qyx3

weiboid y1oMm Ag Buipung :9|qe] Jodddng dMdN 2202 Ad - VdVIN




Bunuwesboud |BUNIPPE J0; BIGE(IBAR 'SNIAING 1equoy) Sydebojoyd ey,

BoBEeE__ © Sz 08 : oac Lol ] [NEES o008 sere ceLzar T SOLBLE WAIHOR U 1 815
[ 3 BZ'SE s SZ¥e ¥ee'sl (OdW Bwo)) AudeiBoioyd |Euey
20¢'P8 s 5e8'0¢) s gL'y tie'ee DdW E¥seIGeN) AudeiBooyg Epey
008'6Y 4 0008 oog'L {210 'seAlesoY ‘Sond ‘s9ed dll) UseD YdviN
EZT'E0E osZ'e Q04'szk DI0'0S DO0'DE €Ia'L8 (sucpepuno ‘seuped) YowiN 0) SUGHNGIILCD UoiR
BBE'EET H DOE' O []¥54 268°Z4 olg'ee Yayaua pupi-w Aped pig yuexineigngeoa
000" 001 s 000'008 ] Buipung 2Bl
SRLINOR YHEN
97T %'0¥ %002 %E'PT %007 %0'07 %0'0T %0'0Z %0'0Z % Yney
SLZ 625 ¢ 3 009252 % 052 LS $ 00sIs6  § oooosz § SLLZY § cog0cls  § o9GCcrPl  § LEGEBEl $ SaIAJIOY [B10L
GZ2'808 3 00E'LOL  $ 0529 § OCL'eez  $  0000S g SZ¥'e $ eel20L  $ [YVA-TA $ goi9iz % ey Bumalen /1ea el
686'0L4'C 3 00E'L5L § 000's2 $ oo¥'vze ¢ 00000 § 069'LE $ 0e8'0lF  $ She'PLL $ PZEO0LL $ BIRUS [218PB4 (2)0L
WLIOL vdYiH
Bl¥zZ  9SEOFZE $ 009202 § # OSTLE § 00566 § 000002 § SIv 6 $ ££2z9L  § LLEes § lel'gls  § SISIA[SRIGNG § SPERUOY [EI0NNG
5ZZ'86L $ 0OE'lOL $ 0$Z'9 $ ODL'EEZ  $  Q00'OP $ SZF'5 $ e£L'ZoL % ¥ 4:14 $ 90.94Z % aJRyg bulydjep / B0 - SAYNIDY Ydyi RGNS
0EL'ZPP L $ 00E'L0L $ 000's2 $ oo¥'vz: ¢ 0Q0C09L  $ 00C'09 $ 000'0E $ OEk'LbE 8 2IBYS |eJOpa4 - Fue|diaIgns 3 SWEINCS [F0ANg
BZVL ¥SZ 8/2'SC SZF6 ¥GEGL SaIANYY VI YdviN 10} AUORIBOICL [BUSY GOOLE
BEE'FE BOEL  GEE'0EL 3 810'ip L18'e8 SBMANDY 3N YdYi Jo) AudeiBojeyd 1euey pGOLE
184 000'SLE $ 000'GL€ (02708 ‘%001 ) ZZAd - SIURIS) IUIN 0507 PUEINEOH SO0LE
9067 005'05Z $ 005'052 (02408 '%56-06) LZAd - SIURID WUIN 0S0Z PLEIESH ZO0LE
15 000'S 3 000's {02i08) sdew 39413 pueIeaH S01LE
Z0T 009'Zoz g 009702 {05/05) SWadRAIANS OLES €00LE
W'y 9ev'rEr $ GL2'e8 L58°2F 916'60€ {0gA02) Suadidegng (@07 Buiuuerd £0CLE
10€ 000°0E $ 000°0¢ Spun; [e1apay oN - Loddng 050z PUBTUeSH 1002
tE'L 0SZ'IEL $ 0sZ'LE 060'coL (02108} sadiveg wawebeuep puewa 19re1) Z009Z
W00l 000°00L $ 000'C0L (0z/08) s3eualemy Bu0Z() Ity Juea)]) SdalS Al LOD9Z
107 000'0P $ 000'0F (02108) searuag eYeq Jye1L pO0GE
928 00s'2€ $ 005'LE {02408} BuiePow (BD-UO £0062
09%'t  POB'SEL $ HOE'GY L (uotew %8°95 %05) APMS T3d AdeS 1L00EZ
120t 000'ZOE $ 000'Z0€ {02/08'%S | 858Ud) ApPMS 10p10100) G2 AMH 000ET
L0E 000'0E 3 000'0E $ (0z/08) voddng suoteouNWWOY L00EE
- $ {spuny Buiuoiew: + SPUN |EJ9DA 4 SPNIU! MOlBG SIUNOWE sJualdioaigng pue Penuss) sjualdiDBIqng PuE S}ORNLOD
00902 6SB'BEE 1 000°0% 3 00008 $ 089 ¢ § 0E60SE  §  S¥EPE S FBEGRL  § SaNIANY YdYI EIang
00001 $ 000'0L 3 - [ 3 [3 - $ - 3 a/eys BUMZIE £ 18207 - SARMIRY Y3V IB3010NS
658'82¢' L $ 000'06 $ 000'Ct $ 089'LE § OEB0SE  § SYE e $ ¥6EGOL 3 BIRYS |EJPaS - SAARRY VY [R01aNS
181 65k 0L [3 8z [3 - 3 Z80'L t 8EL1 $ 9EY'Z $ €S8P 3 580185 dIUSIAGIEN 008
Bl £99'ZL $ 1182 $ 052 % 4t 00 $ LvcT $ LET'Y $ 908'L¥ $ \swabeuey 062
508 L0E'ZG $ €561 $ - 3 ZES'L % ool'El [ ost'e $ 0og'le $ uoqeanp3 pue Buiuer) 087
EpFZ  FIE'GEL $ BER'S $ - $ (4584 $ £l1'82 $ 1686 $ 8lv'ie $ ajaiBig uopeLodsuel] - 0507 PUBRAH 042
908 £18'86 g L0t $ 0SZ'Lb $ 65t $ /882 |5 EEQ'L $ L9871 3 ABrou3 pue Juswuonag 09z
\eLg  esr'ill $ 099'9 3 00S'E $ LES'S % erl'ob $ LSH'ZL $ GOYEOl § Bujsesaioy g Buddep ‘ereq ruciisy 06z
€YY ¥BO'LOE $ 08bLL $ 000's $ 86L'% t 12508 $ ¥G¥'RL $ €BELLL $ UBLIBAOAU N PUE UOKEIUMUWO?) (FE
1807 LET'GEL $ Prea % - % BEY'E % v89'ge $ 5121 $ 0OS'IE 3 sjoslod [207 PUE dIJ, 0E7
996'E  608'IEZ $ £EE'6 $ - $ sig'e $ 205'59 $ LIZY) $ Irroel ¢ Buiueiq uorepodsue)) feuciiay 02z
osL'z  Lovovl $ £29'G $ - $ 80L'% t l9v'ee % i¥T'6 $ 956'LR $ yoddng selwwo? pue piecq (L7
162 FAEAC] S SikL $ - $ (B3] § LL0'S k4 orz'L $ g8e'Ll $ SADURINSSY (219D3 PUR SMd( 002
Quiny yorew oy (yep+pagd) {Auo pag) (Ajuo pa4) {Auo pa 4) (Auo pad) 1Y YdVIN
- Auo paJ)
SIZ6ISE § 190N dAd IE10L
95 0vE'T yonomsse - S)equo)
BS6'GZE 1aupyy
LEG'LEL (Buucsiad-Lon 1eng
696'08F % [PUDsIa4 19N
686 0.2 $pund 18Japad ZZAd dMdn
0E0'es oE0'es JaA0-ALRY) |7 A4 SPUN 4 [B1Rpa4
666 LT 00E' L5t 000'sz Q0% +2L 000'00Z 089'.8 Q26'0L¥ Gra'tLL FBLRO0' L TZAdSpUn] |elanad
zuuﬂﬁﬁ sinoH :o_w_ww““w_ﬂ L 0LES 1oai 1OAaN LOGN ZZA4 LOQ1  zzAd 1OQN TTAL 1001 ZZA4 LOAN
[epey 2oL V14 D818 - ¥MHL DYWD PSOES Y4 d YMHA

ajge jobipng (dMmdn) weaboid siom Bujuued payiun -
(dMdn) wesBo.d yiopa Buiuueld payiun Zzoz A4 (| Hayx3 HINTE0Z - A4 Vvl



Exhibit I: FY 2022 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)

Omaha-Council Bluffs
Metropolitan Area
3 Planning Agency

MPO Self-Certification of
Procurement and Consultant Selection Procedures

This is to certify that [ have reviewed the lowa DOT Purchasing Rules (Iowa Administrative Code 761, Chapter
20) and will ensure procurements or the selection of consultant firms for projects to be reimbursed with federal
transportation planning funds will follow the policies and procedures outlined in the above-referenced purchasing
rules.

Further, I certify that the following requirements will be adhered to for procurements and consultant services to be
reimbursed with federal transportation planning funds.

e  (Capital expenditures, including the purchase of equipment, will be a separate line item in an approved
Transportation Planning Work Program (TPWP) if the anticipated total cost exceeds $5,000.

*  An approved TPWP will specify that a project will involve consultant services prior to initiating the
consultant selection process.

e QOur agency will document the procedures utilized for the procurement or consultant selection, and will
retain this documentation on file for a minimum of three years.

e  When reimbursement is requested for capital expenditures or consultant services, we will provide our
District Planner and the Office of Systems Planning, through email or hard copy, invoices documenting
the expenditure(s) at the time the associated reimbursement request is submitted.

[ declare to the best of my knowledge and ability that we will adhere to the above requirements.

Sl

(Signature)

Greg Youell

(Please Print Name)

Executive Director

(Title)

Metropolitan Area Planning Agency

(Name of Organization)

03/14/21

(Date Signed)

2222 Cuming Street 402-444-6866 p www.mapacog.org
Omaha, NE 68102-4328 402-342-0949F mapa@mapacog.org




Omaha - Council Bluffs
l Metropolitan Area
Planning Agency

s S |
e T 2222 Cuming Street 402-444-6866 P www.mapacog.org

Omaha, NE68102-4328  402-951-6517 F mapa@mapacog.org

April 8, 2021

Craig Wacker

Nebraska Department of Transportation (NDOT)
PO Box 94759

Lincoln, Nebraska 68509

Dear Mr. Wacker:

MAPA is seeking NDOT, lowa DOT, FHWA and FTA approval to utilize a "tapered match” to assist with
MAPA's FY2022 Work Program. This tool would allow MAPA to vary the amount requested for
reimbursement over the life of the grant. No more than 80% of the contracted amount would be
requested for the fiscal year.

Specifically, MAPA would like to utilize the soft cash match from several projects, including the
Nebraska lowa Regional Orthaphotography Consortium (NIROC) aerial photography project to match
other activities in our Work Program. Since the majority of these costs will be incurred late in the year,
MAPA will request reimbursement for 100% of our total cash outlays in quarters one, two and three of
FY2022. Hence, during these quarters MAPA’s total submitted expenses, which include studies,
consultant contracts and subrecipients, will be more than 80%. MAPA will reconcile its fourth quarter
request to ensure that costs do not exceed 80% federal share for the fiscal year. MAPA will not seek
reimbursement for any costs paid for by third-parties during any of these quarters.

We have included a brief explanatory table based on our March 29, 2021, coordination call and we
await NDOT, lowa DOT, FHWA, and FTA review and approval of this proposal.

Sincerely,

Greg Youell
Executive Director

cc: Justin Luther, Federal Highway Administration, Nebraska Division
Darla Hugaboom, Federal Highway Administration, lowa Division
Cathy Monroe, Federal Transit Administration, Region VI
Zac Bitting, lowa Department of Transportation, Systems Planning Bureau



Exhibit II: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

PLANNING JOINT
PARTICIPATION
AGREEMENT

»

(HIOWADOT



Exhibit II: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

PLANNING JOINT
PARTICIPATION
AGREEMENT

PART |

The planning joint participation agreement to implement intermodal planning, effective July 1, 2021
through June 30, 2022, states the total amount in combined Federal Transit Administration and
Federal Highway Administration planning funds to support 80% of the cost of activities listed in the
agency’s Transportation Planning Work Program for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2022.



Exhibit II: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

Agreement Number: 22MPO-MAPA Accounting Contract Number: 23193

PLANNING JOINT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT
TO IMPLEMENT METROPOLITAN INTERMODAL PLANNING

WHEREAS, federal transportation planning regulations provide for the establishment of a metropolitan planning
organization within each metropolitan area to serve as a forum for local officials to carry out certain intermodal transportation
planning and programming responsibilities within each metropolitan area; and

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Area Planning Agency (hereinafter called the AGENCY) has been designated by the cities
and counties within its boundaries, with the concurrence of the Governor(s), to serve as the metropolitan planning
organization for the Council Bluffs/Omaha metropolitan area; and

WHEREAS, the Iowa Department of Transportation (hereinafter called the DEPARTMENT), has secured a grant from the
Federal Transit Administration which includes funds originating under 23 U.S.C. 104 (b) and/or 49 U.S.C. 5305 (d) to
support intermodal transportation planning activities of metropolitan planning organizations; and

WHEREAS, the AGENCY has adopted a Transportation Planning Work Program for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2022, which
has been reviewed and approved by the DEPARTMENT, and has requested that the DEPARTMENT fund those activities as
described below:

Project Element FTA Code Federal Funds Ceiling % Federal Participation
FTA 5305d NEW — CFDA 20.505 44.33.90 $ 37,690 30%
FHWA PL NEW- CFDA 20.205 44.32.80 $ 114,845 80%
FHWA STBG NEW — CFDA 20.205 44.32.80 $ 25,000 80%
TOTAL $ 177,535

NOW, THEREFORE, THE DEPARTMENT AND THE AGENCY HAVE AGREED THAT the AGENCY shall proceed
with implementation of the work program, subject to all terms, conditions and obligations connected with the federal grant,
and also subject to such policies, procedures and conditions as have been established by the DEPARTMENT and
documented in Part II of this AGREEMENT.

BE IT FURTHER AGREED THAT the DEPARTMENT shall reimburse the AGENCY for implementing work program
activities at the federal participation rate and subject to the federal funds ceiling shown above.

THIS AGREEMENT TO BE IN EFFECT from July 1, 2021, to June 30, 2022.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereunto have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed by their proper officials

thereunto duly authorized as of the dates below indicated, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and
representations contained herein.

For the AG)ENCY: For the DEPARTMENT:
P LS =
RNV R, {5
Greg Youell V Craig‘%{ar y
Executive Director Systefs Planning Bureau Director
Metropolitan Area Planning Agency Towa Department of Transportation

Date: 67 C?““,,Z / Date: é "/f" %2!




Exhibit Il: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

PLANNING JOINT
PARTICIPATION
AGREEMENT

PART Il

The agency is subject to the following policies, procedures, and conditions of Part Il.



Exhibit Il: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

1. ROLE OF THE AGENCY

A.

The AGENCY shall conduct a comprehensive, continuing, cooperative transportation planning
process for its study area. This process shall, at minimum, generate (or review and confirm) the
following work products on an annual basis:

I. Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP)
Il. Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
[ll. Public Participation Plan (PPP)
IV. Transportation Planning Work Program (TPWP)
V. Passenger Transportation Plan (PTP)

The AGENCY shall recommend, for DEPARTMENT approval, the programming of certain federal
transportation funds apportioned to the area by the DEPARTMENT. These shall include, but not
be limited to, Surface Transportation Block Grant {STBG) funds as well as State Planning &
Research (SPR) Funds generated under 23 U.S.C. 104(b) and Federal Transit funds generated
under 49 U.S.C. section(s) 5303, 5304, 5305, 5307, 5339, 5310, and/or 5311.

The AGENCY shall conduct special planning studies and/or technical assistance to transportation
providers or local governments as may be determined beneficial.

In metropolitan areas, the transportation planning activities shall be conducted to meet the
standards set forth in 23 C.F.R. Part 450 and shall include additional tasks involving
establishment and updating of:

I. Metropolitan Area Planning Boundaries
Il. Federal Aid Urban Boundaries
Ill. Federal Functional Classification

2. POLICY DIRECTION

A,

The AGENCY shall, in mutual agreement with participating local units of government, maintain a
Transportation Policy Committee and for the MPOs a Transportation Technical Committee will
be established. As for the RPAs, the Policy Committee can, at their discretion, establish a
Transportation Technical Committee to provide assistance to the Policy Committee.

The role of the Transportation Policy Committee shall be to {(at a minimum):

I. Meet on a quarterly basis

IIl. Prioritize and select projects for the four-year programming of the TIP
lll.  Assist the RPA/MPO staff in developing the LRTP, TIP, PPP, PTP and TPWP
IV. Direct the RPA/MPO staff in developing the LRTP, TIP, PPP, PTP and TPWP

The Transportation Policy Committee shall, at minimum, include stakeholders within major units
of general-purpose government within the planning area. It is recommended that other
stakeholders, public or private, with transportation interests also be represented. The
DEPARTMENT's District Transportation Planner, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and
the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) shall be considered non-voting members of this
committee, unless otherwise determined by the AGENCY’s by laws.



Exhibit II: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

D. The Transportation Technical Committee shall generally be made up of stakeholders capable of
providing technical advice to the Policy Committee. These individuals may include
representation from the following:

I. Aviation
Il. Business Sector
lil. Cities (above 5,000 pop.)
IV. Cities (below 5,000 pop.)
V. Conservation
VI. Counties
VIl.  Economic Development

VIIl. Freight
IX. Historic Preservation
X. Land Use
Xl. Transit

The DEPARTMENT’s District Transportation Planner, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)
and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) shall be considered non-voting members of this
committee.

ROLE OF THE DEPARTMENT

A. The DEPARTMENT shall provide technical staff assistance to the extent deemed necessary to aid
the AGENCY in carrying out the planning process.

B. The DEPARTMENT will not reimburse ineligible work program activities. If products/activities are
determined ineligible, the agency will be notified of the fact.

REPORTS

All reports, maps, and other documents completed as part of this AGREEMENT, other than draft
documents exclusively for internal staff and committee use within the AGENCY, shall carry the
following notation on the front cover of the title page containing the name of the AGENCY:

The preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed in part through federal
funds provided by the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway
Administration, and/or Federal Transit Administration.

OWNERSHIP OF DATA

Copies of the reports and documentation prepared initially for public distribution or for reporting
under the terms of this AGREEMENT shall be made available for their intended purpose at no cost.

Originals of all documents including estimates, specifications, filed notes, investigations, studies, etc.
which are instruments of service under the terms of this AGREEMENT are to be the joint property of
the political jurisdictions and the governmental agencies participating in the transportation planning
process, including the DEPARTMENT. Copies of such documents, including working documents, shall
be made available to participants upon request for the cost of reproduction.



6.

Exhibit II: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

No reports, maps, or other documents produced in whole or in part under this AGREEMENT shall be
the subject of an application for copyright by or on behalf of the AGENCY, except for the purpose of
assuring proper attribution when materials are used by others.

SUBCONTRACTING

A. The AGENCY shall not transfer or assign by subcontract, any part of the work funded under this
AGREEMENT without prior written consent of the DEPARTMENT.

B. Subcontracts executed in connection with the performance of work under this AGREEMENT
must comply with the requirements of this AGREEMENT.

C. Requests for qualifications, requests for proposals, and contracts related to work under this
agreement must adhere to the following provisions from 49 CFR 26, as well as any additional
provisions outlined by the DEPARTMENT.

I. Prompt Payment

a.

You must establish, as part of your DBE program, a contract clause to require
prime contractors to pay subcontractors for satisfactory performance of their
contracts no later than 30 days from receipt of each payment you make to the
prime contractor.

You must ensure prompt and full payment of retainage from the prime contractor
to the subcontractor within 30 days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily
completed. You must use one of the following methods to comply with this
requirement:

1) You may decline to hold retainage from prime contractors and prohibit
prime contractors from holding retainage from subcontractors.

2} You may decline to hold retainage from prime contractors and require a
contract clause obligating prime contractors to make prompt and full
payment of any retainage kept by prime contractor to the subcontractor
within 30 days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed.

3) You may hold retainage from prime contractors and provide for prompt
and regular incremental acceptances of portions of the prime contract,
pay retainage to prime contractors based on these acceptances, and
require a contract clause obligating the prime contractor to pay all
retainage owed to the subcontractor for satisfactory completion of the
accepted work within 30 days after your payment to the prime
contractor.

For purposes of this section, a subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed
when all the tasks called for in the subcontract have been accomplished and
documented as required by the recipient. When a recipient has made an
incremental acceptance of a portion of a prime contract, the work of a
subcontractor covered by that acceptance is deemed to be satisfactorily
completed.

Your DBE program must provide appropriate means to enforce the requirements
of this section. These means may include appropriate penalties for failure to
comply, the terms and conditions of which you set. Your program may also
provide that any delay or postponement of payment among the parties may take
place only for good cause, with your prior written approval.



Exhibit II: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

e. You may also establish, as part of your DBE program, any of the following
additional mechanisms to ensure prompt payment:

1)

3)

A contract clause that requires prime contractors te include in their
subcontracts language providing that prime contractors and
subcontractors will use appropriate alternative dispute resolution
mechanisms to resolve payment disputes. You may specify the nature of
such mechanisms.

A contract clause providing that the prime contractor will not be
reimbursed for work performed by subcontractors unless and until the
prime contractor ensures that the subcontractors are promptly paid for
the work they have performed.

Other mechanisms, consistent with this part and applicable state and
focal law, to ensure that DBEs and other contractors are fully and
promptly paid.

Il. Good Faith Effort and Protecting Against Termination for Convenience
a. When you have established a DBE contract goal, you must award the contract
only to a bidder/offeror who makes good faith efforts to meet it. You must
determine that a bidder/offeror has made good faith efforts if the bidder/offeror
does either of the following things:

1)

2)

Documents that it has obtained enough DBE participation to meet the
goal; or

Documents that it made adequate good faith efforts to meet the goal,
even though it did not succeed in obtaining enough DBE participation to
do so. If the bidder/offeror does document adequate good faith efforts,
you must not deny award of the contract on the basis that the
bidder/offeror failed to meet the goal. See Appendix A of this part for
guidance in determining the adequacy of a bidder/offeror's good faith
efforts.

b. In your solicitations for DOT-assisted contracts for which a contract goal has been
established, you must require the following:

1)

2)

Award of the contract will be conditioned on meeting the requirements
of this section;

All bidders or offerors will be required to submit the following
information to the recipient, at the time provided in paragraph b. 3} of
this section:

i. The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in the
contract;

ii. A description of the work that each DBE will perform. To count
toward meeting a goal, each DBE firm must be certified in a NAICS
code applicable to the kind of work the firm would perform on the
contract;

iii. The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm
participating;

iv. Written documentation of the bidder/offeror's commitment to use
a DBE subcontractor whaose participation it submits to meet a
contract goal; and

v. Written confirmation from each listed DBE firm that it is
participating in the contract in the kind and amount of work
provided in the prime contractor's commitment.



Exhibit 1I: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

vi. If the contract goal is not met, evidence of good faith efforts (see
Appendix A of this part). The documentation of good faith efforts
must include copies of each DBE and non-DBE subcontractor quote
submitted to the bidder when a non-DBE subcontractor was
selected over a DBE for work on the contract; and

3) i. Atvyour discretion, the bidder/offeror must present the

information required by paragraph, b. 2), of this section—

(A} Under sealed bid procedures, as a matter of responsiveness,
or with initial proposals, under contract negotiation
procedures; or

{B) Nolater than 7 days after bid opening as a matter of
responsibility. The 7 days shall be reduced to 5 days
beginning January 1, 2017.

ii. Provided that, in a negotiated procurement, including a design-
build procurement, the bidder/offeror may make a contractually
binding commitment to meet the goal at the time of bid
submission or the presentation of initial proposals but provide the
information required by paragraph, b. 2), of this section before the
final selection for the contract is made by the recipient.

You must make sure all information is complete and accurate and adequately
documents the bidder/offeror's good faith efforts before committing yourself to
the performance of the contract by the bidder/offeror.

If you determine that the apparent successful bidder/offeror has failed to meet
the requirements of paragraph, a., of this section, you must, before awarding the
contract, provide the bidder/offeror an opportunity for administrative
reconsideration.

1) As part of this reconsideration, the bidder/offeror must have the
opportunity to provide written documentation or argument concerning
the issue of whether it met the goal or made adequate good faith efforts
to do so.

2) Your decision an reconsideration must be made by an official who did not
take part in the original determination that the bidder/offeror failed to
meet the goal or make adequate good faith efforts to do so.

3] The bidder/offeror must have the opportunity to meet in person with
your reconsideration official to discuss the issue of whether it met the
goal or made adequate good faith efforts to do so.

4) You must send the bidder/offeror a written decision on reconsideration,
explaining the basis for finding that the bidder did or did not meet the
goal or make adequate good faith efforts to do so.

5} The result of the reconsideration process is nat administratively
appealable to the Department of Transportation.

In a “design-build” or “turnkey” contracting situation, in which the recipient lets a
master contract to a contractor, who in turn lets subsequent subcontracts for the
work of the project, a recipient may establish a goal for the project. The master
contractor then establishes contract goals, as appropriate, for the subcontracts it
lets. Recipients must maintain oversight of the master contractor's activities to
ensure that they are conducted consistent with the requirements of this part.

1) i. You must require that a prime contractor not terminate a DBE

subcontractor listed in response to paragraph, b. 2), of this section
{or an approved substitute DBE firm) without your prior written



2)

3)

Exhibit il: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA,

consent. This includes, but is not limited to, instances in which a
prime contractor seeks to perform work originally designated for a
DBE subcontractor with its own forces or those of an affiliate, a
non-DBE firm, or with another DBE firm.

You must include in each prime contract a provision stating:

(A} That the contractor shall utilize the specific DBEs listed to
perform the work and supply the materials for which each is
listed unless the contractor obtains your written consent as
provided in this paragraph (f); and

(B) That, uniess your consent is provided under this paragraph
(f), the contracter shall not be entitled to any payment for
work or material unless it is performed or supplied by the
listed DBE.

You may provide such written consent only if you agree, for reasons
stated in your concurrence document, that the prime contractor has
good cause to terminate the DBE firm.

For purposes of this paragraph, good cause includes the following
circumstances:

vi,

vii.

viii.

The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to execute a written
contract;

The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to perform the work
of its subcontract in a way consistent with normal industry
standards. Provided, however, that good cause does not exist if the
failure or refusal of the DBE subcontractor to perform its work on
the subcontract results from the bad faith or discriminatory action
of the prime contractor;

The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to meet the prime
contractor's reasonable, nondiscriminatory bond requirements.
The listed DBE subcontractor becomes bankrupt, insolvent, or
exhibits credit unworthiness;

The listed DBE subcontractor is ineligible to work on public works
projects because of suspension and debarment proceedings
pursuant 2 CFR Parts 180, 215 and 1,200 or applicable state law;
You have determined that the listed DBE subcontractor is not a
responsible contractor;

The listed DBE subcontractor voluntarily withdraws from the
project and provides to you written notice of its withdrawal;

The listed DBE is ineligible to receive DBE credit for the type of
work required;

A DBE owner dies or becomes disabled with the result that the
listed DBE contractor is unable to complete its work on the
contract;

Other documented good cause that you determine compels the
termination of the DBE subcontractor. Provided, that good cause
does not exist if the prime contractor seeks to terminate a DBE it
relied upon to obtain the contract so that the prime contractor can
self-perform the work for which the DBE contractor was engaged
or 50 that the prime contractor can substitute another DBE or non-
DBE contractor after contract award.



Exhibit 1l: 1DOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

4) Before transmitting to you its request to terminate and/or substitute a
DBE subcontractar, the prime contractor must give notice in writing to
the DBE subcontractor, with a copy to you, of its intent to request to
terminate and/or substitute, and the reason for the request.

5) The prime contractor must give the DBE five days to respond to the prime
contractor's notice and advise you and the contractor of the reasons, if
any, why it ohjects to the proposed termination of its subcontract and
why you should not approve the prime contractor's action. If required in
a particular case as a matter of public necessity {e.g., safety), you may
provide a response period shorter than five days.

6) Inaddition to post-award terminations, the provisions of this section
apply to preaward deletions of or substitutions for DBE firms put forward
by offerors in negotiated procurements.

When a DBE subcontractor is terminated as provided in paragraph (f) of this
section, or fails to complete its work on the contract for any reason, you must
require the prime contractor to make good faith efforts to find another DBE
subcontractor to substitute for the original DBE. These good faith efforts shall be
directed at finding another DBE to perform at |east the same amount of work
under the contract as the DBE that was terminated, to the extent needed to meet
the contract goal you established for the procurement. The good faith efforts
shall be documented by the contractor. If the recipient requests documentation
under this provision, the contractor shall submit the documentation within 7
days, which may be extended for an additional 7 days if necessary at the request
of the contractor, and the recipient shall provide a written determination to the
contractor stating whether or not good faith efforts have been demonstrated.
You must include in each prime contract the contract clause required by §26.13(b)
stating that failure by the contractor to carry out the requirements of this partis a
material breach of the contract and may result in the termination of the contract
or such other remedies set forth in that section you deem appropriate if the
prime contractor fails to comply with the requirements of this section.

You must apply the requirements of this section to DBE bidders/offerors for prime
contracts. In determining whether a DBE bidder/offeror for a prime contract has
met a contract goal, you count the work the DBE has committed to performing
with its own forces as well as the work that it has committed to be performed hy
DBE subcontractors and DBE suppliers.

You must require the contractor awarded the contract to make available upon
request a copy of all DBE subcontracts. The subcontractor shall ensure that all
subcontracts or an agreement with DBEs to supply labor or materials require that
the subcontract and all lower tier subcontractors be performed in accordance
with this part's provisions.

I, Contract Assurance

a.

Each financial assistance agreement you sign with a DOT operating administration
(or a primary recipient) must include the following assurance: The recipient shall
not discriminate on the basis of race, ceolor, national origin, or sex in the award
and performance of any DOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE
program or the requirements 49 CFR part 26. The recipient shall take all necessary
and reasonable steps under 49 CFR part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the
award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. The recipient's DBE program,
as required by 49 CFR part 26 and as approved by DOT, is incorporated by



Exhibit II: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

reference in this agreement. Implementation of this program is a legal obligation
and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement.
Upon notification to the recipient of its failure to carry out its approved program,
the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under 49 CFR part 26 and
may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.5.C. 1001
and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

b. Each contract you sign with a contractor (and each subcontract the prime
contractor signs with a subcontractor) must include the following assurance: The
contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of
race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The
contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award
and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry
out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in
the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems
appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:

1) Withholding monthly progress payments;

2) Assessing sanctions;

3) Liquidated damages; and/or

4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as non-responsible.

IV. Legal Remedies

a. You must implement appropriate mechanisms to ensure compliance with the
part's requirements by all program participants (e.g., applying legal and contract
remedies available under Federal, state and local law). You must set forth these
mechanisms in your DBE program.

b. Your DBE program must also include a monitoring and enforcement mechanism
to ensure that work committed to DBEs at contract award or subsequently (e.g.,
as the result of modification to the contract) is actually performed by the DBEs to
which the work was committed. This mechanism must include a written
certification that you have reviewed contracting records and monitored work
sites in your state for this purpose. The monitoring to which this paragraph refers
may be conducted in conjunction with monitoring of contract performance for
other purposes (e.g., close-out reviews for a contract).

c. This mechanism must provide for a running tally of actual DBE attainments (e.g.,
payments actually made to DBE firms), including a means of comparing these
attainments to commitments. In your reports of DBE participation to the
Department, you must display both commitments and attainments.

7. FINANCIAL ACCOUNTABILITY

A. The AGENCY shall follow the Financial, Procurement and Documentation requirements set forth
in 49 CFR 18 as well as 2 CFR 200 Subpart E — Cost Principles.

No cost incurred by the AGENCY, or any of its subcontractors, prior to the effective date
or after the ending date of this AGREEMENT will be eligible for reimbursement under
this AGREEMENT.

All costs to be reimbursed under this AGREEMENT shall be supported by properly
executed payrolls, time records, invoices, vouchers, warrants, contracts, and any other
support evidencing that these costs were specifically incurred and paid. All



Exhibit Il: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

documentation of reimbursable costs shall be maintained for a period of three years
following the final payment under this AGREEMENT.

The AGENCY is responsible for obtaining audits in accordance with the Single Audit requirements
as prescribed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart F.

I. The AGENCY shall be responsible for establishing and maintaining a set of accounts to
which all planning-related costs and revenues are recorded so that they may be clearly
identified, easily traced, and substantially documented.

Il. All accounting practices applied and all records maintained shall be in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and practices.

8. PAYMENT REQUESTS

A.

The AGENCY shall follow the Financial, Procurement and Documentation requirements set forth
in 49 CFR 18 as well as 2 CFR 200 Subpart E — Cost Principles.

The AGENCY shall request reimbursement for the federal share of eligible costs incurred in
carrying out this AGREEMENT on a quarterly or monthly basis.

Payment requests shall be submitted to the DEPARTMENT's assigned District Transportation
Planner, and shall be accompanied by a progress report, in a format specified by the
DEPARTMENT, showing progress on implementation of work elements set forth in the TPWP.

The final payment request under this AGREEMENT shall be submitted to the DEPARTMENT’s
assigned District Transportation Planner no later than 30 days following the expiration date of
this AGREEMENT or by a date determined by the DEPARTMENT's Finance Bureau.

9. PAYMENTS

A

The DEPARTMENT, upon acceptance of the payment request and progress report, shall
reimburse the AGENCY for the federal share of eligible costs to the ceiling limits established on
the cover page of this AGREEMENT.

The DEPARTMENT may, at its discretion, withhold payment(s) under this AGREEMENT if the
AGENCY is not current in its submission of planning documents or reports to the DEPARTMENT
or if it has failed to pay any invoice from the DEPARTMENT for overpayment of planning funds
determined based on audit exceptions to AGENCY claims.

10. NONDISCRIMINATION

A.

The DEPARTMENT, upon acceptance of the payment request and progress report, shall
reimburse the AGENCY for the federal share of eligible costs to the ceiling limits established on
the cover page of this AGREEMENT.

In connection with the execution of this agreement, the AGENCY shall not discriminate against
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, age, disability, religion, color, sex,
or national origin. The AGENCY shall take affirmative action to insure that applicants are
employed without regard to their race, age, disability, religion, color, sex, or national origin. Such



11.

12.

13.

Exhibit I IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

actions shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, promotion, demotion, or
transfer, recruitment, or recruitment advertising, layoff, or termination, rates of pay or other
forms of compensation, selection for training (including apprenticeship), procurements of
materials, and leases of equipment.

The AGENCY shall not participate either directly or indirectly in prohibited discrimination.

C. The AGENCY agrees to comply with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, P.L. 93-112, and applicable Federal regulations
relating thereto, issued by the U.S. Department of Transportation (49 CFR 27 and 49 CFR 37),
prohibiting discrimination against otherwise qualified individuals with disabilities under any
program or activity receiving federal financial assistance covered by this AGREEMENT.

D. The AGENCY agrees to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises (DBE) as defined in 49
CFR Part 26, have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and
subcontracts financed in whole or in part with federal funds provided under this AGREEMENT.
The AGENCY shall provide the DEPARTMENT with DBE information needed to prepare the State
DBE goal and bi-annual reports.

STATUS OF EMPLOYEES

It is agreed that any and all employees of either party, while engaged in the performance of any
work or services required or provided for herein to be performed by that party, shall not be
considered employees of the other party, and that any and all claims that may or might arise under
the Workers Compensation Act of the State of lowa on behalf of said employees, while so engaged,
and any and all claims made by third parties as a consequence of any act or omission on the part of
said employees, rendered herein, shall in no way be the obligation or responsibility of the other

party.

INTEREST/PROHIBITED INTEREST

A. No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States shall be admitted to any share or
part of this contract or to any benefit arising from it.

B. No member, officer, or employee of a local public body during their tenure or for one year
thereafter shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract.

RENEWAL, RENEGOTIATION, AND
MODIFICATION

The DEPARTMENT or the AGENCY may, from time to time, request changes in the scope of services
and/or the time of performance. Such changes, including any increase in the amount of
compensation to the AGENCY, which are mutually agreed upon by and between the DEPARTMENT
and the AGENCY, shall be addressed through written revisions to this AGREEMENT.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Exhibit II: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT

A. This AGREEMENT may be terminated before the completion date by either the DEPARTMENT or
the AGENCY. Termination shall be effective 30 days following receipt of written notice. Prior to
the termination date, the AGENCY shall prepare and deliver one reproducible copy of a report
summarizing the results of the work performed to date. The AGENCY shall be reimbursed for
costs incurred as of the effective termination date, as provided in Sections 8-10 of this
AGREEMENT.

B. (For AGENCIES outside metropolitan areas only) All transportation planning and programming
requirements not completed by the AGENCY may be completed by the DEPARTMENT. If this
happens, any proposed projects from the AGENCY’s planning area will compete for funding with
any other proposed projects in the state when the State Transportation Improvement Program is
developed.

NONPERFORMANCE

If the AGENCY fails to complete the planning and programming tasks outlined in this AGREEMENT
during the AGREEMENT period or agreed upon extension, the AGENCY may be considered in breach
of contract. The DEPARTMENT may withhold reimbursement from the AGENCY. The AGENCY may
also be subject to repayment of planning funds based on the final audit of AGENCY records.

CONFORMANCE WITH FTA MASTER AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT is in part funded through a grant from the Federal Transit Administration and, as
such, is subject to the terms and conditions of the FTA's Master Agreement.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

A. The AGENCY agrees to comply with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances and resolutions
applicable to the execution of the work covered by this AGREEMENT.

B. Itis mutually understood between the parties that in transportation matters the final authority
vested in the DEPARTMENT by federal and state statutory and case law shall not be affected by
this AGREEMENT.

BONUS AND COMMISSION PROHIBITION

By execution of the AGREEMENT, the AGENCY represents that it has not paid and, also agrees not to
pay, any bonus or commission for the purpose of obtaining an approval of its application for
financing hereunder.



Exhibit 11: IDOT Agreement Project No. 22MPO-MAPA

19. ADDITIONAL AGREEMENT PROVISIONS

Some miscellaneous general provisions not included elsewhere in the AGREEMENT are as follows:

A.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This agreement expresses the entire AGREEMENT between parties and no representations,
promises or warranties have been made by either of the parties that are not fully expressed
herein concerning this AGREEMENT.

SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this AGREEMENT is held invalid, the remainder of the AGREEMENT shall not
be affected thereby if such remainder would then continue to conform to the terms and
requirements of applicable law.

WORDING
All words used herein in the singular form shall extend to and include the plural. All words used
in the plural from shall extend to and include the singular. All words used in any gender shall

extend to and include all genders.

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNEES

It is further understood that this AGREEMENT and all contracts entered into under the provisions
of this AGREEMENT shall be binding upon the DEPARTMENT and AGENCY and their successors
and assignees.



Exhibit 11l: Scope of Work and Budget
February 23, 2021

MAPA FY-2022 PL Funding Request

Jurisdiction: Pottawattamie County / GIS Department
Point of Contact: David Bayer

Project Name: Pottawattamie County GIS

Project Description: Pottawattamie County GIS Program

Project A: GOHub

Pottawattamie County GIS will continue to share and develop data for the regional data-sharing
ptatform. In line with MAPA GOHub objectives, GIS Department staff will maintain, create, or
update targeted datasets, themes, and standards suitable for sharing. Dataset sector examples:
environmental layers, zoning layers, cadastral layers, and transportation layers.

Project B: Data Maintenance

Pottawattamie County GIS actively maintains many transportation-related geographic datasets
that are offered in paper form, served and viewable via web applications and are also available
for download at www.iowagisdata.org. These datasets are maintained with a high degree of
accuracy using legal documents which are recorded and kept on record by various county
departments. The GIS Department employs highly skilled staff who use complex GIS software
to keep this data up-to-date and relevant. The data is shared with local jurisdictions in the
MAPA region as well as engineering companies doing work in our County. It is used in
transportation planning, modeling, analysis, and construction.

The transportation-related geographic datasets include the following:
* Road Centerlines
s Right-of-Way
e Landrecords (lots, parcels, subdivisions, etc.)
e Section Corners
e Zoning
¢ Annexations
e« Basemap (used for websites)

Project C: Website Maintenance
The GIS staff also serves the data via several web applications, as mentioned above. These
applications make the GIS data, maps, and queries available externally to the general public and
internally for our Secondary Roads Department. These applications reguire maintenance and
configuration. The list of sites includes:

s Public-facing GIS Website (gis.pottcounty-ia.gov)

¢ Internal Secondary Roads Website

¢ Internal Secondary Roads AVL Website



Exhibit 11l: Scope of Work and Budget
February 23, 2021

Deliverables:

Each of these projects uses a subset of data that Pottawattamie County GIS maintains. These
datasets are and will continue to be available via the various services and applications used
within the projects respectively (i.e. ArcGIS online, our publicly available GIS applications, NRI
Portal, etc.). If, however, there are other datasets that MAPA needs for separate projects
and/or services, we will always be open to sharing that data.

Budget: _
, Hourl Total Requested | Local Match
| vesciton | st ous | "o | e | a0
Project A: GoHub  Employee 1 25 54971 $1,242.75 5869.93 $372.83
Project B: Data Employee 1 124 $49.71 56,164.04 $4,314.83 51,849.21
Maintenance Employee 2 534 $38.64 520,633.76 §14,443.63 $6,190.13
Project C: Website Employee 1 10 549.71 $497.10 $347.97 $149.13
Maintenance Employee 2 360 $38.64 $13,91040 $9,737.28 $4,173.12
Employee 1 159 $1855 $2,949.45 52,064.62 $884.84
Fringe Benefits
Employee 2 $16.65 $14,885.10 510,419.57 $4,465.53

_--



Discussion and/or decision to approve
and authorize Board to sign Resolution
No. 74-2021 entitled:

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE FOR A MEETING
ON THE PROPOSAL TO REALLOCATE CERTAIN
UNSPENT PROCEEDS OF THE GENERAL
OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES
2018, OF POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, IOWA,
AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION OF
NOTICE THEREOF.



RESOLUTION NO. 74-2021

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE FOR A MEETING ON THE PROPOSAL
TO REALLOCATE CERTAIN UNSPENT PROCEEDS OF THE GENERAL
OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2018, OF
POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, IOWA, AND PROVIDING FOR
PUBLICATION OF NOTICE THEREOF

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Pottawattamie County, lowa has previously
issued its General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2018, in the aggregate principal amount
of $5,260,000 (the "Series 2018 Notes"), for costs of:

a) equipping public buildings with computers and software from the
Zuercher Suite pertaining to document management, storage and retrieval, in an
amount not to exceed$550,000;

b) peace officer communication equipment and other emergency services
communication equipment and system provided in the Zuercher Suite, radio
upgrades and improvements to the Carson Tower, in an amount not to exceed
$1,300,000;

¢) equipping, remodeling and reconstruction of the Sheriff's Department and
the Jail, in an amount not to exceed $520,000;

d) works and facilities useful for the collection and disposal of solid waste,
including vehicles and buildings used for recycling, in an amount not to exceed
$370,000;

e) equipping of public buildings including the digitalization of records in the
County Recorder's office, in an amount not to exceed $120,000;

f) equipping, remodeling and reconstructing the Courthouse basement, in an
amount not to exceed $300,000;

g) equipping, remodeling and reconstructing the first floor of the Courthouse,
in an amount not to exceed $900,000;

h) architectural and engineering studies, plans and designs for the future
equipping, remodeling, reconstruction and extension of the current Law
Enforcement Center building, in an amount not to exceed $900,000;

i)  vehicles for the Sheriff’s Department; and

WHEREAS, certain proceeds of the Series 2018 Notes remain unspent, and County staff
has recommended that not to exceed $389,021.42 of such unspent proceeds originally related to
the Series 2018 Notes (hereinafter referred to as the "Unspent Proceeds") be applied for the
equipping, remodeling, or reconstruction of public buildings; and

WHEREAS, there being no procedure specified under lowa law for consideration or
approval of such a reallocation, it is hereby determined, pursuant to Section 331.301(5) of the
Code of Towa, that the procedure set forth in Section 331.443 should apply and that a hearing be
held upon the proposal to reallocate the Unspent Proceeds to provide funds for paying costs of
the equipping, remodeling, or reconstruction of public buildings.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA:

Section 1. That this Board meet in the Board Room, County Courthouse, 227 South 6th
Street, Council Bluffs, Iowa, at 10:00 A.M., on the 10th day of August, 2021, for the purpose of
taking action on the matter of the proposed reallocation of certain Unspent Proceeds of the Series
2018 Notes to provide funds for paying costs of the equipping, remodeling, or reconstruction of
public buildings.

Section 2. That the Auditor is hereby directed to cause one publication to be made of
notice of said meeting, in a legal newspaper, printed wholly in the English language, published at
least once weekly, and having general circulation in said City, said publication to be not less than
ten nor more than twenty clear days before the date of said public meeting.



Section 3. The notice of the proposed action shall be in substantially the following form:
(To be published on or before: August 6, 2021)

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF POTTAWATTAMIE
COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA, ON THE MATTER OF THE PROPOSED
REALLOCATION OF CERTAIN UNSPENT PROCEEDS OF THE GENERAL
OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2018, OF POTTAWATTAMIE
COUNTY, IOWA, AND THE PUBLIC HEARING THEREON

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the Board of Supervisors of Pottawattamie
County, State of lowa, will hold a public hearing on the 10th day of August, 2021, at
10:00A.M., in the Board Room, County Courthouse, 227 South 6th Street, Council Bluffs,
Iowa, at which meeting the Board proposes to take additional action for the reallocation of
Unspent Proceeds of the General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2018 (the "Series
2018 Notes") of Pottawattamie County, lowa, in the aggregate amount of not to exceed
$389,021.42, in order to provide funds to pay costs of the equipping, remodeling, or
reconstruction of public buildings.

Any person interested may appear at the public hearing, either orally or in writing, and
be heard as to the reallocation of said proceeds of the Series 2018 Notes for the above
purposes.

This notice is given by order of the Board of Supervisors of Pottawattamie County,
State of lowa, as provided by Sections 331.301(5) and 331.443 of the Code of lowa, as
amended.

Dated this 27" day of July, 2021.

County Auditor, Pottawattamie County, State of lowa

(End of Notice)

Dated this 27th Day of July, 2021.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Scott A. Belt, Chairman

O O @] @)
Tim Wichman

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Lynn Grobe

@) O O @)
Justin Schultz

(@) (@) (@) (@)
Brian Shea
ATTEST:

Melvyn Houser, County Auditor



Received/Filed



	Consent Agenda Cover Page
	210720 Minutes
	Dana K. Hire Form - Conservation
	18-DTR-004 Extension Request
	Scheduled Sessions Cover Page
	72 Cover
	72-2021
	73 Cover
	73-2021
	Roads Cover
	75-2021
	Roads Discussion Cover
	Secondary Roads memo
	Western Iowa Networks Cover
	210727 Updated Western Iowa Networks Letter of Support to OCIO
	MAPA Cover
	18-DTR-004 Extension Request
	Carson-Macdonia Requests
	Tax Suspension Cover
	Higgins
	Bible Cover
	Smith Peterson_20210719_161722
	SO Cover
	COR 001 PR-001 Change from Trusses to Beams
	CO Cover
	CRC 002 - Schedule Modifications-KABsigned
	Sheet1

	Planning Cover
	P&Z 2021-02
	Bond Subdivision Final Plat
	Other Business Cover Page
	GIS Cover
	IT Pt.1
	IT Pt.2
	74 Cover
	74-2021
	Received Cover Page
	Status Change
	Grounds Application



